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Annual Report 2002 and Financial Report 2002
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“The tremendous changes
intechnologythathave ™. .» - ¢ .
been advanced by Syngenta \ LT
and its heritage have a |owed
me to becofme abetter. -
conservationist, a better farmer
Ryland Utlaut, US corn farmer



7OMAR 2003 9055 SYNGENTA  +471 61 3235461 NR. 1495 &7

02 Sales Overview by Product Line and Region
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Crop Protection Sales A . .
2002 2001 Aqusl " CER!
m $m % ¥
Selective Herbicides 1606 1722 -8 -7
Non-Selective Herbicides 650 687 -2 -3
Funqicides 1308 1302 - -1
Insecticides 855 944 ~7 -7
Professional Products . 585 522 +6 +5
Others 166 18 +19 «13
Total 5260 5385 -2 -3
1 Growth at ¢constant exchange rates (CER).
Seeds Sales
2002 2001 Actual CER!
m m % *»
Field Crops 503 $30 ~5 -4
Vegetables and Flowers 434 408 +6 +5
Total 937 938 - -
1 Growth at consiant exchange rates (CER),
Crop Pratection Seeds
$ales by Region Sales by Region
W Europe, Africa & Middle East @ Europe, Africa & Middle East
® NAFTA 0 NAFTA
B Latin America Latin America
T Asia Pacific Asla Pactfic
Sales by Product Line Sales by Product Line
W Selective Herbicides W Field Crops
W Non-Setective Herbicides ¥ Vegetabtes & Flowers
W Fungicides
& Insecticides )

Professional Products
& Others




(SR}
<x>

17 MAR 2003 9055 SYNGENTA  +41 61 3235451 NR14%35 s

03 ~Highlights
Financial Highlights

2002 2001 Actual Cer!

$m $m % %

Sales ‘ 6197 6323 -2 -3
Excluding Special ltems2 -
EBITDA 1154 1127 +2 +5
Profit before Tax 445 388 +15  +21
Net Income 265 223 +19
Earnings per Share4 $2.61 $220 +19
Including Special ltems?
Profit before Tax 49 111
Net Income 27) 34
Earnings per Share# $(0.26) $0.34

! Growth at conistant exchange rates (CER).

2 Bxchuding specisl items of 5396 million (2001: $277 million which induded $75 million of dispasal gains) being
anetcharge n respect of merger and restructunng costs, of which impaimnent ¢ests assodated with these iterms
was $134 million (2001: $86 million).

3 Inaceordance with laternatianal Financial Repanting Standards.

¢ Diluted EPS calculated on 101,635,654 shares.

* Strong performance from new products
* EBITDA margin up to 18.6 per cent before special items

* Synergies ahead of plan
-$362 million annualized savings since merger

* Earnings up 19 per ¢ent before special items

* Free cash flow $551 million
~gearing down to 38 per cent
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Chairman’s Letter

- Heinz Imhof We are well placed
our marketing and technologucal

| am pleased to report that Syngenta
delivered a strong performance in
2002 in the face of difficult market
conditions. The success of new product
introductions and our cost reduction
programs contributed to improved
financial ratios compared with

the previous year. At the same time
we have safeguarded our financial
position through continued prudence
in Latin America, The stock market has
recognized these achievements and
the Syngenta share outperformed
the key market indices.

Board of Directors

2002 was a year in which worldwide
investor confidence was severely shaken.
Syngenta has committed itself to
transparency, and our Board of Directors
has continued to ensure that our
shareholders’ trust in the Company and
its operations is well placed. The Board
has 3 tremendous breadth of international
business experience — covering research
and development, finance, management
excellence and advanced consumer
marketing. For a company that is just over
two years old, moreover, | believe that the
present leadership diversity encompasses
the necessary skill sets and experience

10 sustain the success of Syngents in

the future,

During the last year we welcomed two
new Board members, Rupert Gasser
and Pedro Reiser, who bring a wealth of
experience from the food industry and

international business. Both were
elected to the Board of Directors at the
General Assembly on 23 April 2002,

The Board met five times during 2002,

it reviewed and discussed topics
including business performance and
strategy, portfolio management,
research and technology, new marketing
programs and succession planning.

Factors Influencing our Strategy
After a year of consolidating the merger
in 2001, last year we rolled out our
strategy which is based on serving the
grower, as well as the other participants
of the food supply chain, The pillars

of this strategy are portfelio quality and
innovation. These are vital in an industry
which is subject to various external
pressures: market commentators
estimate that the agribusiness market
declined by up to four per cent in 2002 with
general weakness exacerbated by the
downturn in Latin American economies.

The major subsidy programs in the
United States and the European Union
are undergoing progressive reform over
time. Last year saw the introduction of the
US Farm Bill and the European Common
Agricultural Policy midterm review.

The outcome of both initiatives is a fairty
stable level of support to growers over
the next few years. The accession of
seme central and eastern European
states to the European Union opens

up further potential in agriculture.
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to gain market share by vigorously developing

advantages.

3 | U
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Biotechnology offers new opportunities
for the agribusiness industry, particularly
irr the US, but also in Latin America and
Asia. In Europe, consumer acceptance
of this techrology is only slowly improving,
and clear and practicat regulations on
traceability and labeling of products
resulting from biotechnalogy are still
being worked out,

Syngenta has a rich pipeline of
biotechnology traits in Plant Science

that will benefit growers, food and

feed processors and the consumer,
Developrnent of our pipeline will leverage
synergies between Crop Protection,
Seeds and Plant Science. Later sections

of this Report present detailed information
about our innovative capacity,

in this rapidly changing marketplace, the
trend towards industry consolidation has
continued. Today, Syngenta is the largest
of the six major companies competing

in the global agribusiness market,
campared with sixteen a decade ago..

Social Respensibility

As we develop new products and
solutions for the grower and the food
supply ¢hain, we need to be particularly
sensitive to the dermands of the consumer.
Consumers expect not only to be well
informed about the nutritional content of
their food, but also to know how it was
produced. They look for food production
to be undertaken in a responsible,

ethical and environmentally friendly way.
Regulatory enforcement of environmental
standards and new consumer demands
will increase the cost and complexity

of dping business. | am confident that
Syngéfita Wl“ mieet these chaflenges.

Last September we pamapated in
the Wortd Summit on Sustainable
Devglppment in Johannesburg in

" ordéria reinforce our engagement
T w1tr;~stakeholders Agriculture i crucial

"to developing countries and wé must
address their needs appropriately.

Oneimportant aspect is to ensure the
safe use and handling of our products to
protect individuals and the environment,
Qur product stewardship programs from
which thousands of farmers benefit

are an important component of cur
social responsibility in these areas and
give added assurance in the secure use
of our products.

For Syngenta, and for the industry, the
developing countries represent 3 major
long term opportunity, but one which
requires a specific approach region

by region. It was therefore a particular
honor that the Syngenta Foundation

for Sustainable Agriculture was elected
to become a full member of the
Consultative Group on International
Agricultural Research (CGIAR) last
Qctober. in addition, Syngenta is one of
the selected private sector representatives
guiding the consultative process on
Science and Technology for Agriculture
just launched by the World Bank. We
believe we have a responsibility to help
make the advantages of scientific and
technological innovation in sustainable
agriculture as widely available as possible.

The Future

In 2003 we are well placed to gain

market share by vigorously developing our
marketing and technological advantages.
| am confident that our excellent
management teams will reach the
ambitious goals we have set ourselves.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

I would like 10 thank our shareholders
for their trust and interestin our business
and most particularly our employees
around,the world for their contribution

.in an unprecedented time of change.

o Yo

Heinz Imhof Chairman
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Chief Executive’s Letter

Such is the progress Syngenta has
made, itis hard to believe thatitis only
two years since its creation at the end
of 2000. By any measure, post-merger
accomplishments are considerable.

A strong and unified operational
foundation is now in place with the
delivery of cost and capital synergies
well ahead of the original plan. Nowhere
has the energy of our management
teams been more apparent than in the
implementation cf the strategy we set
out at the time of merger.

itis in difficult markets like those we
are currently experiencing in agriculture
around the world, that a company may
demonstrate its worth, This is true for
Syngenta. Preliminary indications suggest
that global market share has been
sustained in this second year of merger.
importantly, excluding the financially
volatile markets of Latin America where
early restraining action was taken to
protect the balance sheet, Syngenta is

- Michael Pragnell We remain foc
customers and dur'shareholders.

axpected to have grown share. Cash flow
has continued to be strong and debt has
again been reduced further reinforcing
balance sheet strergth.

Modernization of the product portfolio
remains ¢entral to our strategy.

The successful roll-out of new products,
notably ACANTO ™, ACTARA® and
CALLISTO®, is contributing significantly
to this goal. We are also phasing outa
number of cider, ex-growth products

in our determined pursuit of quality;

a program which is expected to be
largely compiete by the end of 2003.
This plays an impartant partin the drive
for improvements in manufacturing
efficiency and the rationalization of

14 production sites, which will be
completed by the end of the year.

AS a result, we have enhanced product
mix and business quality and made
marked progress towards our target of
20 per cent return on invested capital.
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ussed on sustaining value creation for our

business areas outside agriculture.

We remain committed to our medium
term margin target of 25 per cent EBITDA
on sales, which we would expect 1o
achieve onge we have seen a recovery

in agricultural markets.

Succass in agribusiness has cansistently
fiowed from innovation in technology
and marketing, This remains the case
today. In response to growing consumer
demands, the food supply chain is taking
an ever keener and more prescriptive
interest in agricultural production.

By addressing these changing needs,

our new marketing initiatives are adding
significant value for customers.

Qur food supply chain engagement is
supported by our investment in research
and technology. The nomination of the
Syngenta rice genome team as Research
Leaders of the year by Scientific American
magazine in late 2002 is tribute to
Syngenta’s leading achievements in
genomics research, Further refinement
of our New Technology research project
portfolio has brought considerably
sharper focus ta the pipeline of potential
new biotechnology products. Under the
commercia! leadership of our new Plant
Science teamn, we expect to launch first
products starting next year.

Clarity in our Plant Science strategy has
enabled us to reconfigure our global
rasearch and development site network
and to streamline research investment.
The announcement in late 2002 of

an expanded collaboration with Diversa
Corporation of the USA, by means

of a technology exchange in return for
Diyersa equity, was a significant strategic
move: As wellas broadening our crop |

capability, this will enhance the potential _,~

for Syngenta to participate in new

The first phase of the successful creation
of Syngenta is now all but complete.

A united sense of purpose throughout
the Company worldwide — borne out by
an extensive employee survey in which
80 per cent chose to participate ~ provides
immense confidence in moving into

the next phase, We have started to
Create a distinctive Syngenta culture
that embraces the values and principies
espoused at merger. itis particularly
encouraging that our operations around
the world are visibly committedto a
healthier and safer environment in their
daily business practice.

We remain focussed on sustaining

value creation for our customers and our
shareholders. The overall achievements
reported in 2002 represent substantial
progress under testing external
conditions, which in the short term
promise little respite.

Qur priorities are to build on this strong
foundation to enhance market share in
Crop Protection, continuing profitability
improvement in Seeds and the
development of an exciting new Plant
Science business.

These results are a tribute to the
enthusiasm and single-mindedness of
our people worldwide to whom | extend
my heartfelt thanks, And on behalf of
all of us, 1 would like to express warmest
appreciation to our customers for their
continuing support.

.'Michael Pragnell Chief Executive Officer
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Year after year, growers around the world
depend on the trusted Syngenta brandsthey - .-
know will bring the yield and quality they need. .

2
P

Score’

TOUCHDOWN @ Glyphosate-based non-selective
GRES iazol herbitide. Combined with K TECHNOLOGY ™,
:,Cng;dd:’fu’ emic nary an enhanced defivery system, TOUCHDOWN® gives
¢rops against awide range effective control of broadleaf weeds and grasses.
of diseases. Excellent crop
tolerance and long iasting
disease control provides
substantal yield increases.

CRUISER ® Neonicotino!d seed! treatment
insecticide based on thlamethoxam,

for use against soildwelling and early
season pests in 3 broad range of ¢rops,

ACANTQ ™ Early season strobllurin fungicde to improve
yield and quality in wheat and bacley,

ACTARA ® Second generation
neonlcotinoid insecticlde for controlling
foliar and soil pesty in multiple crops,
available in a variety of application types.

DUALGOLD ® Highly active, reduced rate
selective hertidde providing seasondong
grass centrol in ¢om and soybean.

GRAMOXONE® Unique, fast acting, non-selective, cantact
herbicide with many varied uses in 2 wide variety of ¢rops.

RS SRR e T N LA A TR




Callisto

AMISTAR ™ AZ ™ Broad-spectrum fungicide
ideally sufted for use in integrated pest
management programs, which deitvers consistent
yield and quality berefits.

Amistar™

KARATE ® Effident contrel of the most damaging

Insacts on a wide range of crops, Alongside ZEON

TECHNOLOGY ®, a novel water-based, quick-release
mi¢roencapsulation formulation, KARATE® now - T
offers improved residual activity, conslstency, *
flexibilty and value.

CALUSTD ® Unique corn herbiide inspired

by nature, providing unprecedented broadleaf
weed control, freedom to apply at any time,
angd erwlronmental, crap and human safety,

RIDOMIL GOLD ® Speciic
fungicde for comtral of
late blight and downy
mildew diseases.

NK® (eadIng brand for field crops seed,
indudlag cara, saybeans, sunflower
andwinter ailseed rape.

. S&G* Vegetable seeds in Europe, Africa and Asia
and flower seeds and young plants worldwide.
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Herbicides control weeds thatare ..~

a major factor in lowering crop yield.

An alternative to herbicides is mechanical
cultivation, a practice assaciated with
soil erosion and moisture loss. Judicious
use of herbicides, as in minimum tiliage,
reduces soil erosion thereby contributing
to sustainable agriculture while offering
a cost-effective solution to growers’
weed problems. In the developing world,
herbicides replace either mecharical
cultivation or the drudgery of hand
weeding, thus increasing agricultural
productivity, There are two categories of
herbicides - selective and non-selective.

SYNGENTA

H41 81 3135481

Crop Protection

- Selective Herbicides

Eal

2001

2002

~
-

[ . .
-Selective herbjcides are the largest category -

of herbicides. Théy are crop-specificand « -
control targeted weeds without harming
the crop. They are used mainly in corn
{the largest market), smali grain cereals,
soybeans, fruit and vegetables, and cotton,
This sector has declined recently due

to the advent of genetically modified
herbicide-tolerant crops, notably seybean
and cotton, which can be treated safely
with non-selective herbicides, However,
opportunities for newer progucts with
improved environmental profiles or greater
effectiveness exist. Syngenta is the market
leader, with a broad range of products
adapted to all major crops and markets.

Sales were $1.61 billion, a decrease of
seven per cent at constant exchange rates
compared t0 2001.

Total sales declined for three main reasons;
price pressure, largely in the US, accounted
for $47 million; range rationalization

of $32 mitfion; and volume reductions

in Brazil due to de-stocking. In corn
herbicides, sales of CALLISTO® reached
$103 million following a strong first
full-season of marketing; this more

than offset the decline in DUALS/BICEP®
MAGNUM due to the competitive US
market. In soybeans, sales of FLEX® and
FUSILADE® were also lower with increased
herbicide-tolerant crop (HTC) plantings.
In cereals, sales of the grass herbicide
TOPIK® declined in France, and in
Canada and Australia due to drought.

Callisto Tk
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Non-Selective Herbicides

$m
687
650

Non-selective herbicides reduce or halt
the growth of all vegetation with which
they come into contact. They are used
extensively to clear vegetation in orchards,
vines and plantation ¢rops, or prior 10
planting of annwual crops, They replace
hand weeding and are also essential

to soil conservation techniques such as
minimurn tillage, through the reduction
of mechanical cultivation. Another
factor driving demand is the increase

of herbicide tolerant crops, notably
inthe Americas.

There are two principal product groups
in this sector: glyphosate-based products
and bipyridyls. Syngenta has a strong
position in both.

Sales were $650 million, a decrease of
three per cent at constant exchange rates
compared to 2001,

Continued strong growth of
TOUCHDOWN®IQ ™ in the US resulted
in an increased share of the glyphosate
market; this was offset by lower sales

in Brazil. New marketing programs

for GRAMOXONE® in Australia and
China increased sales; in Japan and Brazil
there was continued channel de-stacking.
Two years after the opening of the
Nantong plant, China has become the
second largest market for GRAMOXONE®
afterthe US.

roucnqnwu
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11 Crop Protection
Fungicides Insecticides Professional Products

$m Hul $m
2001 1392 2001 944 7001 £22
2002 1398 2002 855 2002 €85

Fungicides prevent and cure fungal
diseases that can have profound effects
on Crop yields and particularly quality.

These diseases are caused by avariety «
of pathogens. Accordingly, this market
consists of many products used in
combination or series to control the full
range of problems in ways that minimize
the chance of resistance emerging.
Fungicides are used mainly in cereals

and rice, fruit, vegetables-and vines.

Growth is expected in developing markets
and in fruit and vegetables. Syngenta is
the market leader with an extensive product
range and state-of-the-art technology.

Sales were $1.40 billion, a decrease of
one per cent at constant exchange rates
compared 10 2001. Underlying sales
growth in fungicides was impacted by the
phase-out of older products ($28 million).

First full-season launches in Europe,
including a late fourth quarter launchin
France, of the new strobilurin ACANTQ ™
resulted in sales of $40 million. This more
than offset reduced sales of AMISTAR®,
the largest product in the fungicide
portfolio, which were lower due to the
introduction of a new competitor in
France at the start of the season; there
was continued encouraging growth in
the US, Japan and Brazil. Sales growth -
of SCORE® in Asia and Europe, and @
number of smaller products compensated
for lower sales of RIDOMIL®, BRAVO®
and TILT®.

@’ b Am istétr’é"":' ’
. oA

Score’ ——
o Bravo
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These products are used to control insect
pests that reduce crop yield and quality.
The largest insecticide markets are in fryit
and vegetables, cotton, rice and corn.

Control of insects in agricultural crops is
essential 1o achieve the yield and quality
demanded by growers and consumers.

Growth within this product line is
associated with the introduction of new
chemical entities. The Syngenta insecticide
portfelio is ideally suited to meet this need
on a global crop basis, with a broad range
of new and recently launched products.

Sales were $855 million, a decrease of
seven per cent at constant exchange rates
compared to 2001. Qver half the dediine
in insecticides was due to phase-outs
(335 million),

ACTARA® achieved sales of $87 million,
with broad-based growth and a
particularly strong performance in the
US. Sales of KARATE® benefited from
strong growth in KARATE® ZEON® in
Germnany. Reduced cotton plantings

in Australia and the US combined with
channel de-stocking in Brazil resuited

in lower sales for @ number of products,

KRS pROnLUM

VERTIMEC

Many herbicides, insecticides and
fungicides have uses outside commercial
agriculture, such as in public heafth,
forestry, industrial weed control, golf
courses and home and garden applications.
in addition, certain insecticides and
fungicides can be used as seed treatments
to protect the early stages of ¢rop growth,

Growth for Syngenta will come from the
extension of active chemical ingredients
into these areas which together make up
the Professional Products product line.

Sales were $585 million, an increase of
five per cent at constant exchange rates
compared 10 2001.

Seed Traatment sales sustained very strong
growth with sales of CRUISER® more
than doubling to $54 million, driven by
strong demand in North Americain
cotton and canola, Growth of MAXIM®
continued in the US and Brazil. Sales

of Turf and Ornamentals were lower
with growth more than offset by product
phase-outs ($29 million). Public Health
sales were down due to reduced tenders
for ICON®,

Dividend &Y
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12 Seeds
Field Crops Vegetables and Flowers
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Seeds are developed for individual

e Sales were $503 million, a decrease of -

geographical regions 0 be higher yié"id‘}hgi four per cent at constant exchange Tates

and more reliable. Syngenta Field Crop
seeds include major arable crops: comn,
soybeans, sunflowers, oilseed rape, sugar
beet and cereals.

Market drivers are the pursuit of increased

yield through improved varieties, The trend’

towards hybridization and the adoption
of genetically enhanced seed present
the opportunity for premium pricing for
novel traits.

In Vegetables and Flowers, Syngenta

has a broad offering in fresh vegetables,
including tomatoes, lettuce, melons,
watermelons, cucumbers, cabbage, sweet
corn, hot and sweet peppers, beans and
oriental radish; for flowers, Syngenta offers
a wide variety of seeds, young plants and
cuttings for commerdia! growers.

The vegetable seed market is driven by
consumer demand for fresh proguce of
high quality, by procassor requirernents
and by farmer demand for better yields.
The flowers market is driven by consumer
demand for product diversity and noveity,
and grower need for smooth logistics
and consistent quality.

compared to 2001,

Sales of NK@ corn declined with
significantly lower sales in Brazil; sales
in the US market were also lower

due to increased penetration of
herbicide-tolerant corn, Cllseed sales
increased slightly: soybean sales were
lower in line with the overall market,
sunflowers grew strongly benefiting
from superior technology and increased
acreages in Eastern Europe. Sales of
HILLESHOG® sugar beet grew in NAFTA
and in Europe, where new technology
pravided growth in a market which
continued to decline.

Sales of GM product were stable and
accounted for 17 per cent of total
Seeds sales.

00

2002 -

7

Sales were $434 million, an increase of
five per cent at constant exchange rates
compared to 2001,

Sales of S&G® vegetables continued to
grow, with particularly strong resuits in
Europe: in the important Spanish market
for peppers and tomatoes Syngenta

has a leading position and market shares
are estimated to have increased further
during the year; melons and sweet corn
aiso performed well. Total growth

was reduced by lower sales in Korea.

Sales of S&G® flowers increased
primarily in Europe, where the full
commerdialization of the proprietary
Xetray ™ systern for young plants
provided strong growth,

Q
)
_ ROGERS
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Growers face many challenges: the
economic challenge of increasing
output to baiance declining revenue; the
agronomic challenge of pest, weed and
disease control; and the environmental
and social challenge of producing crops
in a sustainable manner.

Consurners are ever more deranding,
seeking higher quality and service at
lower pnces, along with guarantees on
safety and reassurance on the protection
of the environment. All participants in
the food supply chain — from producers
of cop protection products and seeds,
to distributors and growers, through

to food and feed manufacturers

and retailers - have to respond to these
dermands. They have ta provide a constant
supply of high quality, affordable food
produced in a safe and environmentally
sustainable manner.

As the basic producers of food, growers
face one of the biggest challenges in
responding to changing needs. These
chalienges vary greatly from country

to country, and from ¢rop to crop.

Syngenta is committed to developing
ways to help growers optimize the
potential for success of their businesses,
working with the entire food supply
chain. In addition, the Company

is providing solutions in markets outside
agriculture to improve protection
against pests and diseases in homes,
communities and recreationat areas.
Several initiatives were outlined in

SYNGENTA
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Innovation in Marketing:

1495 S 20

New Ways of Meeting Customer Needs

lastyear's report that aimed to give
substantial benefits to customers,
Some of these projects are described

on the following pages to illustrate how
the Company is putting its approach

to salutions into action:

— Tailoring product offersin carn in the US

- Exploring new opportunities in seed
treatment

~Meeting the needs of processors
in cereals

= Reaching out to consumers in fresh
fruit and vegetables

- Expanding in areas outside agriculture

Tailoring Product Offersin Corn

Corn is one of the most valuable crops
grown, with a farm gate value of around
$50 billion worldwide. $20 billion

of this comes from the US. The US also
represents the largest crop protection
market for corn at around $1.7 billion *.
Currently, Syngenta has an estimated

29 per centshare of that market?,

Growars in the Midwest, especially lowa,
Ilinois and Indiana, strive for high

yields to maximize their income and
profitability. In the western corn belt,
where the crop is mainly used for animal
feed, ease of management is vital,

Growing conditions also differ from
region to region, In the wetter, higher
yielding Migwest, effective weed control
is essential. Here, weed pressure is very
high and well-timed herbicide application
is crudial to minimize impact on yield.
Residual herbicides such as BICEP®,
DUAL MAGNUM® and now CALLISTO®
- which remain active even after

rainfall - offer clear benefits to growers
in these conditions.

In the drier areas of the western corn belt,
namely South Dakota and Kansas, where
the corn crop is fed to livestock, some
growaers are adopting glyphosate-tolerant
corn production systemns. Here Syngenta
offers 2 broad-spectrum herbicide
solution, TOUCHDOWN®1Q ™. Other
post-emergence herbicides, particularly
CALLISTO ®, are recommended for use in
rotation with broad-spectrum herbicides
to ensure complete weed control

and minimize the build-up of glyphosate-
resistant weeds.

Ne “ore sizefits all” program will suit every
individual need and growing condition.
Syngenta is in a unique position to offer
customized solutions, consisting of a broad
range of technologies that will meet the
growers' needs throughout the lifetime

of the aop.

In addition to comprehensive herbicide
programs, Syngenta has a complete
range of solutions for corn, including NK®
seeds, seed treatments, fungicides and
insecticides to maximize yield and quality.

The Company is alsc implementing
successful customer relationship
management initiatives, such as the
internet based FARMASSIST ™ program.
FARMASSIST ™ provides tools that
help the grower manage his business,
including farm expenses, crop plans,
record keeping, as well as services such
as satellite field mapping, pest alerts
and grain marketing information.

This detailed information may be used
to build individual solutions that reduce
the growers' risks and increase their
profit potential.

“It's all a matter of performance. I look
“at performance first.”

Y
.o

Mike Arth, US corn farmer

' Source: Phillips MDougall
*Source: Dosne
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New Ways of Meeting Customer Needs

- Exp’lormg New Opportunmes in Seed
. Treatmentr.. v 4

As seeds germinate they are vulnerable
to many diseases and insects, which can
kill or stunt the growth of young plants.
Seed treatment protects the germinating
seed in a very targeted way, consistent
with the principles of sustainable

A agricuiture. Seed treatment helps the

seedling to survive and results in more
uniform and vigorous growth, At harvest,
this early protection can provida higher
crop quality and improved yields.

Currently, seed treatment represents
around four per cent of the total crop
protection market 3, This will continue
to grow faster than the total crop
protection market as growers increasingly
recognize the benefits of protecting
high value seed, and through expansion
into locations where the use of seed
treatment is currently uncommon.
Syngenta has severat leading seed
treatment brands in novel formulations,
which assure seed safety and uniform
seed coverage.

The latest product in the range is CRUISER®,
a broad-spectrum seed treatment
insecticide, now used on 13 different aops
and in more than 40 countries worldwide.
In 2002, the US Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) granted CRUISER®
registration on ¢orn. This use will provide
protection against a broad spectrum

of soil insects that ¢an be devastating to
emerging corn seedlings. In Brazil,
research trials have demonstrated that
low rates of CRUISER® increase the vigor
and yield of soybeans, and in 2002 wider
use was initiated. In Canada, canola
growers have been successfully using
CRUISER® for two years, in combination
with three fungicides specifically
formulated for canola. In 2003, a series
of European Union country registrations
is planned on corn, sugarbeet, cereals
and oilseed rape.

* Source: Promar/Seedtax, Phillips McDougall

»

Alongside these new seed treatment
products, Syngenta Seeds has developed
TruBulk ™, a new bulk packaging system
10 give US soybean growers additional
benefits. This system makes handling
and planting of large quantities of
treated seeds mucﬁ easier for farmers,

Meeting the Needs of Cereal
Processors and Growers

Cereals are as important to European
agricuiture as corn is to the US, with

a farm gate value of 320 billion. France
alone represents more than 16 per cent
of the $3.6 billion global crop protection
market for cereals .

€ach participant in the food supply chain
has a distinctive interest in improving
cereal production. Growers are looking
for improved quality and higher yield.
Millers and bakers want wheat with
special characteristics such as high flour
yield per grain and protein content which
directly influences the bread-making
quality of the flour. Maltsters, brewers
and distilfers seek larger grains, increasing
germination rates and consequently
higher malt yields. The animal feed
industry is interested in increased starch
and energy content of wheat grains.

Syngenta has carried out comprehensive
development work to demonstrate that
programs using the modern fungicides
AMISTAR® and now ACANTO ™, the
insacticide KARATE®, and a plant growth
. regulator provide these specific benefits
and therefere create added value for

* Source: Phillips McDougall
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millers, maltstersand animai feed producers.
The business focus has consequently
broadencd from the cooperative farming
grganizations, distributors and grawers

toinclude food processars and retailers. -

In addition, a number of diagnostic 1ools
have been developed to better target the
use of fungicides, which avoids routine
spraying and produces high quality crops
in @ more environmentally sustainable
way. This work on grain quality and
sustainability also provides growers with
additional benefits. The diagnostic tools
allow them to optimize input costs by
only spraying crops when necessary.

The improved grain guality helps them to
establish grain contracts that command
premium prices.

A further significant development in
cereal seeds has been COLOSSUS hybrid
barley from New Farm Crops =2n
industry first, introduced on a smali scale
in 2002 and awarded official listing in the
UK in early 2003. With a novel genetic
systern from wild barley and grown using
a specially developed program of crop
pratection products, hybrid barley has
produced yields of more than one tonne
per hectare higher than conventional
varieties at similar growing costs.

SYNGENTA #4161

3235461
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New Ways of Meeting Customer Needs

Reaching Out to Consumers in Fresh
Fruit and Vegetables

Consumers expect a variety of tasty,
nutritious and affordable fresh food

all year round, produced in a manner
thatis environmentally sustainable.
Retailers, eager to meet their customers’
expectations, insist that growers meet
specific quality criteria.

This has become particulary important in
major fresh produce growing areas such
as Spain, which provides many European
retailers with products like S&G® tomatoes
and peppers. To help growers comply
with the standards set by the retailers,
last year Syngenta initiated a support
system in Spain, working closely with
cooperatives and farmers. This program
goes beyand just seeds and crop
protection technologies. It includes
technical assistance, providing the tools
such as computer software that will help
the grower follow the specified protocols.

In the US, Syngenta is working with

the whole food supply chain to create
new opportunities in the $75 billion US
fresh produce market 5. This approach

is delivering high quality produce with
unique characteristics for which consumers
are willing to pay a premium.

“I'm impressed with the newhybrid -

barley, COLOSSUS. Every time you've gof
more yield, you've got more output.
There's nothing to bedtthatin any busmess
lan Davidson, Barley grotwer. Scotland » «

* Source: Consolidated industry information
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New Ways of Meeting Customer Needs

Building a consumet brang has been
achiéved by workihg in paitnership with
already established food supply chain
players, bringing together companies with
capabilities and expertise in production,
harvesting, packaging. logistics,
distribution, retailer sales and consumer
marketing: “NewProduce Network ™"
was formed.

The first product from NewProduce
Network ™ — the PureHeart ™ personal-
sized seedless watermelon —has already
been successfully test marketed and
further expansion is planned in 2003.

For consumers, such prerium price
products deliver higher quality, while
giving extra revenue for retailers. Tailored
seeds and ¢rop pratection packages
provide growers with additional benefits
that can include optimized protocols

to help meet quality standards.

Expanding in Areas Outside
Agriculture

Syngenta continues to expand its products
into market segments outside agriculture.
These markets are attractive because they
have good growth potential, driven by
higher disposable income, more leisure
time and the increased need for homes,
communities and recreational areas to

be free of pests and diseases.

Improved turf management programs
are required on golf courses to provide
high quality greens and fairways under
pressure from increased usage. Syngenta
has responded to this need with brands
such as the fungicide HERTAGE® and a
growth regulator developed specifically
for the turf market. The Company’s
preducts were used in providing

high quality playing surfaces for major
sporting events, such as at Japan’s
Sapporc Dome, host of the 2002 FIFA
Worlg Cup.

a

The publi¢ health sector offers significant
opportunities for Syngenta products.
The drive by international aid programs
10 eradicate malaria should lead to
increased spending on mosquito control
The ICON® brand of insecticides sold

by Syngenta is an important tacl

in the control of mosquitos and new
insecticide-treated bed nets are

in development.

In 2003, a new termiticide, IMPASSE®,

is planned for launch into the professione
pest management market in the US,
following registration in 2002. This is

a novel advanced {ermite control system
for use in building construction. The activ
ingredient is “locked in” betweena -
multi-laminated film, presenting minima
exposure to installers and the environmen
Itis placed under concrete slabs during
construction, providing a continuous,
impervious barrier to termites over a
long period of time and offering builders
and homeowners not only security from
these pests, but a protection against
termites that is both safe to construction
workers and environmentally benign.

et e s g g ——_m DT
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More than 4,000 dedicated research and
development staff around the world
ensure that Syngenta continues to provide
custorners with innovative products

for agricutture and professional use.

There are two principal elements to
Syngenta research. The first is to develop
new products and technologies. The
second is to support existing products:
extending their uses, improving their
performance and monitoring their long-
term environmenta! profile and safety.

To enable the development of safe

and effective solutions which enhance
sustainable farming systems, Syngenta
organizes its R&D activities around five
core technology platforms: Genomics;
Discovery; Crop Protection Research,;
Crop Genetics Research; and Health
Assessment and Environmental Safety
(see diagram on oppasite page). These are
closely integrated to increase the overall
capacity, to discover new active
ingredients and provide practical routes
10 novel crop varieties.

Science Providing Solutions and Results
More and more, genome science is
giving added leverage to crop protection
discovery, plant breeding and trait
development, it is enabling more pregise
screening of chemical targets, faster
elucidation of modes of action, and
earlier and more accurate predictions
and measurements in toxicology and
biokinetics. It allows plant breeding

to become more targeted through
marker-assisted techniques, and makes
biotechnology trait screening across species
both more efficient and more effective.

SYNGENTA

td1 61 3235461

Research and Development
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“The rice sequence affords entry into the

genomes of the other cereal grainson
which the world depends.”
Donald Kennedy, Science Magazine

By harnessing genomics and other
technology platforms across all stages

of research, over the last year Syngenta
has been able to progress several
promising areas for new chemical products.

For broad-spectrurn weed control with
a novel mode of action in cereals, a new
herbicide is now in the fate research stage.

There are also three new classes of
insacticide in the research phase. One
gives a highly effective broad-spectrum
protection against pests such as leaf miners,
mites and thrips. The others, each with a
new and distinct mode of action, provide
rapid activity against a range of caterpillars.

Fungicide research has also progressed

in the ast year, with ane patential series
of new compounds demonstrating
curative and protective activity against a
broad range of fungal diseases, including
leaf spot, powdery mildew, grey mould
and rust.

In terms of making active ingredients even
more effective, new additive technologies
are providing existing products with
enhanced activity and improved safety
profiles for crops and the environment,

Harnessing Knowledge

After Syngenta successfully completed
the first draft rice genome sequence
last year, it was important {0 use that
knowledge to begin working out the
functions of genes that could be crudial

to crop enhancement. The rice genome
provides a model for other commerdally
significant cereal crops including corn,
wheat and barley.

Syngenta has since selected genes

that appear to have important roles in
disease resistance, stress tolerance, plant
development and yield enhancement
and, together with academic and
industrial collaborations, is working to
understand the functions of these genes
within the plant, and therefore how to
use them in plant improvement.

The data has also become an integral
part of speeding up conventional
plant breeding methods through
marker-assisted breeding, providing
the plant breeder a virtual map of
desirable characteristics.

By making the rice genome data
available to the wider research
community, Syngenta has been able
to share this impertant knowledge.
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Development

Syngenta developrment scientists work

to establish the biological potential of
lead research compounds, obtain product
registrations and bring plant varieties

to the market that meet the needs of
farmers, as well as their customersin

the food supply chain,

Development involves extensive field tests
as part of the health and environmental
safety evaluation to ensure that products

meet rigorous standards around the world, -

Development activities also include the
improvement of production processes for
new active ingredients and formulations.

in Crop Protection, much emphasis has
been given to the roll-out of the four
new active ingredients which were first
registered in 2001, including the Jaunch
of the CALLISTO ® brand range, as well
as expanding the registrations to new
uses and new countries, Substantial
progress has been made on gaining
further registrations for products based
on the blockbuster insecticide ACTARA®,
both as a foliar-applied product and as

a seed treatment, CRUISER®. In the
European Union, where existing active
ingredients are undergoing an extensive
review, Syngenta now has a total of

12 ¢compounds that have been approved
in the re-registration process.

Research and Development

In Seeds, new varieties and hybrids

are developed using a number of
advanced breeding methods, including
marker-assisted breeding, together
with conventional skills that improve
the success rate of breeding programs.
In Field Crops, high yielding NK® corn
hybrids have been progressed with
enhancad starch and protein content
and with improved sitage quality. In
Vegetables, breeding is aimed at
improving traits of value to consumers,
such as taste and color. One example is
the PureHeart ™ watermelon, described
onpage 18,

Shaping Future Research -

In order to meet commercial targets and
to create a sustainable and dynamic

R&D foundation for the future, this year
has seen'a program of streamlining and
restructuring across the various R&D sites.

Strategic “centers of excellence”

have been developed, giving each site
a unique role and defined scientific
expertise and resource. implementation
of this simplified structure now gives an
increased focus on research output,

Activities are now focussed in key sites
in Switzerland, the UK, and the US:

—Basel & Stein (CH):
Crop protection research

- Jealott's Hill & Central Toxicology
Laboratory (CTL) (UK): Discovery and
bio-performance research; regulatory
studies and toxicology

- Syngenta Biotechnology Inc. (US):
Crop genetics research and genomics

Research and Development Process at Syngenta

D
<32
(3

In December, the Company announced
a collaboration with Diversa Corporation
to generate a shared biotechnology
research platform and to drive product
opportunities cutside traditional
agribusiness. Syngenta and Diversa

will combine their technology research
activities, including proteomics and
metabolomics, and will establish projects
directed towards novel opportunities,
Including applications In enzymes and
biopharmaceuticals, and in the use of
plant-expressed therapeutic antibodies.
The aim is to ensure that Syngenta
remains at the cutting edge of genomic
science, whilst accelerating the progress
of innovative products to market.

Under the agreement, to be completed

in early 2003, Diversa will acquire certain
technology rights from Syngenta for
pharmaceutical applications in exchange
for equity. Syngenta will relocate its

plant genomics programs-including its
pioneering work with the rice genome-
from California to Syngenta Biotechnology
Incin North Carolina to form a combined
gene identification capability.

Since 1999, Syngenta and Diversa
have been collaborating through

their Zymetrics joint venture on the
development of enhanced animal feed.
Zymetrics is forecasting its first product
launch in 2004.

NP I
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Bringing Biotechnology to Market
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. The futire of Syngenta depénds oa!

innovation. Biotechnology is animportant
tool for modern agriculture, and with

the creation of a new Plant Science
organization in 2002, Syngenta focussed
its effarts in this area. The aim is to

bring the best new ideas in biotechnology
10 market.

“Syngenta is our entrée into the future.”
Wally Kunerth, US Food processor

The market environment for products
enhanced through bictechnology is
complex. Use of this innovative technology
in agricuiture continues to divide opinions
around the world. Political and consumer
attitudes are polanzed: while in the
Americas and Asia, benefits such

as better protection from pests and
improved efficiency for the grower are
already being realized, in the European
Union, consumer acceptance is low

and Is impacting the regulatory framework,
which remains stalled and incompiete.

Syngentais convinced that biotechnology
offers growers and consumers a powerful
method of improving food, feed and fiber
production and quality, while contributing
to sustainable global food production.
The Company is developing the technology
in a responsible and safe manner and

is openly and transparently engaging in
dialogue with interested parties. The

aim must be for high, uniform standards
of regulation that instil confidence,
without impeding intemational trade in
food and commodities.

Plant Science will give emphasis to the
commercialization of near-term projects
that are aligned with the strangths of the
Crop Protection and Seeds businesses.
Some of these, described here, are within
five years of commerdal launch,

Animal Feed with Increased Processing
Efficiency and Poliution Reduction
An essential component of livestock feed
is phosphorus for healthy growth and
bone development. Supplementation is
vital because the phosphorus, which is
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naturally present in animal feed in the
form of phytates, is hard to digest. Thisis
a particular problem fer animals such as
poultry and pigs. 8ut adding phosphorus
to animal feed can create environmental:
problems. High levels of manure rich in
phosphorus are a major source of pollution,
especially in modern reaning facilities.

In 2004, together with its joint venture,
Zymetrics, Syngenta intends to launch

a product that uses microbial processes
to produce an enzyme additive for animal
feed. The enzyme, phytase, breaks down
phytatesinthe diet, releasing phosphorus
in 8 form that can be digested by animals,
5o avoiding phosphorus supplements.

As well a5 reducing phosphorous pollution,
phytase also leads to increased weight
gain and better production efficiency.

Syngenta is also working on a second-
generation product, which is grown
directly in corn, the major ingredient

of animal feed. This offers a cast effective
product to succeed microbial phytase
and is expected to launch around 2007.

Insect Controlin Cotton

Syngenta is developing a new type

of insect resistant cotton, which

offers season-long contro! of a broader
spectrum of pests than currently available
technolcgies, including protection

from fall and beet ammyworms.

its novel mode of action will provide

an alternative to existing products
based on Bt insect protection, and offers
growers both enhanced effects and
greater insect resistance management

SYNGENTA  +41 61 3235461

Plant Science:

Bringing Biotechnology to Market

options. Pending regulatory approval,
first commercial availability is expected
Inthe United States in 2004,

Corninput Traits

Corn growers are looking for a package
that provides them with herbicide
tolerance options, resistance to corn
rootworm and broad lepidopteran
control in the same crop. Syngenta has
technologies that address all three,

These traits, together with Crop Protection
and Seeds products, will complete an
integrated grower offer in corn. The
Company expects to introduce the traits
individuaily and combined in "stacked”
form between 2005 and 2007,

Long Shelf Life Banana

The retail value of bananas in the US
alone is nearly $2 billion. But browning
in the fruit bowl continues to be

a common frystration for consumers.
Syngenta is working on a genetic trait
with the potential to extend the life

of bananas considerably, an important
feature of appeal not only for consumers,
but also for growers, shippers and the
retail trade. The first long life banana

is expected to reach supermarket shelves
in the US in 2007,

More Efficient Production of
Renewable Fuel

As more focus is put on renewable
saurces of pawer, many countries are
looking to agriculture to supply energy.
In both North and South America, there

are significant government subsidies

for ethanol production from crops as a
component of vehlicle fuel. The US Senate
has called for a tripling of the use of etharol
for this purpose. Ethanol is produced

by using an enzyme (amylase) to break
down starch into sugars, which are then
fermented by yeast to produce alcohol,

Syngenta has a project to produce

corn enhanced through biotechnology
that expresses high levels of amylase.

By using high amylase corn for ethanol
proguction, itis estimated that improved
process efficiency will lead to substantial
environmental benefits and a ten per cent
production ¢ost saving, These first

carn varieties have an anticipated launch

- inthe US in 2007.

Galden Rice

The vast majority of people depending
on rice live in developing countries,
Syngenta is continuing its research into
developing rice that promises important
health benefits for those areas of the
world. The Company continues to

* syppart the hurhanitarian effort 1o develop
."Golderi Rice” as one potential solution to

Vitamin A deficiency, which is responsible
for 500,000 cases of irreversible
blindness and one to two million deaths
in underdeveloped countries each year.
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“The elimination of widespread poverty,
hunger and malnutrition in a manner
that is compatible with the protection
of the environment is the foremost
challenge to humankind.”

Per Pinstrup-Andersen, International Food
Policy Rescarch Institute

Syngenta operates in an essential and
complex industry. its activities are
fundamental to society: helping farmers
to produce the yields and quality of
crops needed o support an increasingly
demanding population, This industry faces
the tremendous challenge of supporting
the increase of the world's food supply,
confronted with an expected population
increase from six billion ta eight billion
by 2025 and a growing need for higher
quality food. Syngentais conscious that
such an important task requires the
establishrent of the highest standards.

The next pages highlight how Syngenta:

- maintains a strong health, safety and
environmental performance

~involves employees in shaping a high
performance environment

- ensures thorough product stewardship:
the safe handling and use of its products

~delivers on its responsibilities to
communities in the developed and
developing world

Health, Safety and Environment

A strong Health, Safety and Environmental
performance is essential to the Company’s
business success. To achieve excellence in

this area means continuous improvement
and setting ambitious targets.

Autherities around the world strictly
regulate crop protection products and
high value commercial seeds to ensure
worker protection, consumer safety

and environmental impact, But the aims
of Syngenta go beyond compliance.

In particular, its expertise and capabilities
put the Company in an excellent position
to help develop sustainable agriculture
systems and become a well-respected
contributor in the debate on the future
of ¢rop production.

The Syngenta Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE) management system
functions at a global, regional and local
fevel. HSE policy, commitments and
objectives are set by the Company and
implemented at all facilities.

Group and regional HSE managers provide

technical support to facilities. They also

help to carry out audits, which take place

atall sites, In addition to internal audits,

Syngenta is currently implementing a

Lompany-wide external audit scheme.
B Y . Cre

oo

inconducting business, the Syngenta ” Code
of Conduct” guides every employee toward
the highest standards of athical behavior
and responsibility. Together with business
performance, this is the foundation onwhich
the reputation of Syngenta is being built. L
Safety . ~ o
In 2002, maintaining a safe working
environment was made a high
., priority, with HSE goals included in
© 1 management objectives worldwide.
.25 B glabalconference was held for all
‘sémior managers o underscore thie
importance of HSE considerations for
the business and to introduce the
Syngenta HSE Policy and Commitments.

HSE improvement programs have now
been established in all fadlities, and safety
training is an integral part of this process.
These programs are already delivering
substantial benefits, demonstrated by a
34 per cent reduction in the recordable
accidentrate in the last year. With a

26 per cent reduction in incidents
resulting in time off work, these figures

‘ represent a significant improvement

and place Syngenta amongst the top
performers in the chemical industry.

A safe workplace is an essential right,
protected under the International Labor
Organization agreements. Safety is part
of the corporate reporting procedures,
and managers are held accountable for
the safety record of their departments.
Worldwide, the Company conforms to
the US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) standards.
Datais collected in three categories:

~injuries involving time off work -
lost time injuries

~OSHA reportables ~ serious injuries
réquiring more than first aid

- injuries requiring no more than first
aid — minor injuries

o e

p .
Rrecordable Injury Incidemts

Recordable injury inadent rate per 200,000 hours worked
2001 1.15
2002' Q.76
' 34% reduction

Lost Time Injury Incidents

Lost time injury incident rate per 200,000 hours worked
2001 0.54
2002 0.40
! 26% reduction
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Occupational Heaith

A new occupational health reporting
system was introducedin 2001. Al iliness
cases are investigated and measures taken
10 prevent regccurrence. Since 2001, . -

NTA
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Environmental and Social Responsibility

constantly reviewed to identify ways of
increasing efficiency and minimizing waste
In doing 50, Syrgenta aims to meet or.
exceed environmental requlations, legal
requirements and international agreeenents.»

there has been a significant reduction’ -

in the number of incidents mvolvnng

exposure to chemicals, In 2002; the " -, ,'

principle challenges involved adverse ;
reactions and stress-related conditions.
To help reduce stress-related illnesses,
several sites have initiated schemes to
increase health awareness and encourage
a more balanced lifestyle amongst
employees. More are planned for 2003.

Environment

Syngenta is determined to maintain and
further enhance its strong envircnmental
performance. One of the most

important HSE commitments is to minimize
environmental impact and optimize

the use of natural resources,

In particular, to achieve this the Company
intends to further:

~increase the efficiency of waste water
treatment

- reduce air emissions through process
improvements

—implement actions to remediate soil
and groundwater contamination

Programs 1o enhance environmental
performance are in place at every
manufacturing site. Processes are

N Itis lmportant to set ambitious yet
achievable targets. The data reported -

in 2002 will form the basgline for
setting these.’ .

- Air Emissions

The Company's chemical manufacturing

operations amit a range of substances

10 the air. Among these are nitrous oxides
(NOx), particulates (very small particles)
and volatile organic compounds

(VOCs - substances that contain carbon
and that evaporate easily),

Some air emissions might be considered
as contributing to climate change and
are known as “greenhouse gases”.
They include carbon dioxide. Total
emission of carpon dioxide in 2002

was 448,650 tonnes,

Syngenta recognizes the potential impact
of all its air emissions and has monitoring
and improvement schemes in place to
reduce them.,

~ Energy
Syngenta constantly looks for waysto reduce

-, energy use through'greater efficiency

and choice of fuel. This saves resources
- and reduces carbon digxide emissions.

- Waste
Preventing and reduqng waste is essential
1o save resources and minimize costs.

+ This is an important issue for Syngenta,
and waste minimization programs
are implemented at all major sites.

- Off-site Waste Dispasal

Syngenta takes very seriously its
responsibilities regarding the potential
impact of its waste in off-site disposal
facilities. The Company addresses this
issue by regularty monitoring and assessing
the status of such sites. This is done in full
cooperation with requlatory authorities,
using internationally agreed methods.

— Effluents

The Company’s manufacturing plants
produce effluents —water-borne wastes -
which are released under permit after
treatment. Constituents include nitrogen
cornpounds, phosphates, soluble

salts and heavy metals, All pesticides
discharged are kept within legal limits,
and manufacturing sites continuously
investigate ways of removing them from
effluent streams.

Occupational lliness Cases Energy Consumption Disposal of Hazardous Waste
Total number of occupational illness reports: 125 Total enengy consumption: 25 337 Tera Joules (T)) Total ameunt of hazardous waste: 153 083 tonnes
W Respiratory W Electsciy o Re-use
W Other chemically related N Gas B Recovery
W Advarse reacticns & Steam @ Teeated
< Strass & Other & Incineration
B Upper limb disorder Landfill
B Skin B Orther
Biological agents
Air Emissions Effluent Discharge Disposal of Non-Hazardous Waste
Total air emissions: 1 773 tonnes* Total effluent discharge: 184 533 tonnes Total amount of non-hazardous waste: 159 094 tonnes
50, p TOC B Aeyse
| NOx f A T} W Recovery
W Particulates 8 Coo B Treated
8 HCl & Nitrogen 33 Incineration
NH3 M Soluble salts Landfill
B Halogenated YOCs B Other

“Excluding carbon dicxice™ NenNalogenated VOCs
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People

Agribusiness s fundamental to food
production, strictly regulated, and a very
competitive industry. itis particularly
important for Syngenta that its employees
are committed 1o the highest standards
worldwide. To attract, retain and develop
the best talent in the industry, Syngenta
has to provide a stimulating and rewarding

Open and transparent communication
is an important aspect of the new and
evolving company cuiture, Syngenta
carries out regular consuitations to
ensure that its actions are aligned with
the aspirations of employees and other
stakeholders, Last year a company-wide
survey gathered anonymous feedback
frorn emgployees around the world.
16,000 people participated — a response

workplace. The basis for this is laid out rate of over 80 per cent. This survey
for employees in publications such asthe  provides an important channel for
Employee Prospectus. employees to cantribute to shaping the

Employee development is essential to
maintain a high performance company
culture. In 2002, Syngenta set up new
training schemes that focus on leadership
development and foster specific skills
critical ta business success in changing
and increasingly demanding markets.

Theexpectations of the Company havebeen
widely communicated te employeesin
documents such as Vision and Principies.

A commitment to high ethical standards
is enshrined in the Code of Conduct.

Permanent Full-time Employees 2002

Company’s future,

Results showed that confidence in the
Company’s strategy and its ability to
innovate is high. Employees believe

" that Syngenta carries out its business

with integrity, and there is a high level
of mutual trust.

Survey results are segmented for each
business unit and compared with those
af high performance companies. This
formed the basis for specific programs,
which have been initiated 10 implement
ongoing improvement.

Manufacturing Research and General and
Crop Protection and Supply Seeqs’ Development  Adminstration
EMEA 1847 4504 2226 2016 502
NAFTA 1005 1253 1136 754 -
APAC 1303 1201 464 195 -
AAME v - 706 . . 518 v, ...323 .. 76 -
.. T M X ﬁ " ". -
Totel 2001 20838 2
 Total 2002 20030
o \\%gﬁs&eé‘sééusbevehpmem

P
e Rl . v
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»o.y ProductStewardship

Over its 40 years of use, GRAMOXONE®
has played an important role in the

Syngentabelieves that its responsibilities’. 1, development of mihimum tillage practices,

go beyond regulatory compliance to -
secure its Jlong-term business success’ - -

Tk The Company has made a firm

; cemmnment to product stewardship -
- ensuring thatits products are used
safely without causing harm to people .
or the environiment.

Training and Education

Training is fundamental to product
stewardship, For many years, Syngenta
has run extensive programs in both
developed and developing countries,
teaching farmers and their families how
to handle agricultural chemicals safely.

Year after year, these initiatives reach
millions of growers and thousands of

government workers, distributors, teachers

and doctors. They are often carned out

in conjunction with government agencies
or local growers’ associations and others
interested in promoting safe practices

in farming communities. Content

ranges from basic instruction on the

safe handling of products through to
educational courses and research projects
on sustainable agricultural techniques.

Especially in developing countries,
far-reaching stewardship pragrams are
essential, as often a large proportion

of the population is directly involved

in agriculture, and state-supported
educational schemes are scarce.

The Company has developed “Train-the-
Trainer” programs for agricultural training
services, distributors and retailers so that
the benefits of training can be multiplied.

Particular emphasis has been placed on
GRAMOXONE®, a widely-used herbicide
that provides unique benefits for
smallholders and plantations, especially
in tropical regions. In the past year, some
organizations have expressed concerns

about the safe use of this product. Syngenta

takes these concerns seriously and
addresses them openly and transparently.

xmereby reducing soil erosion. At the

" same time, it has raleased significant
numbers of people from arduous hand
weeding, allowing many women and
children in developing countries to
take advantage of opportunities

+Outside manual agricultural work,

In Costa Rica, Syngenta works

in partnership with the healith and
agriculture ministries as well as
smallholder cocperatives to carry

out product stewardship programs,
These lead to an official diploma, which
improves the ability of farm waorkers to
find jobs. 2,500 teachers and 60,000
students were reached in 2002,

In Vietnam, up to 70 per cent of the
popuiation are farmers and three
quarters have never received training
of any kind. Last year, Syngenta
tutored more than 85,000 people in
30 [ocations on the safe and effective
use of crop protection products.

Over the last ten years, more than
240,000 schooichildren in Brazil
have taken partin a project that
provides agricultural education in
rural areas, with a focus on
environmental awareness and
sustainable farming techniques.

With a capacity for 2,000 visitors

a day, the Syngenta Farmer Training
Center in Shouguang in China
develops and teaches methods

of improved and sustainable

¢rop production for this country.

The Syngenta Crop Productivity
and Farmer Training Center at
Santa Rosa in the Philippines has
provided training in integrated
crop management for more than
12,000 farmers.

"GRAMOXONE® comes with technical
assistance, which other products don't
offer. We learn how to apply it properly.
You won't find the same kind of
stewardship with others.”

Oscar Medrano, Guatemalan farmer
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Environmental and Social Responsibility

" Products and the Environment

To Syngenta, environmental stewardship
involves far mare than the continuous
evaluation of its products. The Company
dedicates substantial resources and
expertise to helpmprove farming methods
as part of its gverall commitment to
sustainable agriculture. This uses the
latest techniques and technologies to
optimize the use of natural resources,
while protecting the fong-term social
and econormic viability of farming.

Advances in science continually improve
the understanding of how chemicals
behave in the environment. The
regulatory framework for crop protection
products ensures high safety standards.
Registration of these products is controlled,
autharized and closely monitored by
national or regional authorities, such as
the US Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and autharities from Member
States of the European Union,

However, environmental care does not
end with a registration. Syngenta makes
a substantial investment in ongoing
moniteAng of its;products to further
understand thefr behavior, imprave.
their effectiveness and4ce help minimize
their environmental impact.

For example, over the past year, atrazine,
a selective herbicide particularly important
to corn growers in the US, has been the
subject of public and scientific debate.
This has centered on the behavior of

the compound in groundwater and its
potential impact on amphibians. To
monitor the use and effects of the produg,
Syngenta has developed comprehensive
water monitoring programs, water
guality databases, cooperative research
projects and watershed management
schemes, The Company has funded a
multi-disciplinary panel of scientists

to conduct independent research and
examine potential effects of atrazine on
fish, amphibians and regtiles. Syngenta
also supports ongoing independant
studies at several universities to fully
investigate the potential effects of
atrazine on a variety of amphibian species
and is working closely with the US EPA,

Anather topic that has received public
attention is the existence of obsolete stocks
of ¢rop protection products in developing
countries, These become obsolete when
they are unfit for further use or for
reconditioning and can cause disposal
problems. Syngenta has been working

" with the industry association CropLife
JIntérnatiortal to identify and minimize

£environmental impact of such stocks.
Syngenta is voluntarily providing
assistance for the disposal of products
found in these conditions and is
contributing to the efforts of CroplLife
to help prevent future accumulation
of those stocks.




17 MAR 2009 10:23

30

} e
Andrew Bennett, Executive Director

)

SYNGENTA #4161 3235461

NR. 1483 S0 18

Environmental and Social Responsibility

b

Y
e
-
~

" ¥This new membership will increase

the resources availablefor solving
the problems of poverty, hunger and

under development.”

lan Johnson,CGIAR

The Syngenta foundation for
Sustainable Agriculture

The Syngenta Foundation for Sustainable
Agricutture supparts research projects on
sustainable food security in the poorest
regions of the world. t performs scientific
work to encourage public discussion

of nutriticnal problems, and makes
contributions on sustainable agriculture

In 2002, the Syngenta Foundation

was admitted as a member of the
Consuttative Group on international
Agricuitural Research (CGIAR), a
consortium of public research institutions,
governments and foundations dedicated
to using science to alleviate poverty in
developing countries.

This, and the appointment of Andrew
Bennett - with over 35 years’ experience
in international development in Africa,
Asia, Latin America, the Pacific and the
Caribbean - as the new Executive Director,
will further strengthen the Syngenta
Foundation’s capabilities and influence,

in developing and industrialized countries.

In addition 1o its research and
collaborations on international
agricultural policy relating to food
security, the Syngenta Foundation has
three principal development projects:

= in partnership with the government
of Mali, the Foundation supports a
research station in Cinzana to explore
pest and disease resistant grain, and
to establish new ways for cultivation
techniques to be adapted in various
agro-ecological zones in the Sahel.

-the Sustainable Land Management
projectin Entrea conducts research in
water and soil conservation. With
collaborators from the Universities of
Bern and Asmara and the Eritrean
Ministry of Agriculture, this project aiso
aims to strengthen the infrastructure
of Eritrea’s agricultural institutions to
support local development initiatives.

—waorking with national and international
research institutions in Kenya, new
varieties of corn resistant to devastating
insect pests are being developed.

More information about the Syngenta
Foundation for Sustainable Agriculture
is available at
www.syngentafoundation.com
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Communities

Beyond logking after the needs and
interests of customers, employees and
shareholders, Syngenta makes an
important contribution to the communities
inwhich it operates. The Company
concentrates its efforts on projects that
have a particular relevance to its core
activities or where its employees play

a significart role.

In 2002, community support programs
included donations to alleviate hunger,
local educational projects and support

for farmers hit by natural disasters.

-

inthe US, employees a1 the Greensboro,
North Carcling, site help nearby high
school students gain experience with
gardening and horticuiture. Last year,
the Company made a donation of
$200,000 to support a new program
targeted to the recruitrnent, retention
and recagnition of teachersin
agricultural sciences. Syngenta also
donated $200,000 to America’s
Second Harvest to help address rural
hunger in the US, bringing the
Company total to $800,000 donated
to food banks in North America.

In Germany, following the scenes

of devastation witnessed across the
waorld after the extensive flooding in
the Eastern region, Syngenta donated
EUR 250,000 to support farmers, who
were severely hit Dy this catastrophe.

In Switzerland, Syngenta sponsors
educational, sociaf and cultural

events around its sites in Basel, Stein,
Dielsdorf and Monthey. These sites are
regularly open to visitors. Neighbars
who want to know mere about
Syngenta activities are given tours of
laboratories, factories and greenhouses.
A “learning laboratory” is open to
schools for educational purposes.

In China, Syngenta has established
a partnership with the Ministry of
Agriculture to sponsor 120 students
each year, working on sustainable
agricuiture research projects,

In Argentina, which is suffering
severe economic difficuities, Syngenta
asked its employees to nominate
charities that needed support. The
Company now supports churches,
schools and soup kitchens, providing
aid in the form of food and clothes.

Employees in Brazil have organized
a number of educational projects.
Throughout the year, the Company

. | offers.extra sports lessons to over
*|-500 students.
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The Company policieson Corporate  Capital Structure

Governance are in accordance with

Swiss lawy, the ‘Swiss Code of Best . Capital and Shares

Practice” and the Swiss Stock Excliahge =2 The:nominal shark capital of Syngenta AG
Directive on Corporate Governange, . " iS€HF 1,125,645;840,fully paid-in and
They are consistentwiththe "' “divided into 112,564,584 registered shares.
requirements and practice of thecapital  Each share has a par value of CHF 10.

. markets where Syngenta is listed, . Each share recordel and registered under
- namely Switzerland, the United States,  a shareholder name in the Swiss share
the United Kingdom.and swedén. register of Syngenta AG entitles its holder
" " toonevote. All shareholders are entitled
The following information is in to equal dividends.
accordance with the Swiss Stock
Exchange Directive on Corporate Changes of Capital
Governance which entered into For detals regarding changes of share
force on 1 july 2002, capital, reserves and available earnings,
please refer to the information contained
Group Structure in the Notes to the Financial Statements

of Syngenta AG in the Financial Report**,
For details regarding the structure of
the Company's operations, associates
and joint ventures, please refer to the
information contained in Note 32 to
the Group Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Financial Report™*,

Significant Shareholders

In the financial year 2002 MFS Investment
Managernent reported a holding of
5,256,336 Ordinary Shares and
1,964,629 ADSs (American Depositary
Shares) of Syngenta AG, corresponding
10 5.02 per cent of the share capital.

As of 31 December 2002 Syngenta AG
itself held 11,023,465 shares in treasury
comresponding to 9.79 per cent of the
share capital, Furthermore, as of

31 Decemnber 2002 to our knowledge no
other single shareholder held a position of

five per cent or greater.
Group Structure Chart
[ Sharehoiders ]
)
[InternalAudit Board ofIDirectors |
[ Executive Committee ]
—— Global Functions:
~Research and Technalogy
- Global Operations
=Finance
-Legal and Taxes
—Human Resources
[ L
[ Crop Protection | | Seeds ] [ PlantScience |
=4 Regions* =4 Regions * Biotechnology
~ 5 Product Lines ~2 Product Lines - Traits

* Regions: Europe Africa and Middle East, NAFTA, Latin America, Asia Pacific
** The Financial Report can be accessed on the Internet in the section “Financial Information”
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Board of Directors

Syngenta is led by astrong and experienced
Board. It includes representatives from
four nationalities, drawn from international
business and scientific backgrounds.

It brings diversity in expertise and
perspective to the leadership of a complex,
highly regulated, global business, The
Board of Directors is elected by the
shareholders and holds the ultimate
dedsion-making authority of the Company,
except for those matters reserved

by law or by the Company's Articles of
incorporation {o the shareholders.

-

[

' The Arucles of Incorporation of Syngenta AG
€3N De accessed on the intermet (www,syngenta.com)
in the section ~ About Syngenta”,

_— - Pi_erie"u'a‘?doft
.o +Director o
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Heinzimhot

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Syngenta,
Chairman of the Chairman’s Committeg and member
9f the Compensation Commitee, Previously

Heinz imhof was Head of Novartis’ Agribusiness
division and a member of the Novartis Executive
Committee (1999 ~2000), Deputy Exective Head
Novartis A%nbusmess and Head of Novartis Seeds
{1996 - 1988), Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Sandoz Corporation in New York
(1993~ 1993) and additionally Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of Sandoz Pharmaceuticals
Corporation in East Hanover, New Jersey, Curmently

| leinz 'mhof is a member of the Supewiwr
Committee of SGC! (Schweizerisehe Gesellschaft
far die Chemische Ingustrie), in addition to

being Chairman of the Foundation Board of the
Syngenta Foundation for Sustainable Agricuityre,
xgraduated from the Swiss Federal Institute of

Technology in Zurich with a degree in agronomy.

Sir David Barnes

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Syngenta,
member of the Chairman's Committee and the
Compensation Committee, Sir David is currently
Non-Executive Director of Prudential PLC, in addition
to being a Board Member and Trustee of the British
Red Cross and of Ashridge Management Ccllege.
Previously he was Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
of AstraZeneca(1999~2001) and Chief Executive
Officer of Zeneca Group PLC (1993 - 1998). Sir David
stuchied veterinary sdence at Liverpool University,

Peggy Bruzelius .

Director of Syngenta and Chaimnan of the Audit
Committee, e%?y Bruzelius s cumently Chairman
of Grand Hote{ Holdings and Lancelot Asset
Management AB. In addition she serves as Director
of AB Electrolux, Scania AB, Ratos AB, AB Drott,
Axfood AB and as a Seniar Advisor to Lehman
Brothers Ltd. Previously she was Chief Exeautive
Officer of ABB Financial Services (1991-1997),
Executive Vice President of SEB-bank (1997 - 1998)
and 8 member of the Swedsh Board of Government
Bank Support Autharity (1991 -1993),

Peggy Bruzelius holds an MBA from the Stockhalm
School of Economics.

Peter Doyle

Director of Syngenta. Peter Doyle is currently a
Non-Executive Director of Avidex Lid, in addition to
being Chairman of the UK Biotechnology & Bidlogical
Sciences Research Council and a Trustee of the
Nuffield foundation. Previously he served as
Non-Executive Director of Oxagen (1999 -2002),

. Non-Executive Director of Oxford Molecular PLC

%1 997 -2000), Director of Zeneca Group PLC

1993~ 1599) and as a Director of IC} {1989~ 1923},
Peter Doyle holds 3 BS¢ (Hons) degree in pure science
and a PhD in chemistry from Glasgow University.,

Rupert Gasser

Director of Syngenta. Rupert Gasser is currently
Nan-Executive Director of Lonza Group AG and a
mamber of the Scientific Advisory Board of Alcon
Laborgrories Inc, Formerly he was Executive Vice
President of Nestié SA (1987 -2002), Head of
Strategic Business Group | (Coffee and Baverages,
Milk and Feod Senvices)and Head of Corporate
TechnicaManufactunng wortdwide (1991=7996),
and Senior Vice Presigent at Nestec SA (1990~ 1891).
Rupert Gasser %radgated fromthe Technical
Academy for Chemical Industry in Vienna with
adegree in chemistry. .

-

f Syngenta and member of the Audit
rmittee, Pierre Landolt is currenty Diregter of
gvartrs AG, Chairman of AxialPar, Ecocarbon LLC
and CITCO, in addition to being Executive Chairman

of Moco AgFropecuaria Ltda and Vice Chairman of

Parmigiani Fleurier. Pierre Landolt serves as President
of the Sandaz Family Foundation. He graduated with
a Bachelor of Laws from the University of Paris Assas.

« Commisiéelan

Michael Pragnell

Chief Executive Officer, Director of Syngents and
member of the Chairman’s Committeg, Previously
Michae! Pragnel was Diractor of Astraleneca

(1999 -2000) and Director of Zemeca Group PLC
(1997 -~ 1999). He joined Zeneca Agrochemicals as
Chief Executive Officer in 1985. Prior to 1995 he
worked for Courtaulds PLC in a number of seniar
positions {1975~ 1995), including Executive Director
of Courtaulds PLC (1890 - 1895), Chief Finandial
Officer of Courtaulds PLC (1992~ 1994) and

Chief Executive Officer of Courtaulds Coatings
(1986 - 1892). Michael Pragnell has served a§
Vice-President ul Crup Life ey iationadl sirite 2001,
He has a degree in modern languages from Oxford
University and an MBA from INSEAD.

fedro Reiser .

Director of Syngenta and Chairman of the
Compensaton Committee, Pedro Relser is currently
Chairman of £S8ATech AG, Previously he served as
Director and Advisor of Novartis Pharma K.K. Japan
(1899-2001), as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Novartis Pharma K.K. Japan (1995 - 1939)
and of Holvis AG (1990~ 1995). Pedro Reiser studied
law at the University of Zurich and graduated from
the University of Geneva with a PhD in political science.

Martin Tafylor
Director of Syngenta and member of the Audit
Committee. Martin Taylor is currertly Chairman

of WHSmith PLC 2nd an international advisor to
Goldman Sachs internatianal, in addition to being
8 Director of RTL Group SA and Antigenics Inc.
Previously he was Chief Executive Officer of
Bardays PLC (1993 ~1998) and of Courtaulds
Textiles (1990 -1993). Martin Taylor has a degree in

 oriental languages from Oxford University.

Peter Thompson
Director of Syn&enta. Peter Thgfmfpson is currently
President and Chief Executiva Officer of PepsiCo

Beverages intemational. Previously he was President
of Pep&iCo Foods Internaticnal’s Europe, Middle €ast
and Africa Division (1995-1996), and of Walker
Snack Foods In the UK (1994~ 1995). Prior o 1995
he was President and Chief Executive Cfficer of
Grand Metropolitan Foods Europe (1992 - 1994).
Peter Thompson has a degree in modern languages
from Oxford University and an MBA from

Columbia University.

Rolf watter

Director of Syngena and member of the Audit
Committee, Rolf Wattar has been a partner in the
law firm Bar & Karrer in Zurich since 1994 snd
serves as a part-time Profassor at the Law Schoal of
the University of Zurich, He is g Director of 2urich
Financial Services AG, Centerpulse AG, Forbo
Holding AG, Feldschitisschen Getrinke Holding AG
UBS Altemative Portfolio AG and AW, Faber-Castell
(Holding) AG, in addition to being 3 Board member
of Swiss Lawyer's Association. Rolf Watter graduated
from the University of Zurich with a doctérate in law
and holds an LLM degree fram Georgetown
University; he is admitted to the Bar &f Zurich,

Felix Weber i

Dirggtar of,Syngenta and member of the Chairman's
the £ompensation Committee.

Falix Webér is currently Senior Vice President

and Ghief Finandal Officer of Adecco SA. Previousty

_* hewas an associate and partrer in McKinsey &

Company (1984 - 1997). Felix Weber graduated
from the University of St Gallen having eamed

8 MBA in operations research and finance and

3 PhD in marketing.
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Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors

The Board exercises full and effective
control of the Company as set out in the
Swiss Code of Obligations andinthe *, ..
Articles of Incorporation of Syngenta AG.. ,

The Board of Directors has in particuldr '~ >,

the following non-transferable and -+,

inalienable duties: N R

- the ultimate direction of the business
of the Company and the giving of the
necessary directives;

- the determination of the organization
of the Company;

~ the administration of accounting,
financial control and financial planning;

~ the appointment and removal of the
persons entrusted with the
management and representation
of the Company;,

- the uitimate supervision of the persons
entrusted with the management of the
Company, spedfically in view of their
compliance with the law, the Articles of
Incorporation, regulationsand directives;

- the preparation of business reports
and the shareholders’ meetings and the
carrying cut of the resolutions adopted

- by the shareholders’ meetings;

- the adoption of resolutions concerning
the increase of the share capital to the
extent that such power is vested in the
Board of Directors as well as resolutions
concerning the confirmation of capital
increases and respective amendments
to the Articles of Incorporation;

N
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- the examination of the professional
qualifications of qualified auditors;

responsibilities. Other members of
Management attend as deemed

- the natification of the court if Inabnlmgs i1y, PAcessary by theBoard;

exceed assets.

The Board of Djrectors takes an active
role in the review and enhancement of
Corporate Governance within Syngenta.
In addition the Board of Directors regularly
reviews its own and top managemént’s._
performance and takes responsibility for
succession planning.

During financial year 2002, the full

Board held five formal one day meetings.
Furthermore, Board members conducted
discussions with officers of the Company
to review relevant matters at hand, visited
operating [ocations of the Company and
pravided information to Management

as needed, The Chairman of the Board,
after consultation with the Chief Executive
Officer, determines the agenda for

the Board meetings. Any member of

the Board of Directors may request the
convention of a meeting or the inclusion
of items of business in the agenda,

The importance of being fully informed
on material matters that impact Syngenta
is recognized by the Board. The Board
ensures that it has sufficient information
to make the appropriate decisions
through the following means:

~all members of the Executive Committee

are regularly invited to attend Board
meetings to report on areas of their

Director Tarm of

Name Age Nationality Function since Office
Heinz Imhof 60  Swiss Chairman 2000 2004
Sir David Barnes 66  British Vice-Chairman, 2000 2004
Non-Executive Director
Pegqgy Bruzelius 53  Swedish Non-Executive Director 2000 2003
Peter Doyle 64  British Non-Executive Director 2000 2003
Rupert Gasser 64  3Swiss Non-Executive Director 2002 2004
Pierre Landolt 55  Swiss Non-Executive Director 2000 2003
Michael Pragnell 56  British Chief Executive Officer 2000 2004
Pedro Reiser 67  Swiss Non-Executive Director 2002 2003
Martin Taylor 50 British Non-Executive Director 2000 2005
Peter Thompson 56  American Non-Executive Director 2000 2005
Rolf Watter 44 Swiss Non-Executive Director 2000 2005
Felix Weber 52 Swiss Non-Executive Director 2000 2005

The activities performed by Syngenta AG's
Non-Executive Directors apart from
their duties as members of the Board of

Syngenta AG, are not directly related
10 the Company. All Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

o7 " +allBéard committees regularty meet
,+ % ith members ofManagement and

outside consultants, including the
Group's externat auditors;
~ informal contacts bétween Directors and
_the Chairman aswell as regular distribution

.+ of important information to the Directors.

The Company’s “Regulations governing
the internal organization” and the
Committee Charters set out in detail
the pawers and responsibilities of the
Board and its committees.

Chairman of the Board

The Chairman of the Board is nominated
by the Board, and shares responsibility.
for the strategic direction of Syngenta
with the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).
He ensures dose liaison between the Board
and its Committees and the CEQ. n
consultation with the CEQ, the Chairman
supervises implementation of resolutions
of the Board and of its committees.

The Chairman of the Board represents,
jaintly with the CEQ, the interests of the
Company as a whole to authorities and
business associations, both in Switzerland
and internationally.

Board Committees

Some of the Board's responsibilities are
delegated to the Chairman's Committee,
the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The Board
committees meet on a regular basis. They
are provided with the materials necessary
to fulfill their duties and responsibilities,
and to provide full reports to the Board.

Chairman’s Committee

The Chairman's Committee consists of
four members appointed by the Board:
the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and ane
other Director. This Committee prepares
the meetings of the Board of Directors
and comments on matters falling within
the Board's authority before decisions

are taken. It is also empowered to make
decisions on behalf of the Board where
the latter has delegated such authority.
Members of the Chairman’s Committee
are Heinz Imhof (Committee Chairman),
Sir David Barnes, Michael Pragnell and
Felix Weber. During 2002, the Chairman’s
Committee held seven meetings.




Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four
members appointed by the Board. They
are all independent Directors. Its duties
are to examine reports from external and
internal auditors and to submit findings
tothe Board. The Audit Committee
assesses the quality of the financial
reporting and prepares Board decisionsin
this area. Furthermore, it reviews critical
accounting policies and financial control
mechanisms. The Audit Committee also
monitors and reports on the performance
and independence of the auditors.
Members of the Audit Committee are
Peggy Bruzelius (Committee Chairman),
Pierre Landolt, Martin Taylor and Rolf Watter.
Ouring 2002, the Audit Committee held
three half-day meetings.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee consists
of four members appointed by the Board:
the Chairman of the Board and three other
Directors, It regulates the compensation
of the Directors and the remuneration
and terms of employment of the members
of the Executive Committee. Members

of the Compensation Committee are
Pedro Reiser (Committee Chairman),

Sir Cavid Barnes, Heinz Imhof and

Felix Weber. Michael Pragnell sttends the
meetings of the Compensation Committee
as a permanent guest, Curing 2002,

the Compensation Committee held four - *, -

SN

half-day meetings.
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Chairman’s Audit Compensation

Name Committee Committee Committee
Heinz Imhof ) *
Sir David Barnes ° .
Peggy Bruzelius [
Peter Doyle
Rupert Gasser
Pierre Landalt o
Michael Pragnell .
Pedro Reiser ®
Martin Taylor ®
Peter Thompsaon
Rolf Watter e
Felix Weber . [
e = Committee Chairman
Internal Audit Elections and Terms of Office

As an inspecting and monitoring body,
Internal Audit carries out operational audits
and system audits, All organizational
units, associated companies, and
foundations are subject to audit, its duties

“are assigned by the Audit Committee and

it submits its reports to the Chairman
of the Board. Any suspected irregularities
must be reported without delay.

Cross Involvements

There are no ¢ross involvements among
the members of the Board of Directors
of Syngenta AG and boards of other
listed companies.

The term of office for each member of
the Board of Directors shall not exceed
three years. A year, within the meaning
of this provision, is the interval between
two ordinary shareholders’ meetings.
The term of office shall be determined for
each member at the occasion of election,
Terms of office shall be coordinated so
that, in each year, approximately one third
of all members of the Board of Directors
shall be subject to re-election or election.

The members of the Board of Directors
shall automatically retire after the lapse
of the twelfth year of office or, if earlier,
after the expiry of the seventieth year of
age, provided that the retirement shall
become effective on the date of the next
ordinary shareholders’ meeting following
such event.
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Executive Committee

1 Michael Pragnell
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Syngenta and
member of the Chairman's Committee. Previously
Michael Pragnell was Director of AstraZenecs
21999-200 ) and Director of Zeneca Group FLC
1997-1999). He joined Zeneca Agrochemicals as
Chief Executive Officer in 1995. Prior to 1995 he
worked for Courtaulds PLC in 2 number of senior
positions (1975 - 1995), induding Executive Director
of Courtaulds PLC (1990 =1995), Chief financial
Officer of Courtaulds PLC (1992 -1994) and
Chief Exequtive Officer of Courtaulds Coatings
(1986~ 1992). Michael Pragnel) has served as
Vice-President of Crop Life intemational since 2001,
He has a degree in modern lanquages from Oxford
University and an MBA from INSEAD.
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2 John Atkin

Chief Operating Officer of Syngenta Crop Protection

and a member of the Executive Committee, Previous

Iohn Atkin was Chief Executive Officer of Novarty - -
Crop Protection (1999 -2000), Chief Operatiar& o

Officer of Novartis Crop Protection (1999 -1
Head of Product Portfolio Man

., he was General Manager of Sandoz Agre France

A (1995~ 19_972 and Head of Sandoz Agro Northern
A Europe frofm

1993 - 1995). John Atkin gradugred -
from the University'of Newcastie-ipon-fynawith
3 PhD and a BS¢ degree in agricultiral zoclogy.

3 Jeffrey 8eard

Chief Operating Officer of Syngenta Seeds and a
member of the Executive Committee. Previously
leffrey Beard was Head of the Business Arca Corn
for Novartis Seeds (1999-2000) Prior 1o 1998,

he held various positions with Pioneer Hi-Bred
International In¢.(1985-1998), among others,
Director of Central European Operations, based

in Vienna, Austria (1993-1998), Jeffrey Beard
gradudted from the US Naval Academy with a 85
n snalytical management, holds an MBA from the
University of Wisconsin and received an MS degree
in agribusiness from lowa State University.

4 Bruce Bissell

Head of Global Operations and a member of the

Executive Committes. Previously Bruce Bissell was

Director of Supply Chain for Zeneca Agrochemicals

(1997-2000) and Head of International

Manufacturing for the pharmaceutical business

of Zdenecma:1 mg PC( 9*:-)2U-1997).E!ru::tehﬂ«scsigl(lJ
aduat trathdlyde University with a degree

gapplied chemistry,

§ john Elias

Head of Human Resources and, since September
2002, member of the Executive Committee.
Previausly John Elias was Director of Organizations|
Effectiveness of the BOC Group PLC (1994-2001)
and General Manager for Monsanto manufacturing
{1990-1993), John Elias graduated from the
University of Uiverpool adegree in psychology.

! ement of Novarts
2ot Crop.Pratection (1998) and Head of Insecticides
<3 % and Patron fof Asia{1997 - 1998), Prior to 1998

6 David Jones
Head of Business Development and a mamber of the

y, . . Executive Committee. Dawig fones was aogoimed as
~~¥Business Director for Zeneca Agrochemicals |

) ) nJune
1897, having been Regional Execuive for Asia, Africa

"> andAustralasia. based inHong Kondg, since 1992.
@

He.has a BSc and PhD in science and economics

from Stirling University in S¢otiand.

7 David Lawrence .

Head of Research and Technology and a member

of the Executive Committee since September 2002,
Previously he was Head of R&T Projects for Syngenta
(2000-2002). Pricr to this he had been Head
Internationsl R&D Projects in Zeneca Agrochericals,
having previously held several individual project roles
as Intemational R&D Project Manager for Fungal
Control, Crop Enhancement and Insect Contro!.
David Lawrance graduatad in chemistry from Kehle
College, Oxford, and holds an MA and D.Phifin
chemical pharmacoiogy from the same university.

8 Christoph Mader

Head of Legal and Taxes and a member of the
Executive Committee, Previously Christoph Mader
was Head of Legal & Public Affairs of Novartis

Crop Protection (1899 - 2000) and Senior Corporate
Counsel of Novarts International AG (1992 - 1698),
Christoph Mader is 2 member of the Supervisory
Committee of the Basel Chamber of Commerce.

He dg_raduaged from Basel University, Law Schoo,
andis admitted to the Bar in Switzerland.

9 Richard Steiblin

Chief Finandial Officer and a member of the
Executive Committee. Previously Richard Steiblin
was Head of Finance and Business Development

of Novartis Crap Protection (1998 - 2000) and
Head of Finance and Materials Management of
Novartis Crop Protection (1996 ~ 1698), He has

3ls0 been a member of the Novartis Crop Protection
Executive Committee since 1996, Prior t0 1996, he
was Head of Planning, Control and IT of Ciba-Geigy
Crop Protection (1991 - 1996), Richard Steiblin is

a member of the Supervisory Board of Gilde Europe
Food & Agribusiness Fund and of North American
Nutrition & Agribusiness fund L.P. He graduated
from the IECS, Strasbourg University, with a degree
in business administration.
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The Board of Directors has delegated
operative management of Syngenta
to the Executive Committee.

Chief Executive Officer

The CEO is nominated by the Board and
shares responsibility for the strategic
direction of Syngenta with the Chairman.
The CEQ is ultimately responsible for

the active leadership and operational
management of Syngenta and chairs the
Executive Committee, representing the
latter inside and outside the Company.

Corporate Governance

Members of the Executive Committee are
directly responsible to the CEO. The Chief
Executive Officer in turn ensures the
Executive Committee’s efficiency and
effectiveness to the Chairman, the
Chairman’s Committee and the Board.

The CEO represents, jointly with the
Chairman, the interests of the Company
as a whole to authorities and business
assaciations, bath in Switzerland
andinternationally.

NR. 1495 3

Executive Committee

Under the direction of the Chief Executive
Officer, the Executive Committee

is responsible for the operational
management of the Company. ft consists
of the CEQ, the Chief Operating Officers

. of the Crop Protection and Seeds

businesses, together with the Heads of
Syngenta’s functional activities: Finance,
Research & Technology, Global Operations,
Business Develuprient, Leyal & Taxes
and Human Resources.

Name Age Nationality Function Entry
Michael Pragnelt 56 British Chief Executive Officer 2000
John Atkin 49 " British Chief Operating Officer - Crop Protection 2000
Jeffrey Beard 52 American Chief Operating Officer — Seeds 2000
Bruce Bissell 56 British Head of Global Operations 2000
John Elias 53 British Head of Human Resources 2002
David Jones 53 British Head of Business Developrment 2000
David Lawrence 53 British Head of Research & Technology 2002
Christoph Mader 43 Swiss Head of Legal & Taxes 2000
Richard Steiblin 52 French Chief Financial Officer 2000
Compensation To motivate, reward and align performance,  In addition, CHF 3,155,256 was set aside
the ranges for individual and company for pansion and retirement benefits.
Executive Compensation performance-oriented variable

The Company’s executive compensation
principles aim to attract and retain
internationally oriented, successful
executives, to provide competitive rewards
in a competitive environment and to
support a high performance culture,

The total compensation for the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, members of the
Executive Committee and members of
the Senior Management Group consists of
a base salary, an annual cash incentive
and a long-term option incentive.

1

compensation, i.e. annual cash incentive
and long-term option incentive,

have beer set at levels ta help foster
shareholder alignment and to create

an entrepreneurial culture.

The aggregate amount of cash
compensation (salaries and bonuses)

in 2002 to the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer and the members of
the Executive Committee (a total of

ten people) amounted to CHF 10,971,344,

Year of Exercise Exercise

Number of Options Allocation Period Price
175000 2000 10 years CHF 76.50
13500 2001 < 10years.. CHF 83.70
56473 2002 10 years . © CHF98.00" -
109284 2002 11years” CHF98.00 -
2 Lo S e R

[ vearof ., - Exercise Exercise
Number of Options -~ "Allocation ~ " Period Price” *
32500 2000 10 years CHF 76.50
- 2001 10 years CHF83.70
13699 2002 10 years CHF38.00
12537 2002 11 years CHF 98.00

- As of 31 December 2002, the Chairman,

Chief Executive Officer and members of
the Executive Committee held 354,257
options on shares of Syngenta AG.

(See table 1)

Furthermore, as of 31 December 2002,
the aggregate number of shares of
Syngenta AG held by the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and members
of the Executive Committee, including
parties closely linked, was 30,453,

The exercise prices are equal to the
weighted average share price at the
Swiss stock exchange (SWX) of the five

. ‘buginess gays preceding the grant
date 23 determined by the Compensation

Comimittee and all aptions were granted

* atan exercise price which was greater

tharythe market price of the Syngenta
shares at the grant date. All of the options
vestin full and are exercisable after three
years, Each option gives the holder the
right to purchase one registered share

of Syngenta AG.
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Parties closely linked are (i) their spouse, -
(i) their chitdren below age 18, (jii) any
legal entities that they own or otherwise
control, and (iv) any legal or natural
person who is acting as their fiduc‘:ary. -

All Syngenta employees in Switzerland,
including the Chairman, Chief Execuvvé
Officer and members of theExecutivé

Committeecan panlopatenntheCompany%"

Employee Share Purchase Plan. This plan
entitled employees to subscribe on

13 November 2002 to shares at a discount
1ate of 50 per cont from the closing share
priceon 13 November 2002, The maximum
subscription per employee per year is
limited to & total value of CHF 5,000,

The shares have a blocking period of three
years. In the finandial year 2002, within the
scope of the Employee Share Purchase
Plan, the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and members of the Executive
Committee have purchased 456 shares.

Non-Executive Director Compensation
Each Non-Executive Director could opt
for payment in cash or a combination

of cash and options. The aggregate
amount of compensation in 2002 1o
the ten Non-Executive Directors

(cash compensation and options)
amounted to CHF 1,140,000, The total
amount of cash compensation paid

to the Non-Executive Directors in 2002
aggregated 1o CHF 788,000 and, a total
of 26,236 options were granted.

Directors are reimbursed for travel and
other nacessary business expenses incurred
in the performance of their services.

As of 31 December 2002, the
Non-Executive Directors held 58,736
options on shares of Syngenta AG.
(See table 2 page 37)

Furthermore, as of 31 December 2002, the
aggregate number of shares of Syngenta
AG held by Non-Executive Directors,
induding parties dlosely linked, was 12,928.
Parties closely linked are (i) their spouse,
(ii) their children below age 18, (iii) any
legal entities that they own or otherwise
contro!l, and (iv) any legal or natural
person who is acting as their fiduciary.

Compensation for Former Members
of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Committee

No compensation was rendered to former
mermbers of the Board of Directors or the
Executive Committee.

SYNGENTA 347 41 3
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Severance Payments and Loans
There were o loans granted to the
members of the Board of Directors or
Executive Committee during the year~"
under raview, and as of 31 December, -
2002, there were no loans outsrandnng
- Duting the year under review, no

< severance packageswere granted to

" membeérs of the Board of DJI’ECTOV’S or

Executive Committee. 5. " o
Highest Total Compensation

The highest total compensation paid

10 @ member of the Board of Directors

in the year under review consisted of

CHF 2,555,010 of cash compensation
(salary and bonus) and CHF 1,922,350
for pension and retirement benefits,

In addition 41,096 options were granted
to this mamber of the Board of Directors
under the Syngenta Executive Stock Option
Plan and 57 shares were purchased by
this member of the Board of Directors
under the Employee Share Purchase Plan.

Shareholders’ Participation Rights

Voting Rights

Fach registered share carries one vote

at the shareholders’ meetings of the
Company. Voting rights may be exercised

-only after a shareholder has been recorded

in the Company’s Swiss share register
(Aktienbuch) as a sharehalder with voting
rights. In accordance with Article 659a

of the Swiss Code of Obligations, the
Company cannot exercise the voting rights
relating to the shares held in treasury.

The dividend attributable t¢ the treasury
shares under control of the Company

at the date of the dividend payment

was waived, and therefore reduced the
total dividend payment made in 2002,
but not the amount of dividend per share,

A shareholder may at any time request
that Syngenta confirms the number of
registered shares owned by the shareholder
recorded in the Company’s Swiss share
register. Sharehoiders are not entitled,
however, to demand the printing and
defivery of certificates representing shares,

Representation Rights

A shareholder may only be represantad
at a shareholders’ meeting by his legal
representative, another shareholder
with the right to vote, proxies designated
in agreements with or regulations
relating to nominees, corparate bodies
(Organvertreter), independent proxies
(unabhangige Stimmrechtsvertreter) or by
abank or broker (Depotvertreter).

¥R 1438 S 12

Nominees
The Articles of Incorporation provide that

., Shareholders may register their shares in
o j “rghe rame of a nomifiee approved by the

Company and may.exergise their voting
nghts by giving instructions to the nominee
to vote ontheir behalf, However, a
nominee holding more than three per cent
of the Company’s share capital may be
registered as a nominee for shareholders

‘with voting rights only if the nominee

discloses the identity of those ultimate
beneficial owners of shares claiming
one per cent or more of the Company’s
share capital,

Syngenta is listed on four stock exchangss,
namely the SWX Swiss Exchange,

New York Stock Exchange, London Stock
Exchange and OM Stockholm Exchange.
in the US Syngenta shares are traded

in the form of American Depositary
Shares (ADSs), in the UK in the form of
Crest Oepositary Interests (COIs/Crest:
British Central Securities Depositary) and
in Sweden in the form of VPC registered
shares (VPC: Swedish Central Securities
Depositary), ADSs and CDIs are US and
UK securities, respectively, representing
Syngenta shares. Specialized nominees
administer those securities’ structures

in the US, UK and Sweden. These
nominees are registered in the Swiss
share register of Syngenta. Syngenta
ADS holders, CDI holders and VPC
registerad shareholders are entitled

1o attend the shareholders’ meeting

and to cast their votes as proxies of the
specialized nominees or alternatively

to give written instructicns to such
nominees on haw 1o vote on their
behalf. All shareholders (holders of
Swyiss registered and VPC registered
shares) and (DI holders are entitled to
equal dividend. Holders of ADSs will
receive dividends in proportion to the
number of Syngenta shares represented;
five ADSs represent one Syngenta share.

Statutory Quorums

The shareholders’ meeting passes
resolutions and makes elections, if not
otherwise required by law, with a
simple majority of the votes represented
(i.e., abstentions from voting shares
represented at the meeting having the
effect of votes against the proposal).
Under Swiss law and per the Company's
Articles of Incorporation, a resolution
passed at a shareholders’ meeting with
a supermajority of 66 ¥/ per cent of the
votes represented is required for :
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- an alteration of the purpose of the Changes of Control and Defense
Company; Measures
- the creation of shares with increased
voting powers; Duty to Make an Offer

- animplementation of restrictions on
the transfer of registered shares and
the removal of such restrictions;

- anauthorized ¢r conditional increase
of the share capital;

- anincrease of the share capital made
through a transtormation of reserves,
by contribution in kind, for the
purpose of an acquisition of property
and the grant of special rights;

- arestriction or suspension of
preemptive rights;

- achange of location of the registered
office of the Company,

- the dissolution of the Company
without liquidation,

In addition, any provision in the Articles
of incorporation providing for a stricter
voting requirement than the voting
requirements prescribed by law or the
existing Articles of Incorporation must be
adopted in accordance with such stricter
voting requirements, The Articles of
Incorporation of Syngenta do not contain
provisions setting farth stricter vating
requirements for shareholders’ meetings
than the voting requirements prescribed
by law and described above.

Convecation of Shareholders’ Meetings
Under Swiss law, an ordinary annual
shareholders’ meeting must be held within
six months after the end of the Company's
finandal year. Shareholders’ meetings may
be convened by the Board of Directors or,
in exceptional circumstances, by the
statutory auditors. The Board of Directors
is further required to convene an
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting

if resolved by an ordinary shareholders’
meeting or if requested by sharehclders
helding in the aggregate at least ten per
cent of the share capital of Syngenta.

Agenda

One¢ ormore shareholders whose combined
shareholdings represent an aggregate
nominal value of at least CHF 1 million
may demand that an item be included in
the agenda of a shareholders’ meeting.
Such a demand must be madein wr'rting
at the latest 60 days before the meeting .
and shall specify the itefs and the
proposals of these shareholders.

Under the Swiss Stock Exchange Act,
shareholders and groups of sharehalders
acting in concert who acquire more than
33 '/ per cent of the voting rights of a
company incorporated in Switzerland

of which at least one class of equity
sequrities is listed on the Swiss Exchange
must submit a takeover bid to all
remaining shareholders.

Clauses on Changes of Control
Neither the Chairman nor the Chief
Executive Officer nor any other member
of the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee has a service contract that
provides for benefits upon termination
of employment including termination
due to change of control.

Auditors

Ernst & Young was appainted as Group
auditor in April 2002 and the partner in
charge of the audit engagement assumed
this position at that time. Whilst a mutti-
year fee was agreed, the appaintment is
for one year, renewable annually, In 2001,
the Group joint auditors were KPMG and
PriceWaterhouseCoopers, Comparative
fee information is based on the combined
fees paid.

Fees

{US$ million) 2002 2001
Audit Services 4 7
Audit Related Services 1 -
Tax Services 1 2
Qther Services 1 5
Total 7 14

Audit Services are defined as the audit
work required to allow the independent
accountant to issue an opinion on the
statutory and regulatory filings of the

,Groyp and its subsidiaries. This category
- also incliides serviges that only the Group

auditor can provide, such as comfort

letters, statutory audits, attest services,
consents and assistance with and review-
of docyments filed with the US Securities

"and Efchange Commission.

Audtt Related Services include asurance
and related services (e.g., due diligence

services) provided by auditors but which
are not necessarily provided by the Group
auditor. These services in¢lude audit of
pension funds and employee benefit
plans, due diligence related to mergers
and acquisitions, internal control reviews
and consultation concerning financial
accounting and reporting standards.

Tax Services include all services performed
by the Group auditor’s tax division

except those services related to the audit.
ltincludes tax compliance, tax planning
and tax advice.

Other Services includes all services received
from the Group auditor except those
separately defined above. In 2002 this
indudes internal audit costs of US$ 1 million.
Ernst & Young was engaged to support
assignments of our own internal audit
department on the formation of Syngenta,
prior to the appointment as external
auditors. This was operational audit

and was under control of Syngenta

audit management based on an audit
plan assigned by the Audit Committee.
No internal audit service staff from

Ernst & Young was invaived in the audit
of the Group accounts. Whilst use of
these services is allowed within the current
guidelines of the US Securities and
Exchange Commission, plans are in place
10 bring this activity in-house in 2003.

Supervisory and Control Instruments
vis-a-vis the Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for
monitoring performance of the external
auditors, checking their independence
and coordinating their work with the
internal audit in addition to monitoring
implementation of findings of external
and internal auditors by management.
Furthermore the Audit Commitiee
evaluates and selects the external
auditors to be nominated for election
by the shareholders’ meeting. As an
additional duty, according to the

S Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the

, Augtit Cogmitteg pre-approves all

augit ‘and non-audit services rendered
by tHe mdependent auditor.

Shareholder information
For general shareholder information

and reporting dates, please refer 1o the
[ast two pages of this Annual Report.
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New US Legislation The Act intends to restore US investor
confidence in financial statements
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and management by: improving Chief.

On 30 july 2002, President Bush signed
into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Syngenta AG is listed on the New York . .
Stock Exchange and therefore certain ‘.,. =

provisions contained in the Sarbanes-- *
Oxley Act apply to Syngentaasa Fofe|gn
Private Issuer, Syngenta is in compliance
with the Act and the corresponding

ryles of the US Securities and Exchange
Commission applicable to the Company.

Executive Officer and Chief Fmancéf

well as the Chief Executive Officer’s and
Chief Financial Officer's certification of

%, thgfmanmal information, are available

mthe Form 20-F Aninual Report which

Officer accountability, regulating aaditcrsf‘ isexpected to be dccessible to all

. andlawyers, strengthening the rale

ofaudqt committees, prohibiting

- loanis to éxecutive dfficers and -

“directors, ephancing disclosyre ang
by strengthienirig enforcariient, - - .

More detailed disclosure with regard
to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

To the Board of Directors of
Syngenta AG, Basel

Basel, February 19, 2003

Review of Corporate
Govemance Disclosures

' You engaged us to review the corporate

governance disclosures of Syngenta AG
made pursuant 1o the Corporate
Governance Directive of the SWX

Swiss Exchange for the period ended
December 31, 2002, These disclosures
are made in a separate section (pages 32
t0 40) of the annual report. The board of
directors is responsible for the content of
these disclosures. Our responsibility

is to issue a report based on our review,

A review, which provides less assurance
than an audit, seeks to obtain moderate
assurance about whether the corporate
governance disciosures are complete
and free from material misstatement.

A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of company personnel that participated
in the preparation of the disclosures,

to reviews of pertinent documents,

and analytical procedures related to the

Ernst‘& Young Ltd

o Lo

Conrad Léffel
Swiss Certified Accountant

shareholders in the second half of
April on the internet {www.syngenta.com)

* in the section Financial Information.

corporate governance disciosures.
We have not performed an audit, and,
accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

Regarding the data for Chapter 5
(Compensations, shareholdings and loans)
of the Corparate Governance Directive,
we have also examined the infoermation
gathering processes. In addition, we
have requested a represantation letter
from the persons concerned.

In our opinion, the corporate
governance disclosures comply with the
formal requirements of the Corporate
Governance Directive. Ouring our

review, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the
disclosures are not complete or contain
materiai misstatements,

lorg Zorcher
Swiss Certified Accountant
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A summary of Syngenta's audited
consolidated financial statements
is provided on pages 44 to 46.

For full details and analysis of the Group’s
audited financial results, prepared in
accordance with IFRS, please refer to our
comprehensive finangial report which

is available on reguest or on our internet
site (www.syngenta.com),

Income Statement Review for
2002 vs, 2001

All narrative in this section excludes
special items {see p 44)

Sales during 2002 were 3% lower at
constant exchange rates; the benefits
gained from-new product introductions
and the breadth of the portfoio could
not fully compensate for continuing weak
agricultural markets, product phase-outs
and reductions in channel inventories.

In addition, competitive US herbicide
market was primarily responsible for a
1% decline in price; reported pricing
was also affected by the continued
depreciation of the Brazilian real, Sales

Financial Information

were pasitively impacted by 1% dueto
the depreciation of the US dollar,

Crep Protection sales, which account for
85% of total, were down 3% at constant
exchange rates. Sales of newly launched
products, in particular CALLISTO®,
ACTARA®/CRUISER® and ACANTQO ™,
increased by $192 million to $293 million
which more than affset the reduction in
sales of $129 miliion due to product
phase-outs.

Seeds sales were stable with continued
growth in vegetables and encouraging
sales from flowers compensating for a
decline in field crop sales in Brazil and the
US, particularly in corn, Performance

across all major crops in Europe was strong.

EBITDA improved by 5% at constant
exchange rates and the margin increased
by 0.8 percentage points due to reduced
cost and improved product mix through
range rationalization. A stronger Swiss
franc and the second half appreciation
of the Euro versus the US dollar reduced
EBMDAto 2%.

Summarized Income $tatement 2002 and 2001
Excluding spedial items {see page 44 for the Condensed Consolidated income Statement including special items)

[ e
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Earnings per share excluding special
items were up 19% to §2.61, helped

by lower financial expenses and a lower
tax rate. The underlying tax rate was
39% compared with 42% in 2001.

The improvement reflects continuing
improvement in the tax structure
following the creation of Syngentain 2000.

Special items reduced carnings per shere
by $2.87. Special charges of $396 million
before tax largely relate to restructuring
Costs associated with implementation

of the merger synergy program. In 2001
there were $277 million of special items,
being a charge in respect of merger

and restructuring ¢osts net of gains from
mandated divestments.

2002 2001
§m m
Sales 6197 6323
Cost of goods sold (3132 (3199)
Grass profit 3065 3124
Marketing and distribution (1146) (1178}
Research and development (697) (723)
General and administrative (582) (581)
Operating income 640 642
Assaciates and joint ventures ) (€)
Financial expenses, net (188) (249)
Income before taxes and minority interests o 445 388
Income tax expense ' (174) (164
income befare minarity interests 2 ‘ ’ Y i N 224
Minority interests e T {6) (1)
Netincome § ' ", 265 223
Eamings per share?
basic (5) ' EREL 2.61 2.20
diluted (S) ST e e 2.61 2.20
EBITDAZ ‘ B ] 1154 1127

1 The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used to calculate the eamings per share were as fallows: tor 2002 basic EPS, 101.5 million; 2002 dilutad EPS, 101.6 million;

2001 basic ang difuted EPS, 107.4 million,

2£80DA is defined as earnings before interest, 1ax, mincrity imterests, deprediation, amertization and impairment, Information concerning EBITDA has been induded as Tis used by investors
as one measure of an issuer's ability to service or incur indebtedness, EBIDA is not a measure of cash liquidity or financial performance under generally accepted accounting prindples
and Syngents s EBITDA measures may not be comparable 1o athar similarky tited measures of oUer eompanies. ERITDA shauld nat be construad as an altemative to operating inceme or
cash flow as determined in accordance wilh generally accepted accaunting principles.



Product and Regional Sales Analysis
for 2002 vs. 2001

Crop Protection
Sales in Europe, Africa and the Middle
East were unchanged. Growthcame ..

from neWproductmtroductxons b,

throughout the region and part:cularly
strong performances in Getmanys:. - ’,«, s
and Eastern Europe; sales in France

were |ower due to a contracting market,
increased fungicide competition and

the impact of a heavy phase-out

program which all adversely affected
sales, particularly in the fourth quarter.

In NAFTA sales continued to grow

in Canada and Mexico. In the US early
indications are of an increased overall
market share, Sales recovered in

the fourth quarter reflecting demand
aligning with spring consumption;
this followed channel de-stocking and
reduced shipments due to adverse
weather ¢conditions earlier in the year.
Sales of new products continued to
grow strongly.

The early implementation of risk contro!
measures in Latin America mitigated
the worst effects of the financial crises

in both Brazil and Argentina. In Argentina
a more robust business has been
established which has capitalized on
export-led agncultural demand: sales

for the year were up 50% and have
remained on a secure terms basis, In
Brazil the targeted reductions in channel
inventories and receivables, by 40%

in volurme and 25% of sales respectively,
combined with the continued depreciation
of the real significantly reduced

sales althcugh grower consumption

is estimated to have increased.
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. Achieved strong sales growth in the

Financial Information

In Asia Pacific sales were down due to

market decline. The impact of drought

in the faurth quarter in Australia and, = $396.million beforettax largely relate

product phase-outs of $17 million’” - "~ taitestructuring costs associated with

also contributed to reduced sales, CHfha: ™ ~irmplementation.of the synergy program,
Additlonal costs relate to the
restructuring of the.Seeds business in
Korea, cash ¢ost $4 million, and the
Jmpairment of intangible assets and

- goodwill relating to this and other smaller
Seeds acquisitions. Of the total amount
$148 million is a non-cash charge.

Other Financial Informatian
Special Items: Special items of

second half following a weak first

. half performance, initial estimates
indicate a ;tabfeoyeran roarket shaie. -
in the region’ the businéssis expected «
to benefit from the new go-to-market
strategies launched during the year

in Japan and Korea.

Seeds

Salesin Europe, Africa and the Middle
East grew across all major crops with
particularly strong performances in
vegetables, flowers, corn and sunflowers,
Early estimates indicate significant
market share gains in the fresh vegetable
produce sector.

>

Cash Flow and Balance Sheet: Free cash
flow of $551 million {200 1: $400 million)
exceeded first half expectations and

was due to a reduction in average trade
working capital equivalent to five per cent
of sales, reflecting an accelerated collection
of receivables in the second half and
certain pre-payments in the US. In 8razil
and Argentina net receivables now stand
at just below $300 million. The ratio of
trade working capital as a percentage

of sales at year end improved to 42%
(2001: 46%). Fixed capital expenditure
of $211 million was significantly

below depreciation.

In NAFTA declines in corn and
soybean sales more than offset growth
in vegetables and flowers,

The significant sales decline in Latin
America reflects the impact of the
Brazilian crisis, a reduced market affecting
corn sales and the implementation of
the risk reduction strategy.

At the period end, net debt was $1.7 billion
(2001: $2.2 billion) representing a gearing
ratio of 38% (2001: 54%).

Dividends: The Board has recommended
a dividend for 2002 of CHF 0.85 to be paid
from 5 May 2003, subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM on 29 April 2003,

in Asia Pacific, increased sales of field
crops, particularly in India, were more
than offset by a decline in vegetable
sales in Japan and South Korea, where
the business is being restructured.

o ey T
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Unaudited Product Line and Regional Sales Analysis with 2001 Comparatives

i Frst haif Second hatf Full year Full year growth
E 2002 2007 2002 2001 2002 2000 Acuall CER '
i im m m L s $m % %
Syngenta
Crop Protection 3256 3367 2004 2018 5260 5385 -2 .3
Seeds 646 664 291 274 937 938 - -
Total 3902 4031 22905 2292 6197 6323 -2 3
Crop Protection
Product Line
Selective herbiddes ‘ 1125 1224 481 498 1606 1722 -6 .7
| Non-selective herbicides 381 412 269 275 650 687 -2 -3
: Fungicides 871 887 527 505 1398 1392 - -1
§ insecticides 480 507 375 437 855 944 -7 -7
! Professional products 204 270 281 262 585 522 +6 +5
! Others ‘ 95 67 71 51 166 18 +19 +13
Total 3256 3367 2004 2018 5260 5385 -2 -3 -
! Regional
_. Europe, Africa and Middle East 1218 1211 701 659 1919 1870 +3 -
'{ NAFTA 1378 1433 436 454 1864 1887 -1 -1
) Latin America , 210 235 386 442 596 677 -12 -12
| Asia Pacific 450 488 431 463 831 951 -7 -7
| Total 3258 3167 2004 2018 5260 5385 -2 -3
! Seeds
! ProductLine
L Feld Crops 381 407 122 123 503 530 -5 -4
' Vegetable and Flowers 265 257 169 151 434 408 +6 45
Total 646 664 291 274 937 938 - -
Reglonal
Europe, Africa and Middle East 316 299 11 94 427 393 +8 +8
NAFTA 270 292 126 112 396 404 -2 -2
Latin America 33 43 32 45 65 88 -26 -26
Asia Pacific 27 30 22 23 49 53 .8 -8
Total 645 864 91 274 937 938 - -

+ Product (ing variances take into actount minor redassificavens made in 2002,
! Growh at constant excnange (ates (CER),
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Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
For the year to 31 December

ol e ~ 4' PR v
" Includmgspecla| nem; H‘: ', ‘Tspedal ftamns " . Exduding special items’
AR 2002 CFR08M, T 2000 0 208t ¢ 2002 2001
- [ . $m im R LI © 3m $m $m
Sales . N . 6197 6323 = - 6197 6323
Cost of goods sold LT e {(3132)"  (3199) - - (3132)  (3199)
Gross profit B ol e e 13068 3124 - ~ 3065 3124
Marketing and distribution ] (1148)  (1178) - - (1146)  (1178)
Research and development ’ ) (697) (723 - - (697} (723)'
General and administrative (582) (581) e - {582) {581)
Merger and restructuring costs, ‘
net of divestment gains {396) (277) (396) (277) - -
Operating income i 244 365 (396) {277) 640 642
Associates and joint ventures ) () - - {7) 5)
Financial expense, net ’ (188) (249) - - (188) (249)
income before taxes and minority interests : 49 m (396) 277 445 388
Income tax expense 70) (76) 104 848 (174) (164)
Income before minority interests . {21) 35 {292) (189) AN 224
Minority interests (B) ) - - ® ()
Netincome 27) 33 (292) {189) 265 223
Earnings per share? :
basic($) (0_:_26) 0.34 (2.87) {1.86) 2.61 2.20
dituted (S) (0.26) 0.34 (2.87) (1.86) 2.61 2.20
EBITDA3 . 892 936 (262) {191) 1154 1127

' The Condensed Conscliiated ingame Statemant including special items is prepared in accordance with international Finandial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

2 The weightad average number of ardinary sharcs in ssue usad ta caloulate the earaings per share were as (cliows: for 2002 basic EPS, 101.5 mikicn; 2002 dituted EF$, 101.6 million;
2001 basic and diluted EPS, 101.4 million,

JEBITDA s defined as earnings before interest, tax, minority interests, depreciation, amortization and impairment. Information concerning EBITDA has been induded as izis used by investors
as one measure of an issuar’s ability 10 service Of nCur indbtedness. EBITDA is not a measure of Cash iiquidity of financial performange under generally accepted accounting principles
and Syngenta’s EBITDA maasures may not be comparable t other similarly titled measures of other companies. EBITDA should not be construed as an alternative t operating income or
cash fiow as determined in aceondance with generally accepted accounting pringiples.

Impact of Special Items, net B
2002 2002 2001 2001

3m m §m §m
Income staternent charge -
Merger and integration costs . (28) M7
Restructuring costs -
Write-off or impairment of property, plant and equipment o (102) (84)
Non-cash pension restructuring charges R AL (12)
Cash costs . (220) (137)

Total {336) {233)
Gaing from mandated product disposals ~ 75
Impairment of intangible assets (32) (2)
Total spedial items, net (396) (277
Recondiliation of EBITDA to Operating Profit

Full year 2002 Full year 2001
Incuding Exduding Induding Exduding
Spedalhems Specialhems Specalftems Spedialitoms Specisthtems  Specialitems
m S §m $on $m m
Operating Profit 244 (396) 640 365 (277) 642
Loss from associates . 7 - & - (5)
bepreciation, amortization and impairment 655 134 521 S76 86 490

EBMTDA 892 (262) 1154 936 (191) 1127
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 Decernber

Financial Information
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2002 2001
m $m
Assets
Current assets -
Cash and cash equivalents 232 288
Trade accounts receivable 1602 1860
QOther accounts receivable 213 242
T Other current assets 516 214
Inventories 1704 1716
Total current assets 4297 4320
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2310 2348
intangible assets 2813 3004
Investments in associates and [gint ventures 95 103
Deferred tax assets 666 666
QOther financial assets 345 268
Total non-current assets 6229 6389
Total assats 10526 10709
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable (725) (687)
Current financial debts (1207} (1420)
Income taxes payable {210) (220)
Qther current lisbilities (794) (882)
Provisions (222) (231)
Total current liabilities (3158) (3440)
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial debts {925) (1116)
Oeferred tax liabilities (1098) (1159)
Provisions (915) {835)
Total non~urrent liabilities {2938) (3110}
Total liabilities (6096) (6550)
Minority interests (80) (73)
Total equity {4350) (4086)
Total liabilities and equity (10526) _ (10709)
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year to 31 December

A v 2002 200"
it Im {m
Operating income w oy .. 244 385
Reversal of non-cash items; e . _ ) , .
_ Depreciation, amortization and impaimient‘dn:" S T -_' . o ..
__ Property plantand equipment” ' .77 .- o ' ' 374 344
intangbleassets - 0T R 82 232
Gain on disposal of fixed assets e @6 (66)
Charges in respect of provisions - 432 452
Cash (paid)/received in respect of; N
Interest and other financial raceints and payments (_r_\gt) 17 (190)
Taxation ] N (191 _(258)
Merger and restructuring costs : —_— (246) ‘ (352)
Contributions to pension schemes . ’ e (209) (53)
Other provisions (49) (64)
Cash flow before working capital changes 394 419
Change in net current assets and other operating cash flows 408 138
Cash flow from operating activities 802 548
Additions to property, plant and equipment ) (165) {253)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 54 12
Purchase of intangibles, investments in associates and other financial assets (166) (57)
Proceeds from disposals of intangible and financial assets 6 12
Proceeds from business divestments 11 195
Business acquisitions (net of cash acquired) - (4)
Acquisitions of minorities B ~- (27)
Cash flow (used for)/from investing activities (260) (122)
Net change in Novartis AG debt - - {125)
Increases in other third party interest-bearing debt 511 1240
Repayment of third party interest-bearing debt . (1067) (1849)
Repayment of debts factored with recourse = (137)
Sale of Treasury stock . 3 3
Dividends paid to group shargholders ’ o (48) -
Dividends paid to minorities (6) -
Cash flow used for financing activities {607) (868)
Net effect of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents 2 (26)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (56) (468)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 288 756
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 232 288

' Comparative 2001 dala has been aligned with the new formar of the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement.
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Segmental Results for 2002
Excluding special items
Crop Plant
Pratectian Seeds Science Total
im Sm $m $m
Sales 5260 937 - 6197
Gross profit I 2579 436 o 3065
Marketing and distribution {909) (237) - (1146)
Research and development (425) (119) {153) (697)
General and administrative (500) (62) (20) (582)
Operating income 745 68 (173) 640
EBITDA 1214 109 (169) 1154
Segmental Results for 2001
Excluding spedial items
Crop Plant
Protecticn Seeds Science Totai
m im im m
Sales 5388 938 - 6323
Qross profit - 2645 479 - 3124
Marketing and distribution (948) (230) - (1178)
Research and development (458) (112) (153) (723)
General and administrative {501) (66) (14) (581)
Operating income 738 71 {167) 642
EBITDA 1173 114 {156) 1127
L&
Summary of Segmental Results for 2002 and 2001
Excluding special items
First half Second halt Full year
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
im $m im §m $m §m
Sales
Crop Protection 3256 3367 2004 2018 5260 5385
Seeds 648 664 29 274 937 938
Total 3902 4031 2295 2292 6197 6323
Operating income ‘
Crop Protection , ) 800 767 {55) (29) 745 738
Seeds ) 129 132 (61) (61) 68 71
Plant Science (82) (81) (e1) (86} (173 (167}
Total 847 818 {207) (176) 640 542
EBITDA . .
Crop Protection j . 1028 986 186 187 1214 1173
Seads R B 148 149 39) (39) 109 110
Plant Science ' e TRt e Tm o (80) {169) {156)
Total I . 1089 BRENTE 68 1154 1127
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48 Shareholder information

The shares are listed on the Swiss Exchange and on the London’ and Stockholm stock exchanges.
On the New York Stock Exchange, Syngenta shares are traded as ADSs (American Depositary Shares).?

~emt

_ T ool 270 Newvork Longon
Trading Symbols Stock Exchange StockExgpange, vt StotkExchange Stock Exchange
Shares e SYNN EYN Ut T ST SYA
Outstanding Shares at Year-end2002 . . - v . 0 % . 31 December 2002
Total outstanding shares o o i R . 112,564,584
Share Price and Market Capitalization at Year-end 2002 31 Dagember 2002
Share price (CHF) 80.05
ADS price (USD) ) i ‘ 11.52
Markst capitalization (CHF million) B128
Market capitalization (USD million) 5864
Reporting Dates
First quarter trading statement 29 Aprit 2003
Half year results 30 July 2003
Third quarter trading statement 22 Qctober 2003

A full form 20-F is expected to be accessible to all shareholders in the second half of April on the Internet (www.syngenta.com)
in the section Financial Information.

Syngenta’s Annual General Meeting wilt be held on 23 April 2003,

! Shs;reholdérs who hold Syrgenta shares through CREST hold their interest by means of dematerialized depositary inferests representing entitiernents to Syngents shares kngwn as CDis.
¢ Y gharg= 5 ADSs.
4 Of which 9,79% are held as treasury stock. For the purposes of calqulating market Capitalization and per share data, the number of shaces stands at 101.5 millien.

Syngenta Share Price
Relative Performance since 13 November 2000 = syngenta = M|

40
30 I\A

2 " A MW
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Investor Relations
T+41613235059
F+41613235880

US investors
T+19173222569
F+18173222570

Share Register
T+41623116125
F+41623116193

Shareholder Services
T+41613232095
F+41613235461

Media Relations
T+41613232423
F+41613232424

- . ezl Roiasy 5§
CYNGINTA 141 61 3235461 Ve G453 5 3
To order publications For the business year 2002, Syngenta has published we reports:
T«41613237579 the Anrwal Report and the Rnancial Report.

F+41613233966 These publications ar 2150 avaidizie on the IIMerMes www.syngems.com

’ Both dacuments were originally pubished in English.

Syngenta swi‘tchboard The Annual Repon 2002 350 avilabk n German.
T+41613231191, SymgsnlasrredtSHocala®, Basl, Switzeriand * |
F+416132312 12 A eths s, mma\cvmpmbh Februany 2003,

" r‘ ) ; woL ',

Des\m Addison ¢ e Market

Syngen‘a on the lnte"‘wt Photography: M«dm:ﬁema'n mﬁwwgm
WWAW, eyngenta com, . Pt Stives Burrups
Syngepta lnternanonal AG B PR
Commtinications and n u&w,ymmm regarding
Public Affairs forwantlooking statements

s Annual Review containg forward-looking statements, which can be idemtified
PO.Box by teminelogy such asedexpea' “would”, u';:" ;’zorer;gai” 'r;iayns ;

2 esnmated”®, "aim rilar uch
CHT4002 Basel ﬂggng:hn; maybes\am}edt::£gand :rn\(emm:s s expressions
Switzerand that could cate actual reruits to differ j1imLessatly from thess statements,

We refer you to Syngenta's publicly avallable fikngs with the US sccurmes sng
Exchange Comenssian fov infarmatlon about these and ather risks

uncerainties. Syngenta assumes no obligation to update forward-bokmg
statements to reflect actual resulls, changed assumptions or cther factors. This
dacument docs nat contitute, ar torm part of, aay offer o¢ invitauan

to sell s issue, or any sohcitation of any offer, to purchase or subscribe for any
orginary shaces in Syngenta AG, o Syngenta ADSs, nox shall it form

the basis of, o be relied on m connection with, any contrat therefore.
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
Management Discussion and Analysis "
Financial Highlights

Yaxr anded Docsmber 31,

(USS mAlian) 2002 2004 2000 1999 1998
Amounts in accordance with IFRS
Income statement data
Sales 6.197 . 6,323 4976 4,878 5.040
Cost of goods sold (3,132) (3,199) (2,442) (2,367) (2,430)
Gross profit 3.065 3,124 2,434 2,311 2.810
Operating expenses (2,821) 2,759) {1,434} (1,682) (1,884)
Operating income Wl 365 1,000 o440 728
incoms before taxes and minority interests 48 111 914 28 544
Net income/({loss) {27) 4 564 135 2098
Basic and diluted earnings/(1083) per share (8) (0.28) 0.34 7.61 1.897 4.35
Cash flow dsta
Cash flow from operaling activities 802 548 610 818 250
Cash flow from/(used for) investing activities (260) (122) 1.045 (283) A7)
Cash flaw fromv/(used for) financing activities (607) (8s8) (968) (350) 227
Capital expenditure (1858) (253) (185) (185) (201)
Bafance Sheet data
Working capital 1,139 880 (213) 289 229
Tolal agsets 10,526 10,709 11,816 6,593 7,074
Total non-current liabilities (2,938) (3,110) (2,147) (757) (774)
Total liabilities (6,096) (6.550) (7,504) (4,035) (4,410)
Share capital 867 687 667 - -
Total equity 4,350 4,086 4210 2,481 2,588
Other supplemantary Income data
EBITDA® 892 936 1312 713 967
EBITOA exciuding Special items ¥ 1.154 1,427 856 821 1,081
Amounts in accordance with US GAAP
Sales 5,197 6,323 4878 4,678 5,040
Net income/(loss) (185) (247) 180 64 169
Total assets (unaudited) 11,020 11,338 12,826 7,844 8,727
Tetal non-current liabilities (unaudited) (3,133) (3,300) (2.821) (1,175) (1,246)
Tetal equity 4,533 4,417 4,820 3,491 3,851
Basi¢ and diluted eamings/(10ss) per share ($) (1.62) (2.44) 243 0.83 2.46

F2
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysls
Notes

) Syngenia has prepared the conselidalad financial statemants in US dollane and in accordance with Intemationai Financial Rapening
Standards (IFRS), together with a reconciliation of nel income and eguily to US Generally Accapted Accounting Principles (US GAAP), The
basls of preparation of the consolidated financial stelemants and the key 86sounting policies are discussed in Notas 1 and 2. reapactivety, of

the consalidated financisl statements. For a discussion of the significant differences batwean IFRS and US GAAP, see Note 33 of the
conaolidated finaneel statements.

When reading the conaclidated financial statements, the fellowing needs to be considered:

Fer accounling and financiat purpoaes, the transactions farming Synganta are treatant as a pumhasa nf Zanana agrnheminals Misiness by
Novartis agribusiness with effect from November 13, 2000. As such. the consolidated financigl statements ¢o not In¢lude the financial resulls
of 2enaca agrochemicals business prior to November 13, 2000, and are not Indicative of the performance of Syngenta prior to this date,

The consolidated incoma statements for the tweive months anded Degember 31, 2002 ang 2001 represent the parformanca of Syngenta in
those penoda. The consolideted (ncome statement for the tweive moniks anded Decamber 31, 2000 is based malnly on the perfomance of
Novaris agnbusiness, with the results of Zenecs agrochamicais business teing included only following the formation of Syngerta on
November 13, 2000, The comparatives for 1999 and earler periods relste anly to Novartia agribuginess,

The consshdated balance sheet shown in the consolidated financial staternenis aa at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 contains the assets
and liabilities of Syngenta (repreaenting bath Novaris agribusiness and Zeneca agrochemicsls business); the 1990 and earlier comparative
figures contain only the assets and liatilitics of Novaris agnbusiness.

The cansolidated cash flow alatements far the welve months erded December 31, 2002 and 2001 repregent the performance of Syngenta in
those pericds, The conscligated cash fiow statement for Lha twelve monthe anded Dacember 31, 2000 consists mainly of the cash flows for
e full year of Nevartis agribusiness, with cash flows from Zaneca agrochemicsis business deing included only following the formation of
Syngenta on November 13, 2000, The comparatives for 1999 and earier pericds relals only to Novartis agribusiness,

Soma costa which heve been reflected in the consolidated financiat statemants for 2000 and eariar periods are not negessarily indlcative of
the costs thal Syngenta would have incurred had it operated as an independent, stand-aions srtily for all periods presanted. These costs
comprise sllocated Novartis carporate overhead, Interest expensa and incoma taxes. Unti! its combination whh Zemeca agrochermicals
business, Novartis agnbusiness was not managed sz a single strateglc business entity. instead, the Crop Protection end Seeds businesses
ware operated by separate management 1eams, which were coordinated with stralegic management at the Novantis hoiding company level.
Foligwing the menger with Zenaeca agrochemicals business, Syngenta I8 a single entity

) EBITDA is defined 83 earnings before interest, tax, minority interests, depraciation, amantization and impainment. Syngenta has incluged
Informstion conceming EBITDA because f is used by investers gs one measure of an issuer's ability to service or incur indebtedness.
EBITDA is not a maasure of cash liquidity or financial performance under gensraily sccepted sccounting principles and Syngenta’s EBITDA
measure may not be comparable |0 other simiiary ttled measures of other companies. EBITDA shadld Aot Be comstrued as an alternative lo
operating inceme of t6 cash fiow as determined in accordanca with generslly aecepled accounting principles, nor s 8 measure of Hiquidity er
indicator of Syngenta'a parfermange,

Spacial itema are matenal items that management regard as requiring aeparate disciosure 10 provide a mare thorough undersianding of
ongoing business performanca. Speciel items are comprised of US5396 million, US$348 million, US3281 million, USSE7 million, and US33
millon of rastructynng charges loc the yaars snded Decamber 34, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1939 and 1226 respeciively; US$3 million and USS68
millien of merger caste for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 respactively; and US341 million and US$128 million of {rade
recaiveble write-downs in Latin America, Russia and Ukraine for the years ended Oecember 31, 1998 and 1988 respectively, These charges

were partially offset by gaing on disposals of US$75 million, US$785 miliion and USS18 mitlion for tha years ended Decembar 31, 2001, 2000
and 1998 respectivaly.

F3
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW _

Syngenta is a world lesding agribusiness operating in the Crop Protection and Seeds businesses., Crop Protection
chemicals include herbicides, insecticides and fungicides to control weeds, ingect pests and digeases in ¢rops, and are
essential inputs enabling growers around the world to improve agricuftural productivity and food quality. Many of these
products alse have application in the professional products sectar in areas such as seed treatment and turf and
ornamental markets. The Seeds business cperates in two high value commercial sectors: sseds for field crops including
com, oilseeds and sugar beet; and vegetable and flower seeds. Syngenta is also developing a Plant Science business
{formerly New Technolegy) applying biotechnology to improve growers' yield and food quality. Syngenta aims to be the
partner of choice for Syngenta’'s grower customers with its unparalleled product offer, creating value for customers and
shareholders.

Syngenta’s resuits are affected, both positively and negatively, by, among other factors: general economic conditians;
waather conditions (which can influence the demand for certain products aver the course of a season); commodity crop
prices and exchange rate fluctuations, Government measures, such as subsidies or rules regulating the areas allowed to
be planted with certain ¢rops, also can have an impact on Syngenta's industry. Syngenta's resuits are also increasingly
affected by the growing importance of biotechnelogy to agricutture and the use of genetically modified crops.

Syngenta operates globally to exploit its technology and marketing base. Syngenta's largest markets are Europe, Alrica
and the Middle East (EAME), and NAFTA, which represented 38% and 38% respectively of consolidated sales in 2002
(2001: 36% and 36%, 2000: 36% and 35%). Both sales and operating profit are seasonal and are weighted towards the
first half of the calendar year, which largely reflects the northern hemisphere planting and growing cycle.

Manufacturing and Research and development are largely based in Switzerland, the United Kingdom and the United
States of Ameri¢a.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dellars, as this is the major currency in which revenues are
denominated. However, significant, butl differing propartions of our revenues, costs, assets and liabilities are denominated
in currencias other than US dollars, Approximately 23% of sales in 2002 were denominated in euros, while a significant
proportion of costs for research and development, administration, general overnead and manufacturing are denominated
in Swiss francs and British pounds stering, seles in which currencies together make up around 3% of total sales.
Marketing and distribution costs are more ¢losaly linked to the currency split of the sales. As a result. operating profit in
US dollars can be significantly attectad by movements in ex¢hange rates, in particular movemants of the Swiss Irane,
British pound stefling and the euro relative to tha US dollar, and the relative impact on operating profit may differ to that
on sales. In the second half of 2002, the US dollar depreciated against all major curren¢ies including the euro, Swiss
franc, British pound sterling and the Japaness yen, and for the full year, sales were marginally (1%) in¢craased by
exchange movements compared to 2001 exchange rates, whereas operating profit exciuding Special items was reduced
by 6%. During 2001, the US dollar appreciated against these currencies and reduced total 2001 sales by 3% compared
to 2000. The effects of currency fluctuations have been reduced by risk management activities such as hedging.

The consolidated financial statements are based upon Syngenta's accounting policies and, where necessary, the results
of management estimations. Synganta believes that the critical accounting policies and estimations underpinning the
financisl statements ara, (i) adjustments for doubtful receivables, (i) environmeantal provisions, (iil) impairment and (iv)
definad banefit pensions. These policies are described in more datail later in this report.

Results of operations for the years 2000 to 2002 reflect the impact of lew crop commaodity prices and difficult agricultura)
market conditions.

Fé4
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis

Sales by ragion were as follows:

Yoar onitted Decambdar 31,
{USS miilign) 2002 2001 2000
Europe, Africa and Middle East 2,346 2,263 1747
NAFTA 2.2680 2,291 1,680
Latin America 661 788 641
Asia Pacific 930 1.004 798
Total 8,197 8,323 4,878

2002 and 2001 results reprasent the resultz nf Synganta, which has integrated the legacy Novartie agribuciness and
Zeneca agrochemicals business. 2000 represents the results for Novartis agribusiness for 2000 plus two months of
Zeneca agrochemicals business. The notes to the Financial Highlights explain this in more detail,

Crop Protection

Tha Crop Protection market remained dlfficutt in 2002. Tha racovery in some crop commodity prices towards tha end of
the year was too late to impact Syngenta sales and it is not yet clear to what extent these prices wil! be sustained in 2003
and the extant to which this will impact damand and prices of inputs. Reduction in channai inverteries also continued
through the year in several major markets to align sales more closely to consumption, This was particularty successful in
Brazil, where Syngenta also constrained sales to control receivables and reduce credit risk in the face of high economic
and exchange rate voiatility. The produet phase-oul program, with 14 further active ingredients withdrawn in 2002,
reduced sales by US$129m but this wes more than offset by the successful roliout of the new preducts noted below. A
competitive USA herbicide market was primarily responsible for a 1% decline in prica, The weakness of the Brazllian real
also reduced prices in US dollar terms.

New product sales generated 4% sales growth compared to 2001 and more than offset the phase-outs from the range
rationalization programme. The new products (aunched in 2001 gained market penetration and further registrations in
new markets ware achieved:

CALLISTO® (mesotriona), a past-emergence com harbicide with a new made of action, exceeded expectations in the key
USA market and grew strongly in Germany:;

AGANTO™ (picoxystrobin), a new gengration strobilurin fungicide. contributed to growth in Germany and the UK and in
the final quarter registration and first sales in the major French market were achiaved;

ACTARA® and CRUISER® (thiamethoxam) algo ¢continued to panatrate the insecticide and seed treatment insecticide.
markets respactively,

In Europse, Africa and the Middle East, strong sales in Eastern Europe and panrticularly in Germany offset lower sales in
the major French market, where a cantracting market, increased fungicide compatition and the impact of a heavy phase-
out program all adversely affected results.

In NAFTA, ¢hannel inventory reductions, a competitive herbicide market and product range rationalizatien sll contributad
to lower sales in the USA, but this was offset by new product driven growth in Canada and Mexico and Crop Pretection
sales were only marginally dewn,

in Latin America, there was some recevery of sales in Argentina, all on secure terms. |n Brazil, sales were deliberately
constrsined to reduce recaivables and channel inventories and pricing was eroded by the significant devaluation of the
Brazilian real. Consumption at grower leve] in Brazil is estimated 10 have increased,

Sales in Asia Pacific were lower due to severe drought in Australia. product phase-outs and the reduction in channel

inventorias in Japan, allied to some consolidation in the multi-layered Japanese disiribution network. The growth of non-
selective herbicides in China continued,

F§
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
Seeds

The Saeds segment had a mixed pérformance in 2002 and overall sales ware flat at constant exchange rates.

Vegetable and flower sales grew in Europe and NAFTA and this compensated for a dectine In fisld crop sales in Brazil
and the USA, particularly in corn, Performance across all major ¢rops in Europe was strong.

Syngenta Operating Segments
Syngenta is organized on a worldwide basis into three operating segments, Crop Protection, Seeds and Plant S¢ignce.

The Plant S¢ienca sagment was referred tn as the New Tachnology segment in the 2001 ¢ongolidated financial
statements. The following tables set out sales and operating income by segment for ach of the periods indicated:

. Yaar ended Decamber 34,
[USS$ mitllon) ) 2008 2004 2000
Sales
Crop Protection 5280 5,385 3,918
Seeds 937 238 958
Total 6,197 8,323 4,876
Operating Income
Crop Protection 397 473 1,190
Seeds 20 82 3
Piant Scienca {173) (167) (125)
Unallocated {merger costs) - (3) (68)
Total 244 385 1,000

Operating income in 2002 includes US$396m of merger and restructuring costs, net of divastment gains substantially
related to the integration and restructuring of the combined businesses following the formation of Syngenta in November
2000. In 2001, the equivalent cost was US$277 million. Delivery of the planned synergies is ahead of schedule with
US$197 mitlion annual savings in 2002 and cumulative annual savings from 2001 and 2002 of US$362 million. Further
details are provided in Nolas 6 and 22 of the consolidated financ¢ial statements.

in order to obtain regulatery approval for the merger, Syngenta agreed to divest certain products and product rights, In
2001, completed divestments include the sales of the herbicide propaquizafop, the fungicide flutriafo! and tha insacticide
thiocyclam. 2001 sales in the period up to divastment were US$9 million for these products and product rights. 2001
divestments produced net gains of US$7S million (3ee Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements).

In 2000, completed divestments included the sale of the fungicide, Flint. These divestments, in the aggregate,
represented approximately US$125 million of sales and US$43 million of operating income for the year ended December
31, 2000 and US395 miltion of seles and US$37 million of operating income in the year ended December 31, 1999,
These divestments prodused a gain of US$78S million in 2000.

The expense recorded for defined benefit pension plans increassd from US372 million in 2001 (including US$10 million
of restructuring costs) to US$117 million in 2002 (including US$33 million of restructuring costs of which US$14 million
are non-¢ash costs) as a result of reductions in the discount rates used to value the benefit obligation and in the expected
rate of return on assets, and because the market value of assets was affected in 2001 by the genaral adverse fall in
equity prices,

The following pages contain references to constant exchange rates (CER), Variances at constant exchange rates are
¢calculated by consolidating the current year results of group entities reported in local currency into US dollars using the
average exchange rates used in the prior year, and comparing this with the consolidated results as reported for the prier
year,

Fé
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Syngenta Group Management Dlscussion and Analysis
2002 COMPARED TO 2001
Sales commentary

Total Syngenta consclidated sales for 2002 ware US$8, 187million, compared to US$6,323 million for 2001, The following
table analyzes the decrease in sales of 2%, 3% at constant exchange ratas (CER):

Full Year Growth
{USS millien) 2002 20 Actunl % CER %
Crop Protsction 5260 5,365 -2 -3
Seeds . 937 038 - -
Total 8,197 6,323 -2 -3

Crop Protection Sales

Growth rates in the following narrative compere 2002 actuais with 2001 actuals and are at constant exchange rates
{CER) unless otherwise stated,

Commentary on product permformance

Full Year Growth —

. 2002 2001 Aclual CER

Product line US$ mition us$ mnilen % %
Selective herbicides 1,608 1,722 -6 -7
Non-selective herbicides 650 687 -2 -3
Fungicides 1,388 1.392 - -1
Insecticides 855 944 -7 -7
Professional products 585 5§22 8 5
Othars 168 118 18 13
Total 5,260 5,385 -2 -3

(1) Produerline vadances ke Inlo account mtnor raclazeincatons made in 2002,

Herbicides are products that prevent or reduce weeds that compete with the crop for nutrients and water. Selective
herbicides are crop-specific and control weeds without harming the crop. Non-selective herbicides reduce ar hait the
growth of all vegatation with whieh they come into contact.

Fungicides are products that prevent and cure fungal plant diseases that affect crop yield and quality.

Insecticides are products that control chewing pests such as catemillars and sucking pests such as aphids, which reduce
crop yields and quality.

Prefessional products are herbicides, insecticides and fungicides used in markets such as seed treatment, public healith,
and turf and omamentals.

Selective Herbicidas: major brands BICEP® MAGNUM, CALLISTO®, DUAL® MAGNUM, FLEX®, FUSILADE®. TOPIK®
Total sales dectined for three main reasons: price pressure, largely in the USA, accounted for US$47million; range
rationalization of US$32 million; and voluime reductions in Brazil due o de-stocking, In com herbicides. sales of
CALLISTO® reached US$103 miliion following a strong first full-season of marketing; this more than offset tha decline in
DUAL®/ BICEP® MAGNUM due to the competitive US market. In soybeans, sales of FLEX® and FUSILADE® were also

lower with increased herbicide-tolerant crop (HTC) plantings, In cereals. sales of the grass herbicide TOPIK® daclined in
France, and in Canada and Austraiia due to drought.

FT
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Non-selective Herbicides: major brangs GRAMOXONE®, TOUCHDOWN®

Conlinued strong growth of TOUCHDOWN® Q™ in the USA was offset by lower sales in Brazil, New marketing
programs for GRAMOXONE® in Australia and China increased sales; in Japan and Brazil there was continued channet
de-stocking. Two years after the opening of tha Nantong plant, China has become the second largest market for
GRAMOXONES® after the USA.

Fungicides: major brands ACANTO™, AMISTAR®, BRAVC?, RIDOMIL GOLD®, SCORE®, TiLT®, UNIX®

First full-season launches in Europe, including a late fourth quarner taunch in France. of the new strobilurin ACANTO™,
resulted in sales of US$40 millien. This more than offset reduced sales of AMISTAR?, the largest product in the fungicide
portfolio, which were lower due to the introduction of a new competitor in France at the stant of the geason; there was
continued ancouraging growth in the USA, Japan and Brazil. Sales growth of SCORE®, in Asia and Eurcpe, and a
number of smaller products compenssated far lawer sales of RIDOMIL®, BRAVO® and TILT®, Underlying sales growth in
fungicides was impacted by the phase-out of older products (US$28 million),

Insecticides: major brands ACTARA®, FORCE®. KARATE®, PROCLAIM®, VERTIMEC®

ACTARA® achieved sales of US$B7 million, with broad-based growth and a particularly strong perfermance in the USA,
Sales of KARATE® benefited from strong growth in KARATE® ZEON ®in Germany. Reduced cattan plantings in Australia
and the USA combined with channel de-stocking in Brazil resulted in lower sales for a number of products, Over half the
decline in insecticides was due to phase-outs (US$35 million),

Professional Products: major brands CRUISER®, DIVIDEND® HERITAGE®, ICON®, MAXIM®

Sead Treatment saleés sustained very strong growth with sales of CRUISER® more than doubling to US$54 miltion, driven
by strong demand in North America in cotton and canola. Growth of MAXIM® continued in the USA and Brazil. Sales of
Turf and Omamentals were lowar with growth more than offset by product phase-outs (US$29 million). Public Heafth
sales were down due to reduced tenders for ICONC,

Commaentary on regional performance

Fufl Year Growth

- 2002 7001 Actual CER
Regional uss million uss mililen % %
Europe, Africa and Midd'e East 1,919 1,870 3 -
NAFTA 1,884 1,887 -1 -1
Latin America 596 877 =12 -12
Asia Pacific 881 951 -7 -7
Total 5,260 5,385 -2 -3

Sales in Europe, Africa and the Middle East were unchanged. Growth ¢ame from new product intreductions throughout
the region and particularly strong performances in Gemmany and Eastem Europe: sales in France were lower due to a
contracting market, increased fungicida competition and he impact of a heavy phase-out program which alt adversely
affected saies.

In NAFTA, sales continued to grow in Canada and Mexico. In the USA strong new product growth was offset by the
adverse effects of channel de-stocking, lower prices from a competitive herbicide market and preduct phase-outs.

in Lalin America, Syngenta continued to apply a light credit policy in the face of aconomic uncertainty and exchange rate
volatility in Brazil and worked to reduce channel stocks to bring sales more in line with farmer usage, This resulted in @
defiberate sales volume reduction compounded by lower US dolfar equivaient prces from the weaker Brazilian raal.
Sales on secure terms in Argentina showed good recovery from 2001 levels.

Sales in Asia Pacific ware reduced by channgl de-stocking in Japan, where there has baen some consolidation within the

muiti-layered channel, and the impact of severe drought in Australia. Product phase-outs reduced sales by USS$17
million.

Fo
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Syngenta Group Managemaent Discussion and Analysis

Seeds Salss

Growth rates in the following narrative compare 2002 actuals with 2001 and are at constant exchange rates (CER) unless
ctherwise stated.

Commentary on product performance

Pull Yaar Growth
N 07 " 201 Attual CER
Product line US$ million uss milllon % %
Field Crops 503 530 .5 -4
Vegstables and Flowers 434 408 8 s
Total 237 538 - -

Fleld Craps: major brands NK® corn, NK® oilzeeds, HILLESHOG® sugar beet

Sales of NK® com declined as growth in Europe was more than offset by increased penetration of hemicide-telerant com
in the USA and significantly lower sales in Brazil. Qilseeds salas increased slightly with a strong performance in
sunflowers in Eastarn Europe and growth in Latin America more than cffsatting reduced soybean saies in the USA, With
new germplasm, HILLESHOG® sugar beet performed well in a declining European market, Sales of genetically modified
product were stable and a¢counted for 17% of total Seeds sales.

Vegetables and Flowers: major brands S&G®vegetables, ROGERS® vegetables, S4G® flawers

S8G® vegetables sales continued to grow with particularly strong results from peppers, tomatoes ang melons in Europe
though partly offset by some decline in South Korea.

Sales of SAG® flowers increased primarily in Europe where the full commercialization of the propritary X-tray ™
System for young plants provided strong growth.

Commentary on regional performance

Full Year Grawth
Ragional uss mition USS miion . o
Europa, Africa and Middle East 427 393 8 &
NAFTA 388 404 -2 -2
Latin Amarica 65 88 -26 - 26
Asgia Pacific 48 53 -8 -8
Total 937 938 - -

Sales in Europe, Africa and the Middie East grew across all major crops, but with particularly strong achievements in
vegetables, Rowers, corn and sunflowers.

In NAFTA, daclines in corn and soybean sales more than offset growth in vegetables and flowers.

The significant sales decline in Latin America reflects the impact of the Brazifian crisis, a reduced market affecting com
sales and the implementation of the risk reduction strategy.

Growth in Asia Pacific field crop sates, particularly in india, was more than offset by a decline in vagetables sales in
South Korea and Japan.

Fg
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Operating Income
Unless stated otherwise, the following discussion is based on operating income excluding Special items.

Cperating income excluging Spetial items

Full Year Growth
{UBS miition, sxcept prowih %) 2002 2001 Actusi % CER %
Crop Protection 745 738 1 4
Seeds 68 71 -4 10
Plant Science (173) {167) -3 .
Total 640 /42 - 5
Crop Protection Operating income
Excluding Specin!
Totst Special tame itams
% growth
US$ milllon, excope growth %) 2002 2009 2002 2001 2002 2001 CER
Sales 5,260 5,385 - - 5280 5385 -3
Cost of goods seld (2.681) (2,740) - - (2,681) (2,740) 8
Gross profit 2,579 2,645 - - 2,579 2,645 -2
as a percentage of sales 49% 49% 49% 49%
Marketing and distribution (909) (848) - - (209) (848) 6
Resgearch and development (425) (458) - - (425) {458) 10
General and administrative (500) (501) . - (500) ©  (801) ]
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestmant gaing _(348) (285) (348) (285) L - -
Operating income 397 473 (348) (265) 745 738 4
as a percentage of sales 8% 8% 14% 14%

As a parcantage of sales, gross profit remained stable in 2002 despite the adverse effects from the strengthening of the
Swiss franc and British pound sterling against the US dollar and lower US dollar equivalent prices in Brazil. At ¢constant
exchange rates gross profit would have been 0.6% higher than 2001, argely from synergy cost savings. Operating
income increased by 1% in 2002 to US$745 million a5 cost savings mare than offset the impact of lower sales, and at
constant exchange rates was 4% higher,

Special items are merger and restructuring costs. net of divestment gains. In 2002 these restructuring ¢osts are
associated with the continued implementation of the synergy programs, and in 2001 represent merger and restructuring
costs associated with synergy programs, net of mandated product divestment gains. In 2001, mandated product

divestment gaing were USE75 million. The restructuring programs and related costs are discussed in more detait later in
this section.

Compared to 2001, marketing and distribution costs reduced by 6% at constant exchange rales, and research and
development costs raduced by 10%, both primarily due to the savings associated with synergy programs. Ganeral and
administrative ¢osts increased by 6% at constant exchange rates, largely due to the cost of projacts intiated in 2002 to
snhange business procasges and systems; this was offset by the inclusion of exchange hedging gains of US843 miliion,
which are excluded from the CER variance,

Crop Protection operating income for 2002 benefited from US$23 milllen of gains (2001: loss US$3 million) on disposals
of fixed assets, A final royalty payment of US820 million under a ficense agreement with Pfizer In¢, which has now
expired, was recaived during 2002, and is shown in General and administrative. Income from this licensa in 2001 was
US$25 millign,
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Seeds Oparating income

Exeluding Specisl
Tolal Special llams rtama
% growth

(UBS Million, 8xcopt qrowdh °A) 2002 2001 1002 200 2002 2001 CER
Sales 937 938 - - 937 838 -
Cost of goods sold (451) (458) - - (451 (458) 2
Gross profit 486 479 - . 486 479 2
as a percentage of sales 52% 51% - - 52% 51%
Marketing and distribution (237 (230) - . {237) (230) -1
Research and developmeant (118) (112) - - (119) (112) -4
Ganeral and administrative (62) (66} - - (82) (66) 8
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestment gains (48) (9} (48) 9) - -
Qperating income 20 62 {48) 9) ] 71 10
as a percentage of sales 2% 7% 7% 9%

Gross profit as a percentage of sales increaged by aimost 1% over 2001 due to strong growth in the high-margin
Vegetablas and Flowets businesses in Europe and continued cost cantainment initiatives in supply chain management.
Excluding the effects of exchange rates, costs below gross profit were flat overall and the gross profit improvement
generated 10% higher operating income.

Marketing and distribution expenses ingreased by 1% to US8237 miltion.

Research and development expenses ingcreagsed 4% for the year, partly with increasing costs to register GM products and
as the business took over full cortrel of the Orynova operation in Japan,

General and administrative axpenses decreased in all regions, with the consalidation of nan-custemer facing back-office
activities across the different Seeds crops contributing to the 8% raduction,

Special tems in 2002 are cash rastructuring costs related to Orynova and the South Korean business and the impairment

of tangible and intangible assets, relating to South Korea and other smaller Seeds acquisitions. Cash restructuring costs
in the above tetal US$6 million.

[
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Plant Sclence Operating Income

Exciuding Speclal
Totl Special items ltong

¥ growth
{US$ mililon, except growth %) 2002 2001 2002 200 2002 2001 CER
Sales - - - . - B -
Cosl of goods sald - - - - - . -
Grogs profit - - . - . . -
as g percantage of sales - - - . .
Marketing and distribution . . - . - . -
Research and develapment (193) (153) . - (153) (153) 3
General and administrative (20) {(14) - - (20) (14) - 30

Merger and restructuring costs, nat of
divestment gaing . - - .
Oparating income (1) (167) - - (173) (187) -
as g parcentage of sales - -

Operaling logses showed iittle change compared to 2001 as the synergy benefit in lower research costs was offset by
higher spend in readying tha business for commercialization,

Restructuring Programs

Following the formation of Syngenta on November 13, 2000 Syngenta embarked upon a plan to integrate and restructure
the combined Businesses in order to achieve synergies, Taken togethar, Syngenta expects that thase restructuring
actions will result in one-time cash charges of some US$1,000 million, and annual cost savings of around US$625 million
by the end of 2005. By the end of 2002, annual cost savings totaled US$362 million and cash costs totaled US$725
million.

Cost of goods sold realized savings of US$E0 million in 2002 due to the restructuring of giobal manufacturing and supply.
Further closures of manufacturing sites and tachnology centers were initiated during 2002, and activities &t remaining
sites are being realigned for cost bage optirmization.

Selling, general and administration expenges realized savings of US$21 million due to additional synergy delivary and the
full year effects of the integration of sales forces ang administrative functions carred out in 2001.

Cost reduction in research and development reflects the continuing intersite rationalization and focusing of research
activity.

In addition to the above programmes, Syngenta has initiated plans to restructure cartain parts of the Seads business,
acquired bafore the formation of Syngenta, where performance has not been in line with expactations, In particular,
restructuring plans are in placa for the South Korean Seeds business and the European cereals business. The cost of
the rationalization, including impairment of tangible and intangible (ixed assets acquired of US$40 million, totals US§48
million.

Totaf restructuring ¢harges in 2002 comprised US3248 miflion of integration, synergy and restructuring costs, US$134
millien of fixed asset impainments, and US$14 million of non-cash accounting writa-affs incurred in relation to defined
benefit pension plans as a ditect result of restructuring initiatives. The net charge was US$396 millian,
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Financlal Expense, Net

Financial expense, net wag 24% lower than 2001, Strongly positive operating cash flows reduced net debt by US$548
million, and group financing arrangements were enhanced by centralization of debt and reduction of cash balances

lgading to improved management of interest rates, increased control aver credit and relationships as well as an insrease
in tha sourcing of cost effective financing.

Taxes

The tax rate on ongoeing cperations was 39% In 2002 (2001: 42%). The astimated credit on Spacial tems was 26% as
tax rolief ic riol availablc tor all restrusturing costs, in panticular e inpainient of goodwlll, The tota! effective ax rate
was 141%, higher than the 88% recorded in 2001 mainly due to the higher lovel of restructuring charges in 2002,

During 2002, Syngenta reviawad the reslizability of the net deferred tax asset ralated to its Brazilian Crop Pretection
operations to take into account the effect of the depreciation in value of the Brazilian real. As a result, the valuation
allowance against this deferred tax asset was increased by US$27 miliion. The effact ¢f this charge on Syngenta's
effective tax rate on ongoing operations for 2002 was offset by the tax banefits associated with projests to improve the
sfficiency for tax purposes of the way Syngenta conducts its operations.

Net Income

Net income, befere Special items of US$386 million as defined in Note 3 to the Financial Highlights, was 19% higher than
the comparable figure before Special items for 2001. Thig increase is primarily due to much reduced financing costs and
the lower tax rate. Qperating income before Special items was stable compared to 2001, but % higher at constant
exchange rates, The acceleration in restructuring charges, particularly as the integration of prodyction and research
activities gathered pace, meant that a net loss of US$27 millien was recorded after Special items.

Other Suppiementary Income Data

EBITDA excluding Special items increased 2% in US doliar terms and 5% when the effects of cureney are excluded dus
to lower costs and benefils of improvad product mix through range rationaiization more than offsetting the impact of the
lower sales, The relatively higher proportion of Swiss fran¢ and British pound sterling costs comparad to sales meant
that exchange rates adversely affected EBITDA whilst marginally incraasing sales. EBITDA as a percentage of salas
incraased by 0.8% to 18.6%.

.
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2001 COMPARED TO 2000
Statutory and Proforma numbers

in arder te understand both the effect of the acquisition of Zeneea agrochemicals buginass by Novartis agribdsiness e
form Syngenta, and alse the underlying business performance in 2001 compared te 2000, Syngenta management
considers that it is nacessary to present 2000 finaneial information both on a statuwtery consolidated basis, and on a
proforma basis,

The statutery consolidated bagis, referred to as “statutory” in the tablas that follow, is prepared on the basis described in
Note 1 to the Financial Highlights, and is in accordance with [nternatienal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The proforma basis, refarred to as “proforma’ in the tables that follow, assumes that both legacy busineszes merged from
January 1, 1688, and excludes all products which have been divested in compliance with compaetition autherity mandates
far the formation of Syngenta.

Sales commentary

Statutory

On a statutory basig, total Syngenta consolidated sales for 2001 were USS6,323 mililon, compared to US$4,87¢ million
for 2000. The following table demonstrates how the increase in sales of 33% at constant exchange rates (CER) arose:

Full Year Growth
{UBY miliion, exeapt growth %) 2004 2000 Attual % CER %
Crop Protection 5,385 3,018 37 41
Seeds 938 - 958 -2 2
Total §,323 4,876 30 a3

The 41% rise in Crop Protection sales is primarily because of the Impact of a full year of Zeneca agrochemicals business
sales being contained in the 2001 saies; 2000 contains Zeneca agrochemicals business sales for November and
December 2000 only.,

Aside from thig, the ex-Nevartis Crop Pratection business sales declined 9% in 2001,

Adverse currency effects impacted total sales by 3%.
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The commentary on sales that follows is on a proforma basis.
Crop Protection Sales

Growth ratgs in the foliowing nerrative compare 2001 actuals with proforma 2000 end are at canstant exchanga rates
(CER) unless ctharwise stated.

Commentary on product psrformance

Full Yoar Growth
Actual Proforma

2004 2000 Actuad ‘ CER
Prodiint line 3§ il g minion % : %
Selective herbicides 1,722 1.841 -6 -3
Non-selective herbicides S 687 760 - 10 -5
Fungicides 1,302 1,541 -10 -§
Insecticides 944 1,069 -12 -6
Professional products 522 558 -6 -4
Others 118 118 -1 -
Total 5,385 5,008 -9 -5

Selactive Herbicides: major brands BICEP® MAGNUM, CALLISTO®, DUAL® MAGNUM, FLEX®, FUSILADE®, TOPIK®
in com herbicidas, sales of the market-leading brands of DUALY/BICEP® MAGNUM were up slightly and the successful
mid-season first introductions of CALLISTC® in Europe and the USA resulted in sales of US$27 million. In cersals. sales
of the grass herbicide TOPIK® grew strongly following the successful full launch in the USA and a sustained performance
in Western Eurgpe. FUSILADE®, aiso for grass cantrol, benefited from the delayed acceptance of herbicide tolerant
soybeans in Brazil. Lower sales in Argentina and of smallér and older brands led to the overall reduction in selective
herbicides.

Non-setective Herblcides: major brands GRAMOXONE®, TOUCHDOWN®

The succsssful launch of TOUCHDOWN® 1Q™ in the USA underinned strong grcwth for the TQUCHOOWNS® brand in
this market. This more than offset lower sales in Argentina and Brazil where the company has maintained its light credit
policy. The first full year of GRAMOXONE® production at the new Nantong plant, combined with the expansicn of the
figld force, resulted in further sales growth in China; this did not fully compensate for declines in the USA dueto a
reduced bumdown market, and in Latin America.

Fungicides: major brands AMISTAR®, RIDOMIL GOLD®, SCORE®, TILT®, UNIX®

Sales of AMISTAR?®, the largest product in the fungicide portfolio, were up 3%, henefiting from introductions in new craps,
particularly in the USA and Canada. SCORE?, a vegetabie and rice fungicide, continyed to grow strangly in both Asia
and Latin America. Thaese performances were insufficient to offset the unfavorable market conditions during the year,
particularly for careal crops in Narthem Europe and nen-field crops in North America, which resulted in reduced
treatments for UNIX®, TILT® and RIDOMIL GOLD®,

Insecticides: major brands ACTARA®, FORCE®, KARATE®, PROCLAIM®, VERTIMEC®

ACTARA® grew strangly during the year foliowing (aunches in the USA, Japan and india, Sgles of PROCLAIM®
sustained good growth following a second successful year on catton in Australia. KARATE® sales were lower averali as
voluma increases were insutficient to offset price competition in the USA cottan market. VERTIMEC® sales were reduced
by increased competition in the acaricides market. Qverall sales were down due to lower saies in Argentina and the
continued phase-out of less profitable, ¢lder and third-party products,

Profassional Products: major brands AVID®, BARRICADE®, CRUISER®, DIVIDEND?, HERITAGE®, ICON®, MAXIM®
Sales in Seed Trgatments incraased; CRUISER®, the new insecticide seed traatment, and the fungl¢ide sead treatments,
DIVIDEND® and MAXIM®, sustained goed growth. Turf and Omamental sales declined as a result of iow pest and

disease pressure in the impontant USA market, Reduced tenders for the insecticide ICON® impacted the Public Health
business,
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Commentary on regionaf parformance
Pull Year Growth
Actug! Proforma

. 2001 2000 Actual CER
Regional Uss milion U3S millien % %
Eurepe, Africa and Middie East 1,870 1,891 -8 .2
NAFTA 1,887 2,008 -6 -6
Latin Amarica 677 850 <20 -18
Asia Pacific 951 1,039 -8 1
Total 5,385 5,888 -9 -5

Sales in Europe, Africa and the Middle East were affacted by the arveree markat conditions in Westamn Europe. Good
salas growth was sustained in Eastern Europe.

In NAFTA, good sales growth in Canada and Mexico was insufficient to offsat the adverse effects of reduceg USA
acreages, a competitive USA cotton market and drought, which reduced markets in western and southem horticultura)
areas. In addition, there were inventory reductions In the distribution channel.

in Latin America, the maintenance of Syngenta’s tight credlt policy has resulled in a deliberate sales redustion, with
encouraging growth in direct marketing to large growers in Brazil insufficiant to offset the overall decrease.

Sales in Agia Pacific in the second half of the year benefited from changes in distribution arrangements and downastream

meves, primarily in Japan with the acquisition of Tomono Agrica, Australia and the Philippines, and the increased sales in
China of GRAMOXONE®,

Seads Sales

Growth rales in the following narrative compare 2001 actuals with Proformg 2000 and are at constant exchange rates
(CER) unisss otherwise stated.

Commentary on product performance

Fufl Yoar Growth
Aclual Proforma
Product Jina uss mﬁfm uss mﬁ::: “m:/.' cE:
Field Crops 530 552 -4 -
Vegetables and
Flowers 408 406 1 5
Taotal 938 958 -2 2

Fiold Craps: major brands NK® com, NK® cilseeds, HILLESHOG® sugar beet

Sales of corn were unchanged; NK® corn grew strongly fellewing successful launches of new hybrids in both Europe and
Brazil while sales in NAFTA declined pantly due to the decrease in carn acreage. Qilseeds sales were up, with sales of
soybeans and sunflower seeds growing strangly in the Americas and Eastern Europe respectively. HILLESHOG® sugar
beet performed well in a declining European markel, The divestment of sorghum in 2000 aceounted for aver 1% of the

reduction in total Field Crop sales. Sales of genetically modified product continued to grow and accounted for 17% of
total sales.

Vegetables and Flowers: major brands S&G® vegetabies, ROGERS® vegetables, S&G® flowers

Strong sales growth was achleved especially in $8G®vegetables. Sales in Europe (with notable contributions from
peppers, lomatees, melons and leeks), Asia and Brazil all increased; subdued demand and heavy compatition hampered
performance in NAFTA.

Sales of S&G®flowers increased in Europe; in NAFTA sales were slightly lower in @ highly compatitive market,
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Commentary on regienal performance

Full Yasr Grawin

Regional Mzg;‘ P'm;oﬂo; Actual CER

Uss million USS miilian [ %
Europe, Africa and Middle East 393 387 2 11
NAFTA 404 428 -8 -6
Latin America 88 85 4 §
Asia Pacific 53 57 -7 3
Total 938 958 -2 2

Sales arowth in Europe, Africa and the Middle Fast was driven by success in vegetables, corn and silsceds.

In NAFTA, reduced acreages in corn and sugar beet and difficult market conditions in vagetables and flowers all

contributed to the ssles declina.

In Latin America. principally Brazil, growth was achieved across the product range.

Strong growth in Vegetables sales in Thailand and Australia resulted in increased sales in Asia Pacific at canstant

exchange rates.

F7
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysls
Operating Income
Unless stated otherwise, the following discussion is based on operating income excluding Special items.

To improve transparency. items classified at mergar as corporate have been reallacatad to the three raporting segments,
with the excepticn of merger costs which are ¢classed as unallocated.

Operating Income excluding Special items

Full Year Growth
{U§$ milllon, except growth %) 2001 eumzt.:-g Actunl % CER %
Crop Protection 738 666 11 18
Seeds 71 3 2,267 2,700
Plant Science (187) (128) - 34 - 34
Total 642 544 18 26
Crop Protection Operating Income
Statutory
Excluding Special
Total Special ltame jtame
000 2000 2000

_{USS million, excast grawth %} 2001 atatutory 2001 statutory 2001 statutory % growth
Sales 5,385 3,918 . - 5,385 3918 37
Cost of goods sold (2,740)  (1.848) - - (2,740)  (1,846) -41
Gross profit 2,645 1,972 - - 2,645 1,072 14
as a percentsge of sales 49% 50% 49% 50%
Markaling and distribution (948) (754) - . (948) (784) -28
Research and development (458) (312) - . (458) (312) -47
General and administrative (501) (240) - - (501) (240) - 108
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestment gaing (265) 524 (265) 524 - . -
Dperating income 473 1,180 (265) 524 738 666 11
as a porcentage of sales 9% 30% 14% 17%

As a percentage of sales, gross profit of 49% in 2001 decreased by just over 1% fram 2000. Operating income increased
oy 11% in 2001 to USS738 millien. In addition to the affect of the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business,

improvements in the product mix and the phasing-out of older and third party products were offset by an aggregate price
decline.

Special items are material iterns that management regard as requiring separate disclosure to provide a more therough
understanding of engoing buginess performance, and in 2001 and 2000 were merger and restructuring costs associaled
with synergy programs, net of mandated product divestment gains. Special items in 2001 were a net cost of US$265
million. Special items in 2000 were & net gain of US$524 million due to significant gains on mandated divestments, The
restructuring program and retated costs are discussed in more detail later in this section.

Marketing and distribution expenses increased in 2001 by 26% to US5$048 million as 2001 included a full 12 months of
Zeneca agrochemicals business. Markeling and distribution expenses as a percentage of sales decreased slightly to 18%
as cost savings resylting from the merger were reglized.
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Resaarch and development expenses increased by 47% in 2001 t¢ US$458 million. Asg a percantage of sales, Resaarch
and development remained flat at 8%, 2001 charges included 12 monthe of the ex-Zeneca research sites while 2000
inciuded only 2 months.

General and administrative expenses increased by 109% in 2001 to US$501 miliion, principally due to the inclusion of
twelve months of Zeneca agrochemicals busingss in 2001 and the associated amortization of goodwill ariging on the
acquisition, As a percentage of sales, Genaral and administrative expenses in¢reased to 9%. General and
adminigtrative expenses were affected by a number of one-off sundry other income and expense temns, including
additional provisions against trada receivables in Argentina,

Prfnra
Excluging Special
Tota __Speclal hems ltams
2000 200 2000 % growih

(W8S miilion, except groweh %) 2001 prefonma 2001 proforms 00t proforma CER
Sales 5,385 5,888 - - 5,385 5,888 -5
Cost of gosds sold (2,740)  (3.014) - - (2.740) (3.014) 5
Gross profit 2,645 2,874 - - 2645 2874 -5
as & percentage of salag 49% 49% 49% 49%
Functional expenses (1,807)  (2,008) - - {1,907y  (2.008) 3
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestment gains (285) 531 (285) 591 - - -
Operating income 473 1,457 (265) 591 738 866 -9
3s @ percentage of seles 9% 25% 14% 15%

In comparison with the 2000 proforma results, gross profit decreased by 5% teflecting the difficult weather canditions in
Europe and the USA and the self-imposed sales constraints in Latin America. Gross profit increased slightly as a
percentage of sales due to improvements in the product mix and syrergy savings, which were sufficient to offset an
aggregate price de¢line.

Functional expenses decreased by 3%, reflecting savings dua to the merging of duplicate functions in many countries.

Operating income was reduced by 9% because of the adverse pressures an sales and prices mentioned above, but due
to ¢ost aaving measures declined by only 1% as a percentage of sales.
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Seeds Operating Income

Statutory
Exciuding Spoclal
Towl Special lama Rema
7000 T2000 7000
(USS miifion. except growth %) 2001 slalutary 20M statytory 2001 y % growth
, Sales 938 958 - - 938 858 -2
Cost of goods sold {459) {496) - - (459 (496) 7
Gross profit 479 462 - - 479 462 4
as a percentage of sakos 51% 48% - . 51% 48%
Marketing and distribution (230) (238) - - (230) (235) 2
Ressarch and ¢evelopment - - (112) (103) - - (112) (103) -8
Genersl and administrative {66) {121) - - (66) (12) 45
Merger and restrucluring costs, net of
divestment gaing (9) - _® - - . -
Operating income 62 3 {9) - 71 3 2,267
as 8 percentags of se/o8 7% . 8% -

Operating income increased by 2,267% in 2001 to USE71 million and overall gross profit Increased by 4%, from US$482
miflign in 2600 to US$479 millien in 2001. The increases were due to strong growth in the high-margin Vegetables
business and tha realization of the benafits of rationalization of non-priority crops undartaken in 2000.

Marketing and distribution expenses decreasad by 2% to US$230 miltion,

The overall increase in Research and development expenses to US$112 million was 8% for the year. However, as a
percentage of sales, Research and development costs were flat at about 12%.

General and administrative expenses decreased by 45% to US366 million in 2001 mainly because of sustained cost
reduction resulting from the 2000 crop rationalization restructuring initiatives mentioned above.

Proforma
Excluding Special
Total Speclal lomy ltoms
2000 2000 4000 % growth

[USS$ millien, sxcept growth %) 2001 proforma 2001 proforma 2001  proforma CER
Sales 938 958 . - 938 $58 2
Cost of goods sold (459) (496) - . (458) (496} 5
Gross profit 479 462 - - 479 462 10
as a percentage of sales 51% 48% - - 51% 48%
Functional expenses (408} (459) . - {408) (459) 8
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestment gaing (8) - (9) . - - -
Operating income 62 3 (9) . 71 3 2,700
as g percantage of sales 7% - 8% -

{n comparison with 2000 proforma rasults, gross profit increased by 10%, and by 3% ac a percentage of sales, Strong
growth in high-margin Vegetables was the main contributor to the increased profitability.

Sugcassful cost reductions resulted in a decrease in fungtional expenses of 8% that, together with the in¢rease in the
profit margin noted above, were the main drivers of the large increase in the 2001 operating income.,




17, MAR. 2003 11:39

L
~>
[

(S Y]
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Plant Science Operating Income

Statutory
Excluding Specist
Total Speclal ltame iams
2600 2000 2000

(U8$ milllen, excapt growth %) 2001 stawtory 2001 sututary 2001 statutory % growth
Sales . - - R - R .
Cost of goods sold - . - - - - -
Gross profit - . - - - - R
83 2 percontage of salas - . . R
Marketing and distributicn - - - . - - .
Research and development (15%) {122) . - {153) (122) -25
General and administrative {14) 3) - . (14) (3) - 367
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divestment gaing . - . . R . .
Operating income _(167) {125) - . (167)  (125) - 34

as a parcentage of sales

Oparating losses incraased by 34% to US$167 million in 2001. This is mainly because 2001 includes a full year's
charges for Zanaca research and tachnology sites as opposed to two months of charges in 2000, which is also the
reason for the difference between statutory and proforma for Plant Science.

Profarma

Excluding Specis!

Total Spectal llems Hams

2000 2000 2000 % growth
(USS milllan, excapl growth %) 2001 proferms 2001 proforma 201  prefara CER
Gross profit - - - - - - .
8s 8 parcontage of sales - - - - - - -
Functional expenses (187) (178) . - (187) (176) 3
Merger and restructuring costs, net of
divesiment gains - - - - . - -
Operating income {167) (178) - - (187) {178) 3

as a percentage of sales

In comparison with 2000 statutery results, investment in Plant Scignce remained sleady.

spending on research and technology was relativaly unchanged.

2001 versus 2000 proforma
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Synganta Group Management Discusslon and Analysis
Merger and Restructuring Programs

Following the formation ef Syngenta on November 13, 2000 Syngenta embarked upon a plan 0 integrate and restructure
the combined businesses in order to achigve synergies. Taken togethar, Syngenta expacts that these rastructuring
actions will result in annual cost savings of US$625 million per annum by the end of 2005, Synergy plans were increased
in 2002 frem the previously prajected cost savings of US8525 millian and the forecasted one-time restructuring cash cost
of US$900 million was increased to US$1,000 million. For 2001, the cost gavings totalled USS 165 million.

Cost of goods sold realized savings of US$5D million due to the restructuring of global manufacturing and supply. About
half of the planned closures of manufacturing sites and technology centers were initlated by thae end of 2001 and activities
at remaining sites are being realigned for cost base optimization,

Selling, general and administration expenses realized savings of US$95 million as the mtegrahon of sales forces and
admimistrative functions were quickly affected following the merger.

Research and development axpenses realized savings of US$20 million due mainly to the closure of the Western
Research Centar in California. Cost reduction in Research and development raflects the continuing intersite
rationzlization and focusing of research activity.

In 2001, restructuring charges comprised US$269 million of integration and synergy costs, US$RE miliion of asset
impainnents and US33 million of merger costs. Gaing of US$6 million were realized on the release of provisions

previously charged t¢ income and US$75 million were realized on the disposal of products divested in response to
competition authorities’ requirements. The net charge was US$277 millien, |

The following commentary is only on a statutory basis,

Financial Expense, Net

Finangial expensa, net increased by USE 164 million in 2001 as ¢compared to 2000, an increase of 133%, mainly due to
the effect of debt arising on the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals businass and the carve-ut of Novartis agribusiness
from Novartis AG.

US$e9 million of the increase is the swing to curency losses of USES4 million in 2001 from gains of US$45 million in
2000, caused mainly by the revaluation of foreign currency balances within the Syngenta Group.

Interest expense increased by US$100 million largely due to debdt incurred on the formatian of Synganta and the
increased cost of borrowing in Latin America, In Brazil, increased intersst expense was panially offset by an increase in
interest income of US$28 million, much of which is interast implich in sales pricas to customers with extended credit
terms.

Taxas

The tax rate on normal trading operations was 42% in 2001, decreased from an estimated 48% in 2000, Of this 42%, 9%
is due to tha non-deductible goodwill amortization asseciated with the acquisition accounting fer Zeneca agrochemicals
businass, The credit received on restructuring costs was at a rate of 32% with the result of an overall tax rate of 68% in
2001, increased from 37% in 2000. The 37% tax charge in 2000 benefited from the effect of tax-efficiant mandated
product divestments.
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis

Net income

Net income as a percentage of total sales was 0.5% in 2001 compared to 11.6% in 2000. This decrease is primarily due
to the impact of non-recurring gains in 2000 from product divestments mandated by the compaetition authorities prior to
the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business and the pocr trading environment in 2001,

Other Supplementary Incoma Data

Statutory

EBITDA decreased 29% from US31,312 million in 2000 to US593GC miliion in 2001. EBITDA as a parcentage uf sales
decreased from 27% in 2000 to 15% in 2001, substantially as a result of special gains related to mandated divestments
experienced in 2000. EBITDA excluding Special items increased to US$1,127 million in 2001 from US$856 million in
2000, As a percentage of sales, EBITDA excluding Special items increased to 17.8% in 2001,

Proforme

EBITDA excluding Special items decreased 6% from US$1,195 million in 2000 to USE1.127 million in 2001, aithough

there was no change in constant cutrancy terms, As @ percentage of sales, EBITDA excluding Special items was
increased to 17.8% in 2001.

F23
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OTHER INFORMATION
Foreign oparations and foreign currency transactions

Syngenta's subsidiaries use their local currency as their functional currency for accounting purposes except where the
use of a different eurrency mare fairly reflects their actual circumstancas,

The Argentine peso is the functional currency of Syngenta’s subsidiaries in Argentina. In February 2002. the government
in Argentina anneunced several reforms intended to stadilize the economic environment. These insluded redeneminating
all outstanding receivabies denominated in US dollars into Argentine pesos. This affected Syngenta’s currency exposure
profite. In response to this, Syngenta applied additionat credit restrictions and attered fogal financing arrangemants to
reduce further 1R pYpasLre to pesc currency riek. Future cxchange rates for the pesy and fulure governmant actions
remain uncertain and Syngenta is not able to estimate their affects.

The Brazilian real is the functional currency of Syngenta's subsidiaries in Srazil, During 2002 and 2001, the Brazilian real
devalued significantly against the US dollar. Te reduce its exposure to risks associated with the devaluation, Syngenta
has aitered local financing arrangements, applied credit restrictions to customers and hag fully hedged its balance sheet
exposure using currency derivatives. Sates to customers in Brazil must be invoiced in Brazilian real to meet legal
requirements. The extent to which gales prices in Brazilian real can be increasad to offset the effect of any further
devaluation ramains uncentain, Syngenta is not able to estimate the effect of any further devaluation of the Brazilian real
on operating income in future periods,

Liquidity and capital resources

Syngenta's principal squrces of liquidity consist of cash genarated from cperations and third party debt availabie through
unsecured nan-current bonds, commercial paper and credit facilities. Syngenta reported cash and cash equivalents on
Decembper 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 of US$232 million, US$288 million and US$788 million respectively. At December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, Syngenta had cumant financial debts of US34,207 miltion, US$1,420 milion and

U8%3.085 millien respectively, and non=current financial debts of US$928 million, US$1,118 million, and US$100 mitlion
respectively, As a result of the cash flow generated by eperating activities Syngenta’s debt to debt plus equity gearing
ratio (which takes into account debt related derivative net assets of US$229 millien (2001: USS$29 million)) has declined
to 28% at the end of 2002 (end of 2001: 35%).

Capital Markets and Cradit Facilities

Funds for Syngenta’s working capital needs were available during the year from a committed. revotving, multi-currency,
syndicated credit facility of US$2,500 million (the “Credit Facility®) that matures in 2005. As of Dacember 31, 2002
Syngenta had utilized U5548 million under the Credit Facility, leaving US$2,452 million available for future requirements.
The company’s policy is to maintain flexibility in its funding by accessing the capital markets and by maintaining 2
cornmitted bank facility, lacal bank facilities and commercial paper program. The cost of borrowing from these facilities is
relatad to the cost of borrowing an the London and European Inter-bank markets, and Syngenta's credh rating.

On July 10, 2001. Syngenta issued €800 million S-year Eurobonds with a coupon rate of 5.5% and €350 millien 2-year
Floatng Rate Notes in replacement of banking facilities.

On December 15, 2000, Syngenta entered into a US$2.500 million Global Commercial Paper program. Syngenta began
issummg Euro commercial paper in March 2001, As at December 31 2002 US$221 million of Commarcial Paper is in issue.

Management is of the opinion that the funding available to it from these sources will be sufficient to satlsty its working
capital. capital expenditure and debt service requiremaents far the foreseeable future, including cash expanditure relating
to restructuring programs, Current and non-currant financial debts contain anly general and financial default covenants,
with which Syngentais in compliance.
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Commitments for capital sxpenditure at Dacember 31, 2002 are US$32 million. On November 5, 2002, Syngenta South
Asia AG, a 100% subsidiary of the Syngenta group, announced an offer (o buy the publicly held minority interest of
Syngenta India Limited for (ndian Rupees (INR) 130 per share. It all minority sharaholders aceept the Syngenta offer,
Syngenta will be required to pay US842 million, This will be financed from the credit facilitias described abeve. The offer
¢losed on January 26, 2003, at which time acceptances had been received to give Syngenta contro! over approximately
84% of the shares. '

Financial Resuils

The following table sets out ¢ertain infarmation about the cash flow for each of the pericds indicated:

Year ended Decamber 31,
(J8S million) 2002 2004 2000
Cash flow from operating activities 802 548 . 810
Cash flow from/(used for) investing activities (260) (122) 1,045
Cash flew from/(usad for) financing activities (607) (888) (968)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
2002 compared to 2001

In 2002, cash flow from operating activities totaled US$802 million, an increase of US$254 million compared to 2001,
This increase reflects improved working capital ratios and is after US$135 millien of voluntary additional pension
contributions, which were made to improve the funded status of defined benefit pension funds which have been adversely
affected by falls in equity prices. Syngenta aims to continue to reduce werking capital levels in the future, but does not
expect a similar rate of imgrovemnent in working capital raties in 2003 as achiaved in 2002.

2001 compared to 2000

In 2001, cash flew from operating activities totaled US§548 million, a decrease of US$82 million compared to 2000, This
decrease reflects significant cash payments arising from the formation of Syngenta and the resulting restructuring, net of
increaged cash flows from improved operating perfarmance helped by lower working capital in 2001,

Cash Flow from/(used for) investing Activities

2002 compared to 2001

In 2002, cash flow used for investing activities increased by US$138 miliion from 2001, totaling USS(280) miltion. The
¢ash outflow is derived from US$165 million of capital expenditures and invastments of US$168 miillion, net of proceeds

from gispasals of US$71 million.

Expenditure on new and improved property, plant and equipment decreased from US$253 million in 2001 to US$168
million in 2002.

In 2001 &n investment was made to obtain worldwide, exclusive product rights to the insecticide, thiamethoxam, and the
payment of US$120 million was made in 2002, Other invesbmant expenditures related mainly to software licenses.

Business divestment proceeds in 2002 decreasad to US§11 million, derived mainly from the sale of the selective

herbicide, racer, compared ta divestmant proceeds of US$185 million in 2001, Other proceeds are from the sale of fixed
assets.

F2§
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
2001 compared to 2000

[n 2001, cash flow from investing activities totaled US$(122) million, a decrease of US$1,167 million sompared to 2000
The prier year inflow results from proceeds from divested assets of US$825 million and cash inflows of US$387 million
from business acquisitions in 2000. The net cash outflow of US$122 million is primarily the result of divestment proceeds
of US$195 million, investments of US$88 million and capital expenditure of US$253 million.

Divestment proceeds of US$195 million result from sale of the herbicides sulcotrions and propaquizafop, the fungicide
flutriafol and the insecticide thiocyclam. The divestmants of sufcotrione, propaquizafop and flutiafol were required in
order to obtain ragulatory authorities' approval of the merger of Nevartis agribusiness with Zeneca agrochemi¢als. The
thigcyclam divestment resulted from product range rationalization.

Invastments retate principally to additiona! investments in Sakata sesds, the acquisition of the remaining shareholding in
CC Benoist SA (previously held as an associate) and the buyaut of the minarity sharehoidings in Syngenta Crop
Protection Sdn.Bhd, Mataysia, Synganta Crop Protection Lid, Thailand and Yomono Agrica KK, Japan,

Investment in Property, Plant and Equipment

Syngenta continues to make Investments in the form of new and improved property, plant and eguipment, Capital
expendilures for the years ended Dacember 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were US$165 million, US$253 million and US$185
million respectively.

Cash Flow from/{used for) Financing Activities
2002 compared to 2001

In 2002, cash flow used for financing activilies included dividends paid of US$54 millien and dacreased by US$261
million to US$(807) million. The net change in cash and cash equivalents was USS(56) miian comparad to US$(468)
million in 2001. Cash flow from operating activities was primarily used to repay finaaclal debt.

2001 compared to 2000

In 2001, cash flow used for financing astivities decreased by US$100 million 1o US$(888) million. in 2000 Syngenta
repaid debt and equity formerly provided to Novantis agribusinass and Zeneca agrochemicals business, by Novartis AG
and Astradeneca Pic respectively. In addition Syngenta repurchased approximately 9.99% of its outstanding common
stock immediately following the listing of Syngenta shares at a total cost of US$524 million.

in 2001, Syngenta issued €800 miliion 5-year Eurobonds with a coupan rate of 5.5% and €250 million 2-year Floating
rate notas in replacement of current finanglal debt.

The US$868 million repayment of financial debt comprised a reduction of current debt of US$608 million, repgyment of
trade receivables factared with recaurse of US$137 million, and payrment of US$140 million to Novartis AG resuiting from

the purchase of assets from Novartis Agricuitural Discavery, Inc., whigh were partly offset by financing inflows of US$18
million.
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Syngenta Group Management Discusston and Analysls

Resgaareh and development

Syngenta has major research centers in Basel, Switzerland, Jealetis Hill, England: and Syngenta Biotechnology, In¢.,
North Carclina, USA,

There are two principal elements to Syngenta research. The first is to develop new products and technologies. The
second is to support existing products: extending their uses, impraving their performance and monitoring their long-term
snvironmental profila and safaty,

To enable the developmant of safe and effective solutions which enhance sustainable farming systems, Syngenta
organizes its R&D aclivities around five core technology programs; Genomics; Discovery; Crop Protection Research:
Crop Genatics Research and Heelth Agsesement and Envirenmental Safely. These are closely integrated to increase
the overall capacily, to discoves new active ingradignts and provide practical routas to novel ¢rop varieties.

Syngenta development scientists work to @stablish the biological potential of lead research compounds, cbtain product
registrations and bring plant varieties to the market that meet the needs of farmers, as well as their customers in the food
supply ¢hain.

Development involves extensive field tests as part of the health and environmental safety evaluation te ensure that
products meat rigorous standards around the warld. Davelopment activities alss includs the improvement of production
processas for new active ingradients and farmulations,

in Seeds, new varieties and hybrids are develeped using a number of advanced breeding methods, including marker-
assistad breeding, together with conventional skills that improve the success rate of breeding programs.

As part of tha synergy program, and in order 1o meet commercial targets and to create a sustainable and dynamic R&D
foundation for the future, this year has seen & program of streamlining and restructufing across the various R&D sites,
Strategic “canters of excellence” have been developed, giving each site a unique role and defined scientific expertise and
resource. |mplementation of this simplified structure now gives an increased focus on research output.

Activities are now fecused in key sites in Switzerland, the UK and the USA:

- Baset and Stein {Switzeriand): Crop protection research

- Jeslott's Hill and Central Toxicology Laboratory (UK), Discovary and bio-performenca research; regulatory studies
and toxicology

- Syngenta Bictechnology Inc. (USA). Crop genetics research and genomics

The total spent on Ressarch and development was US$397 million In 2002, US$723 milllon in 2001 and US$537 million

in 2000. Syngen!a's investment in genomics underping all of the producl outputs and the increasing emphasis on ‘
integrated crop solutions is leading to converging research goals and programmes across seeds, chemicals and traits.

Attribution of Research and devalopment ¢osts for 2002 was US$425 million for Crop Protection, US$119 million for

Seeds and USS$153 million for Plant Science, including crop traits introduced through biotechnology.

in addition 1o Syngenta’s own Research and development efforts, Syngenta has also entered into a numbaer of alliances
and Rasearch and dgvelopment agreaments.

There are no off-balance sheet financing transactions associated with Resaarch and development activity.

F27
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis

Off balance sheet arrangements, contractual obligations, commitments and contingent liabilities

At December 31, 2002, Syngenta had the following contractual obligations ts make future payments in the following
periods;

Rayments due by perted
Notes to thy
finansiat
stataments Lass than { Mors than § yoars
USS millien ralsrance Tala! yoar 1-3yedrs  3-Syears
Financiat det 2 2132 1,207 57 asa 10
Interest on financial debt e 93 k| 50 12 -
Operating leasa payments 28 42 13 20 5 4
Uncanditional purchase obligations 1] 442 133 160 111 38
Long-term research agreements 20 K3l 11 16 4
2,740 1,398 303 990 52

A significant portion of financial debt bears interest at a variable rata. Tha interest payments on this debt have not been
inciuded in the above table as they are variable rale and are therefora not capable of being described accurately as
commitments.

The supply agraaments for materials which give rise 10 the unconditional purchase obligations are entered into by
Syngenta to ensure availability of materials which meet the specifications required by Synganta. Whare suppliars have
made significant capital investment, these agreements generally provide fer Syngenta to pay penaities in the event that it
were 10 terminate the agreements before their expiry date,

US GAAP

Syngenta's financial statements have been propared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{(IFRS), which differ in certain significant respects from US GAAP. Note 33 of the consclidatad financial statements
describes in detail the amount and nature of thase differances.

For the year endad 31 Dacember 2002, the net loss under IFRS was US$27 million, compared to a net loss of US$165
million under US GAAP.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, goodwill continued to be amortized under IFRS, but for US GAAP Syngenta
adopted the impairment-enly gacdwill accounting method required by SFAS 142, Goadwill amortization of US§53 mitlion
charged under IFRS was therefore added back in calculating US GAAP npetingome. US GAAP net income was,
however, reduced compared to IFRS net income by the amortization and impairment of intangibla assets recognized for
Crop Protection product rights on acquisition of Ciba-Geigy in December 1988, As mentioned below, this business
combination was accounted for as a uniting of interests under IFRS. Therelore, no intangible assets were recognized for
IFRS when the business combinalion occurred, and consaquently no amerization or impairment has been charged to
IFRS net incoma in 2002 in respect of these assets, An impairment charge of US$83 million was recorded in respect of
these product rights under US GAAP as the result of rationalization of the Crop Protection product portfolio, which,
following the creation of Syngenta, includes the former Zenaca preduct range.
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis

The process and method of testing goodwill for impalrment under IFRS and US GAAP are different, Under 1AS 38,
goodwili must be allocated for impairment tasting purposes to the lowest level of asset group for which identifable cash
flows exist. Under US GAAP, SFAS 142 requires goodwill to be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. A
reporling unit represents an operating segmant or companent thereof, but economically similar cocmponents must be
aggregated. Syngenta has camied out the impairment test al the total Crep Protection and Seeds level. As the fair value
¢of the Seeds segment as a whole exceeds the carying armount of its net asssts, no impaimment to goodwill arises under
SFAS 142, Thereforo, impairment of LUS$23 millien charged to IFRS net income, in respect of goodwill allocated to
Seeds operations, has been added back in determining US GAAP net income,

The criteria for recording impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are also different in IFRS and US
GAAP, Syngenta has equity shareheldings in certain publicly queted companies which are shown at market value within
non current finangial assets in the Lalance sheet, and classified as available-for-sale under IAS 39 and SFAS 11§5.
Syngenta reports changes in fair valug of available-for-sale financial assets in shareholders' equity. Under IAS 38, where
an entity has chosen to report changes in fait value of available-for-sale financial assets in shareholdars' equity, it
continues ¢ de 30 even if the market value of an agset falls below ¢ast, unless Impairment is objectively evidenced by
avents such as default, bankruptey or significant financial diffisulty of the investee accurring or becoming probabls.
These avents have not aceurted or become probable in respect of any available-for-sale assets held by Syngenta.
Syngenta has no intention to dispese of these assels at the present time and accordingly, no impairmant has been
recorded for iIFRS, Howeavar, under SFAS 115 as interprated by SAB 58, impairment is recorded when there is a decline
which is other than tamporary in the value of an available-for-sale security with a readily determinable fair value, uniess
there is objective avidence that the asset can bae realized in the near term at a value in excess of #s current market prica.
The market value of certain of these sharahgldings has declined below thelr original cost in line with gereral stack market
trends, Therefore, Syngenta has recarded an impairment of US353 million tn 2002 US GAAP net income in relation to
these assets.

For the year ended Decembar 31, 2001, net Income under IFRS was US$34 million, compared to a net oss of US$(247)
million under US GAAP, The main reasons for the difference were differences in the application and incidence of
purchase accounting betwaen IFRS and US GAAP, which caused diffgrences to arise on both the purchase accounting
for Zeneca agrochemicals business and on other acquisitions.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the net difference in pre-tax income erising between the |FRS and US GAAP
treatments of the purchase accounting for Zeneca agrochemicals business wag US$(288) million, The main ems
causing the difference include the accounting treatment of assembled warkforce, in-process Research and development.
restructuring charges and the adjustment of fair valuas, The purchase price for Zenaca agrochemicals businass was
allocated at December 31, 2000 on a preliminary basls, and the allocation was finalized during 2001, as explained in
detail in Nota 33 of the congolidated financial statements. Under IAS 22, information arising in the post-acguisition
altocation period which gives additional evidence as (o the fair value of assets and llabilities al the acquisition date is
required to be used for the purposes of adjusting fair values at the acquisition date. However, under US GAAP, additional
conditions must be fulfilied in order for such information to result in an adjustment 1o the purchase price allogation. if
these conditions are not met, the changes must be recognized in the income statement,

The most significant of the purchase accounting differencas arising in 2001 on the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals
businese was the adjustment to the carrying values of certain intangible mssets and property, plant and equipment, which
gave rise to an adjustment to fair values required under IAS 22, but to an impairment loss of US$(282) miltien for US
GAAP under SFAS 121.
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For the year ended December 31, 2001, the net difference in pre-tax Income arising between the IFRS and US GAAP
treatments of the purchase accounting for other acquisitions was US8(141) million. This differance mainly arises because
the accounting treatment for the 1996 merger of Sandoz and Ciba-Geigy under IFRS i dilferant from the aceounting
treatment under US GAAP. For IFRS purposes, the merger was accounted for as 2 uniting of interests, hewever, for US
GAAP the merger does not meet ail of the required conditions of A¢caunting Principles Board Opinian No. 18 for a
pooling in interests and therafore is accounted for as g purchase. In 2001 Syngenta has reviewed the recoverability of
intangible assets related to marketed praducts assumed in the Ciba-Geigy buginess combination reported within the Crop
Protection sagment, as part of the product ranga ratienalization process following the acquisition of Zeneca
agrochemicals business. The most significant tems within tha US$(141) million include (i) the US GAAP amortization of
the fair values ariging under from the Ciba Geigy purchase accounting, (i) an impairment loss of US$16 million, which
has besn recognized in the cutrent year pursuant to SFAS 121 in US GAAP net income in respect of a certaln product,
and (i) a diveatment gain recognized under IFRE has been reduced under US GAAF, by US$21 million, to adjust the US
GAAP carrying value previously attributed to a divested product.

The incremental difference in deferred tex expense of US$138 million under US GAAP is primarily related to the income
tax benefit arising on the purchase accounting agjustrments menticned abeove.

The increased adjustment between IFRS and US GAAP in fiscal year 2000 primarily related to purchase accounting for
Zeneca agrochemicals business. In addition to this purchase accounting difference of US3271 milllon. differences
relating 1o deferred taxes and stock-based compensation increased by US$38 million and US$12 million, respactively,

The income statement effect of purchase accounting for Zeneca agrochemicals business under US GAAP resuited
primarily from the treatment of in-process Research and development. Under IFRS, in-process research and
development ¢osts are not identified as an acquired asset in connection with the allocation cf the purchase price.
Therefore, these amounts are included in goedwill, which is amortized over itz expect useful life. US GAAP requires the
separate identification of in-process research and development as a component of the purchase price allocation, In
accordance with US GAAPR, Syngenta has expensed in-process Research and develepment in connaction with the
acquisition of Zeheca agrochemicals totaling US$365 million in 2000. This incremental expense is net of restructuring
coste of US593 million that were included as fair value adjustments In the purchase price allocation for Zeneca
agrochemicals business under US GAAP, but were chargad 10 expense under IFRS,

The incrementel difference in deferred tax expanse under US GAAP primarily refates to the income tax benefit an the
réstructuring costs disgussed above. As with the restructuring ¢osts, the income tax benefit is included in the
determination ¢f net income under IFRS, but is included as a fair value adjustment under US GAAP. Increased axpense
under US GAAP for stock based compensation plans of USE12 milllon resulted from the adjustment of stock option strike
prices intended 1o preserve tha sconomic value of those options relative to that value prior 1o the spin-off.
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
Critical accounting policies

Note 2 of the consolidated financial stataments describes Syngenta's accounting policies in detail. The application of
many of these policies necessarly requires judgemant to best reflect the cammercial substance of undarlying
transactions. Syngenta has determined that four of its accounting policies can te considered "critical®, in that significant
management judgement is required to determine various assumptions underpinning their applicatian in the consolidated
financial statements, which, under different conditions, could lead to materiai difference in these statements. A
description of aach of these four palicies follows:

Adjustments for doubtful recelvables

Trade and other accounts raceivable are reported net of adjustments for doubtiul racaivables. often referred to as *bad
debts”, Syngenta is a gasgraphically diverse group, serving a custorner base in all significant agricultural areas across
the world, and with subsidiary companies in 50 countrias, Credit terms offerad to customers often reflect the crop cycie.
particularty where local bank financing may be scarce, and full payment fraen customers ¢an be dependent upen a good
harvest yisld. Collection can alse be affected by the level of inventery In the distribution channel. Syngenta is therefore
exposed t¢ a broad ranga of political and economic risks which can affect prompt and full recoverability of trade
receivables. Considerable managernent effort is consequently spent in actively managing and mitigating these risks,

Syngenta determines the level of doubtful roceivables to be provided for by critically analyzing the raceivables accounts
on an individual basis, taking into agcount historical levels of recovery and any changas in the economic and political
anvirshment in relevant ¢ountries.

Environmental provisions

Syngenta makes provisions for environmental liabilities by agsessing the likely non-recurring remediation costs where
there is an obligation to clean-up ¢ontamination. For & provision to be recorded, it must be probable that an expense or
remediation work will be required and the costs can be estimated within a reasenable range of possible outcornes, The
costs are based on gusrently available facts, technology expected to be availeble at the time of the clean-up, laws and
regulations presently or vintually certain to be enacted and prior year experience in remadiation of contaminated sites.

When an obligation is first identified to clean-up one of Syngenta's manufacturing sites, the costs are typically spread
over an extended pariod into the future. The assumptions that Syngenta uses In relation to tha extent of the clean-up
required and the method used to clean-up the identified contamination may change signifleantly during the ¢tean-up
period. The enviranmantal provisions can therefore change significantly, particularly whers there is a major change in
environmental legislation in a country where Syngenta has significant manufacturing assets. Currently Syngenta's most
significam manufacturing assets are located in Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the USA. As a consequence of the
inherent uncertainlies in estimating future obligations, Syngenta will, as appropriate, supplement Intemal expertise with
extemal expertise to help determine what provisions shouid be recorded In the consolidated financial statements.

{mpairment

Syngenta carries out reviews of tangible and intanglble assets on an annual basis 10 determine whether events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recovarable, !f any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated as either the higher of nat selling price or value in use; the
resultant loss (the difference between the carrying value and recoverable amount) is recorded as a charge in the
consolidated income statement. The value in use i$ estimated as the present value of future cash flows expected to
result from the use of agsels and their eventual disposal proceads. In ordar 10 calculate the present value of astimated
future cash flows Syngenta uses 3 discount rate basad on our estimated weighted average cost of capital, together with
any risk premium determined appropriate.
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
{i) Intangiblie assets: Proguct rights

In determining the value in use of produet rights it is recessary to make & series of assumptions to estimate future cash
flows. The main assumptions in¢lude future sales prices and volumes, the future development expenditure requited to
maintain the product's marketability and registration in the relevant jurisdictions and the product's life. Thase
assumptions ara reviewed annually as part of management's budgeting and strategic planning cycles. The assumptions
can ba subject to significant adjustment from such factors as changes in crop growing patterns in major markets

(perhaps as a result of movements in ¢rop prices), thanges in the produet registration, or as a result of pressure from
competitat products.

(i) Tangible sssets: Property, plant and equipment

The value in use of Syngenta's property plant and equipment is determined by (Inking assets or a group of assets to
identifiable cash flows, which ara then reviewed in a manner similar to that described abave for product righte. Major
assumptions include sales pnces and volumes of products manufagtured by the identified property, plant and equipment,
and its useful life.

Defined benefif pansions

The assumptions used 10 measure the expense and liabilities related to Syngenta's defined banefit pension ptans are
reviewed annyally by professionally qualified, independent actuaries and by Syngenta management. The measurement
of the expense for a period requires judgement with respect to the following matters, among others:

{

(i) the probable average future service lives of employees;

(iii) the probable life expactancy of employees;

{iv} the extent to which the mix of investments in funded pension plans in the period will resemble or wilt giffer
from existing arrangements when investment policy is under review, and the timing of any changes;

{v) the expected future rate of return on the investments in fundad pension pians, and how that rate will
compare with the market rates of return which wera observed in past economic cycles.

) the probable leng-term rate of increase in pensionable pay.

The agsumptions used by Syngenta may differ materially from actual results, and these differences may resuttin a
significant impact on the amount of pension expense recarded in future periods.

F3z
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion and Analysis
Effect of new accounting pronouncements

The effect of new aczounting pronouncements is described in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Introduction ¢f the aure

On Jarwary 1. 1999, the euro was introduced in 11 member states of the EU participating in the Eurcpean Monetary
Union {“EMU”) 2s a common legal currency alongside the national currencies (each, a “legacy currancy”) of the
participating countries. On January 1, 2002, euro-denominated bills and coins ware succassfully introduced in the
participating countries, and the legasy currencias have coased to be legal tender. Syngenta did not experiencs any
operational or tecnnalogical difficutties with regard to the introduction of the euro. Switzerland s not a member of the EU
or a participant in the CMU. The foreign currency exposures from transactions in Swiss francs, British pounds steding or
other currencias outside the EMU have not been affactad by the intraduction of the aura and will depend on actual
exposure al the time of risk assessment.

Recent developments
Note 35 1o the consolidated financial statements provides details of events which have ocourred between the balance
sheat date and the date on which these consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors

{(February 19, 2003) that would reguire adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements, The
transaction with Diversa referred to in Note 35 completed on February 21, 2003,

Futute prospects

Syngenta expects that the defined benalit pansion expense it will recerd in 2003, excluding the effects of any further
restructuring initiatives which may be announced, will be higher than the 2002 charge, excluding restructuring costs. This
is due to the effect of the performance of financial markets in 2002 on the discount rate, plan asset values and resulting
actuarial lnsses which have to be taken into account in measuring 2003 defined benefit pension expense, Thig, together
with increased insurance costs from a hardening insurance market, will add an estimated US55 rillion to costs relative
10 2002 and hold back progress in EBITDA margin in 2003.

Expenditure on the US$1,000 million integration synergy program will continue in 2003.

Quantitative and quatitativa disclosure about markeat risk

Overview

As & resutt of it global operating and financial activities, Syngenta is exposed to market risk from changes in fareign
currency exchange rates, intersst rates and, 10 s limited extent, commedity prices, Syngenta Group Treasury actively
manages the Group's exposures in foreign currency, interest rates and credit risk with the intention of optimizing cash
flows and to minimize earnings volatility, (n accordanca with Syngenta's written traasury policy, which was approvad by
the Board of Directors, Syngenta manages its market risk exposures with a risk-averse approach through risk pooling,
ngyrance schemes and, whan deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financiat instrumants. i is the policy of

the Group not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes or purposes unrelated 16 the operating
buziness,

Syngenta manages all financial risks of the Group and monitors risk exposures and open derivative transactions In
accardance with Syngenta’s treasury policy. Details of the Group's derivative positions as at Cecember 31, 2002 are set
outin Note 31 of tha consolidated financial statements,
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Syngenta Group Management Discussion end Analysis

Sales and operating costs by currency for the yesr 2002 for Syngenta were as follows;

Sales In % Qperating coals In %
Cufreney 2002 "R 3002 2001
U8 dollar 35 32 27 27
gure 23 23 24 23
Swiss franc 1 2 15 14
British pound sterling 2 2 15 15
Other 33 41 19 21
Total 100 100 100 100

Other currancies include over 46 ¢currencies. hawavar, nane of tham account for morc tham 10% of totul sukey or total
operating costs, This currency profile is expectad o be representative of the position in 2003,

Fair values of open derivative Instruments at Decamber 31, 2002 were as follows:

Poaltive Negalive
Inatrument lypas Noldnal amounts 1air value tair valug
UGS milllons USS milllans UES milllons
Interest rate instruments 1,516 38 (57)
Cross currency swaps 973 247 -
Foreign currency ferward contracts 3218 62 (3N
Currency option contracts 1,248 42 -
Commodity forward ¢ontracts 32 2 -

Merket Risk due to Fluctuating Foreign Currency Exchange Rales

Since its formation on Novernber 13, 2000, Syngenta has adopted the US doltar as its reporting currency.

Commilted foraign currency exposures are generally fully covered and are managed by the use of financial instruments.
Syngenta collects information abaut expected ¢cash flows for major currencies &t Group tevel and, based on monthly
forecaets and detailed analyses, hedges material mismatches in currency flows to reduce eamings volatility, The
transactional flows and derivative financial instruments are analyzed on an ongoing basis and remaining curmency
exposures are closely monitored,

The Group's primary net foreign ¢currency exposuras against the US dolter include the Swiss franc, the British pound
sterling and the eure,

The US dollar equivalent of foreign currency sales and purchases are sensitive to market fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group analyzes potential adverse exchange rate effects on sales and operating ¢osts given the
prevailing gufrency mix,

Syngenta applies value at risk caiculations to its currency exposures {0 measure the maximum expected loss In vaiue of
its anticipated net transactional currency flows under nofmal market conditiens, Net transactional flows are determined
based on projected sales and operating and financial costs by currency. Value at fisk is calculated based on a simulation
approach using historical volatility and correlation a3 applied by the RiskMetrics Group. The Group uses a 12-month time
horizon given its spegific cash flow structure, payment terms and managameant processes.

The value at risk calcutation is performed for anticipated net transactional cutrency flows for 2003 for the Group taking
into acgount relatéd cumency hedges eéntered into, As of December 31, 2002, the total potential adverse movement for
20013 net transactional flows after hedges relative to year end spot levels, at the 85% confidence level, will not excesd
US$38 million. The movement on transactional flows due lo currency during 2002 wag close Lo the level stated in the

2001 repon due to the significant strengthening of European currencies in the second haif of the year.
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Market Risk Due to Fluctusting Interest Rates

Syngenta is exposed to Muctuations in interest rates on its borrowings. The effective cunency of the majority of the
borrawings of the Group is US doflars after the impact of derivatives. The majority of the net borrowings of the Group are
sudject to short term interest rates, aithough some longer term swaps have been entersd into to reduce interest rate
volatility.

The Group 2nalyzes its interest-bearing assets and liabilities with respect to the next interest repricing date and classifies
all itens into time intervals. Based on the prevailing fixed to floating ratio of net debt and the repriging structure of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at December 31, 2002, 2 100 basis point increase in interest ratas across afl
currencies will increase net interest expense by US$S million for the next 12 month period when keeping exchange rates
unchanged.

Other Market Risk

Syngenta has only limited exposures with respect to derivatives relating to commedity exposures and to equities held of
third parties.
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Consolidated Incoma Statement
{for the years ended Dacember 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000}

AR 1501

S

{USH miilion, sxcapt par sharo amounts) Notes 2002 2001 2000

Sales Y 6,197 8,323 4,876

Cost of goods sold (3.132) (3,189) (2.442)
Gross profit 3,065 3,124 2,434

Marketing and distribution (1,146) (1.178) (988)
Research and development (697) (723) (837)
General and administrative (582) (581) (364)
Merger and restructuring costs, net of divestment gains [ (396) (271 456

Operating income 244 365 1,000

Income/(loss) from associates and joint ventures 18 {7) (5) (1)
Financial expense, net 7 (188) {249) (85)
Income before taxes and minorlty interests 49 111 914

Income tax expense 3 {70) (78) (340)
Income/(loss) before minority interasts (21) 35 574

Minerity interests (6) 1 (10)
Net Incomei/{loss) (27) 34 564

Basic and dlluted earnings/(loss) per share (US$) 9 {0.26) 0.34 7.61
Weighted average number of shares, basic and diluted

(millions of shares) 102 104 74

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the consolidsted financial statemants.
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Consolldated Balance Sheet
(at December 31, 2002. 2001 and 2000)
(UBS miitian) Nolss 2002 2004 2000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 232 208 756
Trade receivables 10 1,802 1,880 2,004
Other acesunts raceivable 10 243 242 300
Other current assets " 51¢ 214 163
inventories 13 1.704 1,716 1,821
Total current assets 4,297 4,320 5,144
Nonecurrant assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2,310 2348 2,849
Intangible assats * 2,913 3,004 2978
invastmants in assoclates and joint ventures 15 9§ 103 112
Deferred tax assets 1% 666 666 839
Other financial agsots 17 345 268 293
Total non-currant assets 6,229 6,389 8,671
TOTAL ASSETS 10,526 10,708 11,815
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current ligbilities
Trade accounts payable (725) (687) (837
Current financial debts 18 (1,207) (1,420) (3,089
Income taxes payable (210) (220) (338)
Other current liabilities 19 (794) (882) (1,013)
Provisions 2 (222) (231) (286)
Totai current liabilities (3.158) (3,440) (5,357)
Non-curent liabilities
None-current financial debts 20 (925) (1,118) (100)
Deferrad tax llabilities 1 (1,088) (1,159) (1,270}
Other non-current liabilities - - (84)
Provisions 21 {(915) (835) (683)
Total non-current liabilities {2,838) {3,110) (2,147)
Commitments and contingencies 28 - - -
Total liabilities (6,098) (6,580} (7,504)
Minority interests (80} {73) (101)
Shareholders’ equity
Issued share capital 112,564,584 ordinary sharag (687) (667) (687)
Retained eamings (225) (280) (249)
Reserves (3,870) (3,857) {3,818)
Treasury shares: 11,023,485 ordinary shares 512 518 524
(2001 11,131,664, 2000 11,255,000)
Total equity {4,350) (4,088) {4,210)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY {10,526) {10,709) (11,815)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated finencial statements.
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Syngenta Group Consolidated Financlal Statements

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
{for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000)

(USS million) Notss 2002 2001 ™ 2000 ™
Operating income 244 365 1,000
Reversal of non-cash itams:

Depreciation. amortization and irmpairment on

Property, plant and equipment 13 374 344 208
Intangible assets 1“ 282 232 105
Loss/(gain) on disposal of non-current assets (28) (66) (785)
Charges in raspact of provisions 2 432 452 358

Cash (paid)ireceived in respect of;

Interest and other financial receipts 181 70 21

Interest and other financial payments (398) (2603 (103)

Taxation (191) (258) (170)

Merger and restructuring costs 2,2 (248) (352) (138)

Contridutions to pension schemes (209) (83) {15}

Qther provisions ] (49) {64) (26)
Cash flow before working capital ¢changes 394 410 455
Change in net current assets and other operating cash
flows 24 408 138 155
Cash flow from operating activities 802 548 6§10
Additions te property, plant and equipmant 13 {165) (253) (185)
Proceeds from business divestments H " 165 © 825
Proceads from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 54 12 50
Purchase of intangibles, investments in associates and
other financial assets ' (1686) (57) (52)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible and financia! assets 8 12 20
Businaess acquisitions (net of cash acquired) 25 - (4) 387
Acguisition of minorities 28 - (27) -
Cash flow from/{used for) investing activities (260) (122) 1,045
Nat change in Novartis AG debt - {129) (1.371)
Increases in other third party interest-bearing debt 511 1,240 2,436
Repayment of third party interest-bearing debt (1.087) (1,848) (1,258)
Repaymant of debts faclorad with recourse . (137) .
Sale/{purchase} of treasury shares 3 3 (524)
Marger transaction costs . . (68)

Net transfers to Novartis AG other than in respect of

interes1-bearing dabt - . (183)
Oividends paid to group shareholders (48) - -
Dividends paid to minorities (8) - -
Cash flow from/{used for) financing activities (607) (868) (968)
Net effect of currency transiation on cash and cash

equivalents 9 (26) (42)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (56) (468) 645
Cash and cash aquivalents at the beginning of the

year 288 756 111
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 232 288 756

The accompanying notes form an integraf part of the consolidated financial statements.

o Comparalive 2001 end 2000 data have been reciassified lo align them with the new tormat of the Conschidaled Cash Flow Slatement.
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Consolidated Statement of Changas in Equity
(for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000)
(0SS miliion) Farvaiie  Relained AddiUonal Faw valus Cumumtive Novarth  Troasury Towl
of ocamings paiddn  ressrves  iransistion net shire. sharedoidens’
ordinsry capitai adjustment  investment at cost oquity
shares
(Note 23)
January 1, 2000 (228) 2,708 2,481
Net income prior to separation from a5 315
Novartis AG
Net transfers to Novartis AG {183) (183)
Contribution ta cepital of rcmaining
Novartis AG nat investmant, as of
separalion . 407 2,434 (2,841) -
1ssuance of shares of common stock, in
considaration for Zenaca agrochemicals
business 260 1,685 1,845
Purchase of lreasury sharas (524)  (524)
Net income after separation 249 248
Translation effects (73) (73)
Dacembar 11, 2000 067 249 4119 (301) . (624) 4,210
Net income 34 34
Gaing and losses recognized directly in
equity;
Unrealized holding gains/{losses) on
available-for-sale financial assats (11) {11}
Unrealized gains/(losses) on denvatives
- designated as cash flow hedges 1 (17
Issue of shares under empioyee share
purchase plan (3) [ 3
Transiation effects {133) (133)
PRecember 31, 2001 667 280 4,119 (28) (434) - (518) 4,088
Net loss (27) 21
{ssue of shares under employee share
purchase plan 3) [ 3
Dividends paid to group shareholders (48) (48)
Gains and losses recognized directly in
equity:
Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets (40) (40)
Unrealized gains/(losses) on derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges 0 30
Defarrad tax on tax effected items posted
{0 equity i) 11 34
Tranglation effects 312 312
Dacembar 31, 2002 667 225 4,119 (27) (122) - (512) 4,350

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statemants.

Total racognized gains and losses, representing the total of net income and gains and losses recognizad directly in
shareholders' equity, for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were US$308 million, US$({130) million
and US$491 million, respectively,
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The amount available for dividend distribution is based on Syngenta AG's shareholders' equity determined in accorgance
with the lsgal provisions of the Swiss Code of Obligations. US$135 million of the additional paid in capital is not available

for distribution.

On Apsil 28, 2002, a dividend of CHF 0.80 per ahare was paid in respect of 2001,

The Board of Directors proposes a dividend in respect of 2002 of CHF 0.85 per share totaling CHF 95 mitlian ¢n all

shares in igsue at December 31, 2002. The dividend attributable to the treasury shares under the control of Syngenta at

the date of the dividend payment will be waived, and therefore reduce the total dividend payment made, but not the

amount of dividend per share. As at December 31, 2002, the number of treasury shares under the ¢ontrof of Synganta

was 11,023 465 shares.

The following summarizes the movements on tha ¢ash flow hedge reserve:

(USS milien) 2002 2001
January 1 7 .
Gain recognized in equity on initial adoption of 1AS 39 . 4
Gaing/(losses) recognized in equity during the period 69 27)
{Gains)osses ramoved from equity and reparted in net income during the period (43) 8
{Gains)/losses removed from equity and adjusted against carrying amount of related asset or liability 4 -
Deferred tax (O -
December 31 12 (17
The following summarizes the movements on the fair value reserve for available-for-sale financial

instruments:

{U3$ milllon) 2002 2001
January 1 (11} .
Gains/(iosses) recognized in sguity during the pered (40) (1"
Gains/(losses) remaved from ¢quity and reported in net income during the period - -
Defarred tax 12 D
December 31 _(39) (11)
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolldated Financial Statements

1. Basis of preparation of the consolidated linancial statements
Nature of oparations

The Syngenta Greup (“Syngenta”) is a world leading ¢rop pratection and seeds busingss that is invalved in the discovery,
developmant, manufacturs and marketing of a range of agricultural products designed to improve crop yields and food
quality. :

Basis of preparation of the financial stataments

Syngemta is headquarterad in Baeal, Switt¢rland and was farmed by Navarlis AG ("Novartls’) and AstraZeneca FLC
(‘AstraZeneca’) through an agreement to spin-off and merge the Novartis Crop Protection and Seeds businesses with
the Zeneca agroghemicals business to create a dedicated agribusiness company whose sharas were then the subject of
a giabal offering (the “Transactions™). Fellowing the Transactions, Syngenta has operatad as an independent company,
As used herein, references to Novartis agribusinass include the historical operating results and activities of the Novartis
Crop Protection and Seeds businesses and operations until November 13, 200Q, the dale of legal separation (the
'Separation Date"), upon which date Syngenta began ¢perations as an independent company.

For perigds prior 1o the Saparation Date, the consolidated financial statements refiect the historical results of operations
and ¢ash flows of Novartis agribugingss. Up to the Separation Date, ¢ertain expanses reflected in the consolidated
financial statements include an allocation of corporate expenses by Novartis for general and agministrative services,
inciuding finance, lagal, information technology, personnel benefits, and facilibes (see Note 28), Such expensas were
allocated based on sales. Management beliaves that the foregoing allocations were mada on a reasonable basis;
howavef the aiiccations of costs and axpenses do not necessarily indicate the costs that would have been or are being
wcurred by Syngenta on a stand-alone basis. tn addition, the financial statements for 2000 may not necessarily reflect
what the financial posilien, results of operations or cash flows would have been if Syngenta had been a separate stand.
alone company prier to the Separation Date.

The merger of Novartis agribusiness and Zeneca agrochemicals business has been acccunted for as a purchase
business combination. The assets acquired and liabifties assumed from AstraZeneca for Zaneca agrochemicals
business were recorded at their estimated fair value on the Separation Date. The results of operations and cash flows
attributable to Zeneca agrochemicals business have been included in the consolidated financial statements from the
Separation Date onwards.

In certain cases the disclosures of comparative 2001 and 2009 figures have been expanded (n relation to those provided
in the 2001 consolidated financial statements to give @ more thorough presentation.

2. Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of Syngenta have been prepared in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (JFRS), which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the Intermations! Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), and International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee ((ASC) that remain in effect, The
consolidated financial statements have baen prepared on an histerical cost basis, except for the measurement ai fair
value of investment properties, derivativa financial instruments and available-for-sale financ¢ial assets. These principles
differ in certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (*US GAAF”).
Application of US GAAP would have affected sharehoiders' aquity and net income for the years ended Decamber 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000 as detailed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notgs to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollars ("US$" or ‘US dollars®) es this is the major
surrency in which revenues are denominated,

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimales and assumptlons that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statemnents and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimated.

Scope of consolldation

The congoligated Anangia) statements incorparate the financial statements of Syngenta AG, a company domiciled in
Switzerland, and all of its subsidiaries {together referred 10 as “Syngenta®) and Syngenta's interest in associates and joint
ventures.

The censolidated financial statements include all operations and net assets which were transferred from Novartie, and all
aperations and net assets acquired from AstraZeneca from the Separaticn Date, as described in Notes 1 and 3, and the
effect of subsequent acquisitions and divestments as detailed in Note 3.

Principles of consolidation
The annuai closing date of the consolidated financial statements is Dacember 31.
Subsidlaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which Syngenta has an interest of more than one haif of the veting rights or otherwise
has power to exercise control. Control exists when Syngenta has the power, Indirectly or directly, to govern the financial
and operating pelicies of an enterprise 50 2% to obtain benefits from its activities. Companies acquired or disposed of
during the period are included in the consolidated financial statements from he date of acquisition or up 1o the date of
dispesal. :

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are those enterprisas In which Syngenta has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies and in which Syngenta generally has an equily investment of between 20% and 50%. Joint vantures
are those enterprises over whose activities Syngenta has jeint control, established by contractual agreemant, The
consolidated financial statements include Syngenta's share of the tetal recognized gains and losses of associales and
joint ventures on an aquity accounted basis, from the gate that significant influence or joint control commences unti! the
date that significant influence ceases.

Other investments

Other investments held by Syngenta are classlified ag being available-for-cale and are stated at fair value, with any
resultant unrealized gain or loss resulting from revaiuing the investment lo fair value being recognized in shareholders’
equity. In the event of & disposal of an investment, accumulated unrealized gains of losses are transferred from equity
and recognized in the income statement, in the period in which the disposal oceurs. In the event that an investment is
considered to be impaired, accumulated unrealized lossas are transferred from equity and recognized as an expense in
the income statement.

Transactions ellminated on consolidation

Intercompany income and expenses, including unrealized profits from intermal Syngenta transactions, and intercompany
receivables and payables have been eliminated.
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Notes to the Synganta Group Conselidated Financial Statements

Revenue recognition

Revenua from the sale of goods is recognized in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of
oswnership have been transferred 1o the buyer, which is usually on delivery, at a fixed and determinable price, and when
collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue is reported net of sales taxas, retums, discounts and rebates. Rebates to
customers are provided for in tha same pedod that the related sales are recorded based on the contract terms,
Provisions for estimated retumns and allowances are recorded at the time of the sale based on historical rates of retums
as a percentage of sales.

Foreign currencies

The conselidated financial statements are expressed in US dollars, however the local currency has primarily been used
as the measurement currency by each cperating unit.

in the respactive local financial statements used to prepare these consolidated financial statemeants, menetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foraign currencies, which are stated at histarical cost, are translated into loca!
currency at the foraign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign currancy transactions are translated
to the relevant local currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. With the exception of
unrealized gains or losses related to equity loans, and hedging arrangements for which reserve accounting is permitted
under tAS 38. all resuiting foreign exchange transaction gains and losses are recognized in the local income statements,

income, expense and cash flows of foreign operations included in the consolidated financial statements whose
measurement currency is that of a hyperinflationary economy. have been transiated into US dollars using exchange rates
pravailing 2t the balance sheet date. Income. expense and cash flows of other foraign operations included in the
consclidaled financial statements have been translated inte US dotlars using average exchange rates prevailing dufing
the pariod. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollars at forelgn exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on these transiations are recagnized directly
in equity.

At December 31, 2001, Syngenta fellowed the guidelines izsued by the IASB in respect of the devaluation of the
Argentinian peso  In the local financial statements, US dollar denominated assets end liabitities were transiated at opan
market rates pravailing when currensy markets were reopened in early January 2002, or at exchange rates prescribed by
the Argentinian Government where these were differant, The impact of revaluation was taken to the income statement.

Subsequent to the Separation Date, Syngenta has denominated goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisitions in US doliars.

Research and development

Research and development expenses are fully charged to the income statemant when incurred. Syngenta
considers that the regulatory and other uncentainties inherent in the development of R key new products preclude it from
capitalizing development costs,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investrments with orlginal maturities of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash.
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Notes to the 8yngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements
Trade and other accounts receivahle

The reported values represent the invoiced amounts, less adjustments for doubtful receivables,

In certain markets, factoring is within the normal course of business, Where receivables are factored without recourse to
Syngenta, the relevant raczivable is derecognized and eash racorded. Where receivables are factored with full or partial
recourse to Syngenta, the receivable is not derecognized and a liability reflecting the obligation to the factor is recorded
within financial debts until Syngenta’s liability is discharged through the factor receiving payment from the customer.

Inventories

Puictiaved products are valued at acquisition cost while own-manufactured preducts are vaiued at manufacturing cost
including related production expensaes, In the balance sheet, inventery is primarily valued at standard cost, which
approximates t¢ historical cost determined on a first-in-first-out basis, and this value is uzad for the cost of goads zold in
the income statemant, Aliowances have been made for inventories with a lowar net realizable value or which are slow
moving, Unsaleabie inventory has been fully written off,

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment have been valued at acquisition or production cosls, less accumulated depreciation and

any impairment lossas. Depreclation is ¢harped on a straight-line basis to the income statement, over tha foliowing
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment - 10 o 20 years
Fumiture and vehicles 510 10 years
Computer hardware 3 to 7years

Land is valued at acquisition ¢ost except if held under long-term laase arrangements, when it is amortized over the life of
the lease. The Jand held under long-term lease agreements ralates to upfront payments to lease land on which certain of
Syngenta's buildings are located. The buildings related to the long-term lease agresments are depreciated over the
legser of tha life of the lease and that of the related assets. Additional eosts, which extend the usefyl life of the property,
plant and equipment, are capitalized. Financing costs associated with the construction of property, plant and equipment
are not capitalized. Property, plant and equipment which are financed by leases giving rights to use the assets as if
owned are capitalized st their estimated cost (at the lawer of fair value and the present value of minimum lease
payments) at the inception of the lease, and depreciated in the same manner as sther property, plant and equipment over
the fesser of the remaining lease term or estimated useful life.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are valued at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. (n the case of business
combinations, the excass of the purchase price ovar the fair value of nel identifiable assets acquired is recorded in the
halance sheet as goodwill. Goodwill is amortized o income on a stralght-iine basis over its useful life and is included
within general and administrative expenses in the incorne statament. The amortization period is daterminged at the time of
the acquisition, based upon the particular circumstances, reviewad annually and ranges from 5 to 20 years. Goodwill
relating to acquisilions arising prior to January 1, 1985 has been fuily written off against shareholders’ equity.

Managemen! determines the estimated useful life of goadwill based on its evaluation of the respective operations at the
time of their acquisition, cansidering factors such as existing market share, potential sales growth and other factors
inherent in the acquired companies.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

Other acquired intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Product rights and related supply agreements §to 20 years
Trademarks 10 %0 20 years
Software 3to §years
Others 3to 15 years

Trademarks are amartized on a straight lina basis over their estimated econemic or legal life. whichever is sharter,

Useful lives assigned to acguired produc! rights are based on the maturity of the product and the estimated aconomic
benefit that such product rights ¢an provide.

Any valiia attributabla te long-term supply agresments at prereréntial tarms is amortized as par of cost of goods soid
over the period of the supply agreement.

Impairment

Non-currenl assets, including recognized intangibles and goodwill, are reviewad at each balance sheet dale {o determine
whether gvents of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may nat be recoverable, If
any sueh indication axigts, Syngenta estimates the asset’s recoverable amount as the higher of net seliing price and
value-in-uge and recognizes an impairmant loss in the incorne statement for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount. Value-in-use is estimated as the present value of future cash flows expectad to
result from the uge of the asset and its eventual dispesal, to which an appropriate pre-tax discount rate is applied. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets ara grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows. In 2002, the discount rates ytilized were between 13% and 16%, Considerabla management judgement is
necassary o estimate discounted future cagh flows, Accordingly, actual results could vary from such aestimates,

Income taxes

Income taxas for tha year comprise sumrent and deferred tax. using rates enacted or substantially enacted at the baiance
sheet date.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustments to tax payable in respect
of pravious years., Deferred tax is recognized based on tha balance sheet liability method, calculated on tamporary
diffarences between the tax bases of assets and liabllities and their carrying amounts in the financlal stataments.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investmants in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
excent where the timing of the reversat of the temporary differenca ¢can ba controliad and it is probable that the difference
wiil not raverse in the foreseeabla future. Deferred tax asgets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be availabls against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation
aliowance to tha extent that it is not probabie that the retated tax benafit will be realized.

Dividands

Dividends are recorded in the consofidated finangial statements in the period in which they are approved by the
shareholders of Syngenta AG.

Cash dividends are payable to holders of shares listed on the Swiss Stock Exchange, the OM Stockholm Stock

Exchange, the London Stock Exchange and the New Yori Steck Exchange, and will be paid in Swiss francs, Swedish
krona, British pounds sterling and US dollars, respectively.
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Notes to the Synganta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

Treasury shares

Share capital includes the par value of treasury shares held by the Syngenta Group which have not been cancelled.
Treasury shares are shown as a separate compenent of equity and stated at the amaeunt paid to acquire them.
Differences betwean this amount and the amount recaivad on the disposal of treasury shares are recorded as 2
movement in consofidated equity.

Borrowings

Borrowings are récognized initially at the proceeds received. net of transaction costs inciirmed. In subsequent perieds,
borrowings are stated at amortized cost using tha effective yield mathod except where subject to a fair value hedge
relationship. Borowing costs are charged ta income as incurred, .

Financial ingtruments

Financial liabilities are stated at amortized ¢ost. Financial assets are stated initially at cost and subsequently restated to
fair value at each reporting date.

Syngenta yses various dedvative financial instruments t6 manage s forelgn currency and Interest rate exposures, and
certain commodities expesures. Syngenta has established policies and procedures for risk assassment and approval,
reporting and monitoring of financial derivative instruments,

Syrgenta does not enter into speculative or derivative transactions not related to the operating business.

Foreign exchange forward contracts, which cover existing foraign curency balance sheet exposure, are recorded at fair
value, and related foreign currency gains and losses are included in “financial expense, net" within the income statement.

Movements in fair value of financial instruments that hedge risks related {o forecast transactions are recognized in
shareholders’ equity until such time as the ¢arresponding hadged transaction ocgurs, At this time, the cumulative
movement in fair value of the hadge Is transferred to net income. Subsequent movemants in fair value of such hedges
are deait with in net income, Realized and unrealized gains and loases on foreign surrency forward contracts designated
as specific hedges of anticipated purchases and sales in foreign currency are recognized in the same period that the
foteign currency flows are recognized. Reatized end unrealized gains and loeses on forward starting interest rate swaps
designated as hedges are recognized over the same period thal the interest expensa of the forecasted financing
trangactions is recognized in the income statement.

The fair value of publicly traded derivatives ang available-for-sale securities is based an quoted markat prices of the
specific instruments held at the balance sheet date. The fair value of intarest rate swaps is calculated as the prasent
valus of the estimated future cash flows. The fair vaiue of forward fereign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet dalg,

In agsessing the fair value of non-traded derivatives and other financia! instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Other technigues,
sueh as option pricing models, are used to determine feir valus for the remaining financial instruments,

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, ot when a hedge no longer meets the critaria for cash flow hadge
accounting, any cumuigtive unrealized gain or loss on the hedging instrument at that time remains in shareholders’
aquity, The gain or loss is recognized in the income statement when the committad or forecasted transaction is
recognizad in the income statement. However, if a committed or forecasted transaction is no longer expected to oceur.
the cumulative unréalized gain or loss on the hedging instrument is immediataely recorded in the income statément.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financlal Statemeants

Syngenta decuments the relationship between a hedging instrument and the related hedged item, as well as risk
management objactives and the stratagy for undertaking each hedge transaction, at the incaption of the transactions.
Hedge effectiveness is assassed and reviewed both at the inception of the hedge and en an ongoing basis by
determining whether the financial instruments used are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of
hedged items.

1A8 39, “Financial Instruments: Racognition and Measurement’ became effective for Syngenta on January 1, 2001, Asa
rasult, upon adoption, unrealized gains and logses on derivative financial instruments designated as hedges of
anticipatad transacticns ware recorded ag derivative assets or derivative ligbilities in the batance sheet and in the cash
flow hedge reserve in shareholders' equity. The adoption of IAS 39 resuited in the inclusion of a cash flow hedge reserve
in equity of approximately US$4 million on a pre-tax basis and approximately US$3 millien on an after-tax basie

Provisions

A provigion is recognized in the balance sheet when Syngenta has a tegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of
discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected value of future cash flows at a pre-lax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time valug of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is racognized only when reimbursement is virtually certain. The amount to be reimbursed is
recognized as a separate asset. Where Syngenta has g joint and several liability with cne or more other parties, no
provigion is recognized to the extent that those other parties are expected to settle part or all of the obligation.

Environments! provisions

Syngenta is exposed to environmental liabilities relating to its past operations, principally in reapect of remediation costs.
Provisions for nonsrecurfing remediation costs ara made when there is a present obligation, it is probabie that expenss
on remediation work will be required within ten years (or a longer period if specified by a legal cbligation) and the ¢ost
can be estimated within a reasonable range of possible outcomes. The costs are based on currently available facts,
technology expacted (o be available al the time of the clean-up, laws and regulations presently or virtually certain to be
enacted and prior experience in remediation of contaminated sites, Environmental liabilities are recorded at the
estimated amount at which the liability could be settied at the balance sheet date.

Restructuring provisions

A provision for restructuring is recognized when Syngenta has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan and the
restructuring has either commenced or been announced pubticly. Costs relating to the engoing activities of Syngenta are
not recognized until thay have been incurred,

Penslon funds, post-retirement benefits, other long-term employee benefits and amployee share participation
plans

(a) Defined benefit pension plans

Tha liability in raspect of defined benefit pension plans repregents the defined benefit obligation catculated annually by
indepandent actuaries using the projected unit cradit method.

The defined benefit obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The charge for such
arrangements, representing the benefit expense less employee contributions, is included in the personnel expenses of
the various functions where tha employees ara lecated. Plan assets are racorded at their fair values. Significant gains or
Icsses arising from experience effects and ¢hanges in actuaral assumptions are charged or credited to income over the
sefvice lives of the related employees to the extant to which they fall outside the 10% comider permitted under 1AS 19
(revised 2002).
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financlal Statements

Where Syngenta employees have participated in arrangements sponsored by Novartis AG, Syngenta’s share of the
defined benefrt obligation, plan assets and unrecognized gains and losses have bean includad in the financial statements
at best estimates of Syngenta’s share of the total plan and the amounts expected to be transferred to Syngenta. Up to
the Separation Date these plans were accounted for as multi-employer pians since the Syngenta share of the assets still
had to be determined. As a result, the contributions to these plans represent tha pension expense for the period up to
the Separation Date.

(b) Post-retirement benefits other than pensions
Certain operations provide heaithcare and insurance benafits for a portion of thalr retired employees and their eligible
dependents,

The liability in respect of these benefits represents the defined benefit obligation caleulated annually by independent
acluaries using the projected unit credit method, The defined beneflt obligation is measured at the present value of the
future cash flows, The benefit expense is included in the personnel expenses of the various functions. Significant gains
or losses arising from experience effects and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to income over
the service lives of the related employees to the extent to which they fall outside the 10% corridor penmitted under IAS 19
(revised 2002). ‘

(c) Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits represent amounts due to employees under deferred compengation arrangements
mandated by cenain jurisdictions in which Syngenta conducts its oparations. Banefit cost is recognized on an acerual
basis in the personnel expenses of the various functions where the employees are located. The relaled abligation is
presantad within provisions in the cansolidated balance sheet.

(d) Employee share participation plans
No compersation cost is recognized in the financial statements for oplions or shares granted to employeas from
employee share panticipation plans,

(e) Change in accounting policy

With effect from January 1, 2002, Syngenta has adopted IAS 19 (revised 2002) relating to employee benefits. The
¢hange introduced additional requirements for immediate recognition of actuarial gains and lesses in the income
statement, in situations where the maximum limit on pension asset balance recegnition under paragraph 58 of 1AS 19
applies, Restatement of prior year amounts is not applicable to this change and no restatemant has been made,

3. Changes in the scope of consolldation

The following significant changes were made during 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Acquisitions 2002

On June 26, 2002, additional shares in Wilson Genetics LLC (USA) were acquired, increasing Syngenta's shareholding
from 50% to 100%. On July 1, 2002, additional ghares-in Orynova K.K, (Japan) were acquired, Ingreasing Syngenta's

sharehalding to 100% from §0%, These acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method. The aggregate
consigeration paid was less than US$1 million.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolldated Financial Statements
Acquisitions 2001

On January 1, 2001, 100% of Pollen Ltd. (Kenya) was acquired; on January 30, 2001, additional shares were acquired in
Syngenta Crop Protection Sdn. Bhd., (Malaysia) increasing Syngenta's shareholding to 85% from 51%; on July 1, 2001,
voling control was acquired ovar additional shares in Syngenta Crop Protection Ltd, (Thailand) increasing Syngenta's
shareholding to 100% from 50%; on October 12, 2001, additicnal shares were acquired in CC Banaist SA (France)
increasing Syngenta's shareholding to 100% from 44% and on September 1, 2001, additional shares were acquired in
Tomono Agrica K.K, (Japen) increasing Syngenta's shareholding 16 100% from 50%. |n aggregate, the acquititions were
made under the purchase method for US$60 million. Goodwill of US$8 million was recognized on these transactions and
will be amortized over perieds of 10 to 20 years. Goodwill amortization is included in general and administrative
expenses on the consolidated income statament,

Divestments 2001

In connection with the Transactions, Syngenta agreed to divest certain products and product rights in erder to obtain
ragulatery autharities’ approval of the merger of Novertis agribusiness with Zeneca agrochemicals business. in 2001,
completed divestments included the sales of the herbicide propaquizafop, the fungicide flutriafol and the insecticide
thiocyclam, 2001 sales in the period up to divestmant were USES million for these products and product rights. 2001
divestments produced net gains of US$75 millien (Note 6).

Acquisitions 2000
Ag disclosed in Note 1, Syngenta acquired the Zeneca agrochemicals business on November 13, 2000. This acquisition

was accounted for under the purchase method. The purchase consideration and fair values of asgets acquired including
adjustments made in 2001 are presented below:

TCST mitton]

Purchase consideration

- fair value of purchase consideration 1,975

- capital contribution received from AstraZeneca (210)
Net purchase cansiderstion 1,765
Less: fair value of net assets acquired (1.087)
Goodwill 698

Goodwill on this acguisition is being amortized on a straight line basis over 20 years,

Divestments 2000

In connection with the Transactions, Syngenta agraed to divest certain products and product rights in order to obtain
regulatory authorities’ approval of the merger of Novartis agribusiness with Zeneca agrochemicals business, In 2000,
completad divestments includad the sale of the fungicide, Flint. 2000 sales in the period up te divestment were US$329
million for these preducts and product rights on a combined proforma basis. 2000 divestments produced net gains of
US$785 million (Note 6).
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

4, Segmental breakdown of key figures 2002, 2001 and 2000

Synganta is organized on a worldwide basis into three reporting segments.

Crop Protection

The Crop Pretection segment principally manufactures, distributes and sells herbicides, insecticides, and fungisides.
Seeds

The Seeds segment sells seeds for growing com, sugarbeet, oilseeds, vagetables and flowers.

Plant Stience

The Plant Science segment, which was referred to as the New Technology segment in the 2001 consolidated financial
statemnents, is engaged in research, development and licensing of technologies enabiing production of plants with
enhancad agronemic, nutritional and pharmaceutical proparties. Future income is axpected t¢ arise from licensing
arrangements,

General

Syngenta manages its three segments separately because their current or future sources of ingome derive from distinct
types of products or technologies which require different manufacturing, distribution and marketing strategies.

Net segment operating assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible asssts, inventories and
receivables less operating liabilities, Unallecated itams are those which, according (o IAS 14, do not meet the ¢riteria for
inclusion under one of the thrae reparting segments. They consist of net debt (inancial debts less cash and cash
equivalents) and deferred and currant taxes,

The accounting palicies of the segments described above are the sama as thoge described in the summary of agtounting
policies,
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financlal Statements
4. Segmental breakdown of key figuras 2002, 2001 and 2000 (continued)
2002 Trep
(USS million, except smployans) Prowelign Seads  PlntSclence ™ Unatlecatnd Total
Third party segment sales 5,260 937 . . 6,187
Cost of goads sold (2,681) (451) - . {3,132)_
Gross profit 2,579 486 - 3,065
Marketing ang distribution {908) (237) - B (1,146)
Research and development (425) (119) (153) - (887)
General and administrative (500) (82) (20) - (582)
Merger and restructuring costs, net of divestment
yains (348) (48) - b (396)
Operating income 397 20 (173) - 244
included in the above operating income arg: ’
Personnel costs {1,188) (255) (76) . (1,517)
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment (223) (30) (13) . (268)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (1Q0) ) - - (108)
Amartization of intangible assets (239) (1 - (250)
Impairment of intangible assets - (32) - - (32)
Income/(loss) frem associates and joint ventures (4) - (3) - )
Cthar non-cash items including charges in respect of
provisicns (388) (20 1) - {408)
Total agsetz _ 8,189 1,008 01 1,241 10,526
Liabilities and minority Interests (2,36€0) (261) (16) (3,539) (6,176)
Included in total assats are:
Total property, plant and equipment 2,035 199 75 - 2,310
Additions to property, plant and equipment 130 23 12 - 185
Additions t¢ intangible assets 18 4 . - 2
Total investments in associates and jont ventures 72 13 10 - 95
Employees at year end 15,698 5,891 775 - 22,364

™ The Plant Science segment was referred to aa the New Technology segment in the 2001 consolidatad financial statements.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Segmental breakdown of key figures 2002, 2001 and 2000 (continued)

f\?g‘s milfien, axcspt empioyees) Pmtn::g: Ssedy  Piant Seience " Unallocated Tota!
Third party segment sales 5,385 938 - - 8,323
Cos! of goods seid {2,740) {459) - . (3.198)
Gross profit 2,645 479 - - 3,124
Marketing and distribution (948) (230) - . (1,178)
Research and development (458) (112) (153) - (723)
General and administrative (501} (88) (14) - (581)
Merger and restructuring costs, net of divestment

gsins (265) (8} - ) 277)
Operating income 473 82 (167) (3) 365
In¢iuded in the above operating income are;

Personnel costs (1,199) (248) (34) - (1.479)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (221 (31) (8) - (260)
Impairment of property, plant and equipmant (84) - - - (84)
Amortization of intangible assets (221) (11) . - (232)
Income/{loss) from associates and joint ventures (3) - (2) . 5}
Other non-cash items including charges in respect of

provisions (346) (40) . - (388)
Total assets B,711 1,102 132 764 10,709
Liabilities and minority interests (2,264) (260) {30) (4,082) _(6,623)
Included in total assets are:

Total property, plant and equipment 2.070 208 70 . 2,348
Additions to property, plant and equipment 201 39 13 - 253
Additlons to intangible assets 118 10 . - 128
Total investments in associates and joint venturea 70 15 18 . 103
Employees at year end 16,290 5,707 794 - 22,791

™ The Plan Science segment was referred to as the New Technology segment in the 2004 consolidated financis! statsments,
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolldated Financial Statements

4. Segmental breakdown of key figures 2002, 2001 and 2000 (comtinued)

zn;u gg miltlon, excopt empioyees) Pmui;ooi Seods _ Plant Bclonce ! Unsllecated Tolad

Third party segment sales 3,918 958 - . 4,876

Cost of goods sold (1,848) {496) - - (2,442)
Gross profit 1,872 462 - - 2404

Markeling and distribution (754) (238) . - (989)
Research and development (312) {103) (122) - (837)
General and administrative (240) (121) (3) - (384)
Merger and restructuting costs, net of divestment

qaing 524 . {FR) 458

Operating income 1,180 3 (125) (68) 1,000

included in the above oparaling income are:

Personnel costs (745) (281) (9) - {1,018)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (148) (32) (8) - (186)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (22) . - . (22)
Armortization of intangible assets (80) (10 - - (80)
impairment of intangible assets .- {18) - . (15)
Income/(loss) from associates and joint vantures (WD) - - (1)
Other non-cash itams including charges in respect of

provisions 445 (18) 427

Total agsets 9,487 1,122 131 1,075 11,818
Liabilities and minority interests (2,379) (278) (10) {4.938) {7,608)
Incluged in total assets are:

Total property, plant and squipment 2,342 218 89 . 2,649
Additions to property. plant and equipment 144 38 3 - 185
Additions te intangible assets 53 8 - - 3]
Total investments in associates and joint ventures 73 23 14 - 112
Employees at year end 17,755 6,331 835 - 24,921

“The Plant Science segmant was rafarrad to aa the New Techaclogy seégment in the 2001 conaclidated financial statements,
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5. Regional breakdawn of key figures 2002, 2001 and 2000
Curope & Asia
2002 (USS millien) NAFTA @ AME™  Latin America Pacific Total
Sales 2,260 2,346 661 930 6,197
Total assets 2,752 6,292 666 814 10.526
Additione to property, plant and equipment 58 89 10 8 186
Additions to intangible assets 1 21 - . 22
Eurdpe & Asla
2001 {USS minlon) NAFTA & AME ® 1 an Amarca Pacific Totsl
Sales ¥ 2,291 2,263 755 1,004 6,323
Total assets 3,123 5,740 1,005 841 10,709
Additions to property, plant and equipment 30 128 45 20 253
Additions to intangible asgets 43 45 - - 128
EUrops & As
2008 (US$ milllon) _NAFTA® AME® _ Letin Ameries Pacifle Total
Sales ¥ 1,690 1,747 841 798 4,878
Total assets 3223 6,525 1,184 ar3 11,815
Additions to property, piant and squipment 59 98 13 15 185
Additions to intangible assets - 59 - - 59

The following courtries accounted for more than 5% of the respective Synganta totals as at, or for the years ended,
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

{US$ millign, sxcept %) Salen !’ Total asxels

Gountry 2002 1A 2001 % 2000 % 7002 % 2001 % 3000 %
Switzerland 131 2 102 2 =] 2 4073 39 3748 35 3654
UK 162 3 151 2 111 2 804 8 218 g 1,363 12
USA 1887 30 1900 30 1446 30 2802 25 3003 28 3048 26
France 473 8 577 9 488 10 090 4 388 3 553 5
Brazil 354 6 488 7 371 8 523 5 783 7 757 6
Germany 337 5 281 -] 215 4 98 1 77 1 153 1
Others 2873 48 2,846 45 2168 44 2,017 18 1821 17 2287 19
Total 6487 100 6,323 100 4,876 100 10,526 100 10,709 100 11,815 100
" galgs by location of third party customer.

@ NAFTA - North American Free Trade Association compriging the USA, Canada and Mexico

® AME - Africa and the Middle East

mgUSS milllon, oxcepl %) Additona ts prepsrty, plani and equipment Additions t0 Inisnglbie sssats

Country 2002 % 2604 % 2000 % 002 % 001 % 200 %
Switzeriand 29 18 27 11 34 18 20 92 45 35 59 100
UK 31 19 63 5 31 17 - - - - - -
USA 56 34 88 35 58 3 1 4 83 @5 . -
France 9 5 3 1 8 3 - - . - - -
Brazil 7 4 11 4 11 8 - . - - . -
Germany 1 1 1 - 7 4 . - - - - -
Othars 32 19 60 24 38 21 1 4 - - - -
Total 185 100 253 100 185 100 22 100 128 100 §9 100

No single customer accounts for 10% or more of Syngenta’s total sales,
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements
6. Merger and restructuring costs, net of divestment gains
Merger and restructuring costs, net of divestment gains, consist of the fallowing:
(USS miilion) 2002 2001 2000
Merger costs . @ (68)
Restructuring costs for redundant operations and activities;
- integraticn and synergy costs (248) (251) (238)
- non-cash pension and other post-ratirement benefits
regtructuring charges (14) (12) -
- tangible fixed asset impairments (102) (82) (23)
-~ intangible fixed asset impairments (32) (2) -
Divestmant gains - 78 785
Total (396) (277) 456

Merger costs in 2000 comprised certain nan-regurring costs associated with the Transactions, including legal costs
(US$S5 million), Investment bankers' feas (US$413 million). cther advisers' fees (US3E million), consultancy fees (US$9
million), comrmunication ¢osts (US$20 million} and ather costs (US$15 million). These costs were expensed as thay

relate to the initial listing of shares on stock exchanges.

Divestment gains of US$75 million in 2007 (2000; US3785 million) represent the net pre-tax gain on the disposal of
products divested in response to competition authorities' requirements (Note 3),

7. Financial expense, net

(USS miliion) 2002 2001 2000
interest income 75 &9 43
Finan¢ial income 75 89 43
Interest expense - third party (188) (242) (83)
- related party . - (89)
Other financial expense {19) (22) (31)
Financial expense {207) {264) (173)
Currency gaing/(losses), net (58) (54) 45
Total (188) (249) (85)
8. Income tax expense
Income before taxes and minority interests consists of the following:
{u8$ mililon) 2002 2001 2000
Switzerland 273 (104) 620
Fargign _(224) 215 294
Total income befora taxes and minority interests 49 111 914
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

income tax expense consists of the following:

{US§ milllon) 2002 2001 2000
Current income tax expense

Switzerland (28) (15) (65)
Foreign {103) (128) (274)
Total current incoma tax expense (131) {144) {339)
Daferred incoma tax expense

Switzeriand (57 36 4
Foreign 118 32 (8)
Total deferred income tax expense 61 68 {1
Total income tax expense

Switzerland (85) 21 81)
Foreign 15 9N {279)
Total income tax expense _{70) ) (340)

For 2002 and 2001, the components of surrent income tax expanse are (2000 ¢omparatives are not avgilabie):

{USS mililon) _2002_ 2001
Current tax relating to current years (145) (178)
Adjustments to currant tax for prio¢ periods {12) 28
Baenafit of previously unrecognized tax losses 28 )
Total (131 (144)

For 2002 and 2001, the components of deferred income tax expense are (2000 comparatives are not available):

{USS million) 2003 2004
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 99 143
Changes in tax rates (10} (2)
Benefit of previously unrecognized tax iosses 6 -
Valuation allowarce against defefred tax azsets {34) {73)
Tota) 61 68

The following tax was {charged)/credited to sharehelders' equity (2000 comparatives are not available):

(USS miilian) 2002 2001
Curment tax . .
Deferred tax 34 -
Total 34 .
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements
Analysis of tax rate
The analysis of Syngenta’s lax rate has been presentad using the Swiss tax rate of 25% as the statutory tax rate.
Syngenta ¢onsiders this more meaningful than using a weighled average tax rate.
The main elements contributing to the difference balween Syngenta's overall expaectad tax rate and the effective tax
rate are: :

002 2001 2000

% % %

Statutory tax rate 25 25 25
Effect of invuine laxed al different rates 63 (18) 4
Effect of disatlowed expenditures 49 18 5
Effect of utilization of previously unracagnized deferred tax assets (53) (5) (1)
Etfect of non-recagnition of tax losses in current year 41 34 10
Prior year and other items 16 1A (8)
Effectiva tax rate 141 68 37

The utilization of tax loss carry forwards lowered the tax charge by US$28 million. US$6 million, and US$S million, in
2002. 2001 and 2000 respectively,

9. Eamings per share

(JS$ miition, axcept par sihars amounty)} 2002 2004 2000
Net income/(loss) for the financial year i (27) 34 564
Basic and diluted eamings/(loss) per ordinary share (US$) (0.26) 0.34 7.61
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in igsue (millions) -

basic and diluted. 102 101 74

Basic eamings per share has been calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of erdinery shares
outstanding during the year. Diluled earnings per share is ¢calculated by adjusting outstandirg shares, assuming
conversion of alf potentially dilutive share opliens, Taking into account the issuance of share options under the Syngenta
Executive Stock Option Plan, and the UK employee share option plans, which are the only ditutive potential ordinary
shares in existence at December 31, 2002, the amounts for basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.

At the Separation Date, 69 million ordinary shares of Syngenta were issued to Novartis shareholders. This issuance i3
considered a recapitalization of Syngenta's predacesser, Novartis agribusingss. Therefore, these shares are considered
outstanding for all periods pricr to the Transaction date. An addilional 44 million ordinary shares of Syngenta were
issued to AstraZsneca shareholders on the Transaction date. in consideration of Zeneca agrochemicals business.
Approximately 10% of total outstanding shares were repurchased by Syngenta as treasury shares, shertly following the
Separation Date, Treasury shares are deducted from (he total shares in issue for the purposes of calculating earnings per
share,

Accordingly, the weighted average numbar of ordinary shares in issue was 74 million for 2000, after agjustment for the 44
million shares issued in conjunction with the Zeneca acquisition and the shares repurchased by Syngenta in November,
2000, as from the issuance and repurchase dates respectively. In 2002 and 2001, the weighted average number of
ordinary shares has been adjusted for the number of treesury shares issued under Emplcyee Share Purchase Plans
(Note 27).



003 12:38 SYNGEINTA 441 61 3233451 W52 3 16/20
Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financlal Statements
10. Trade and other accounts receivable
(US$ million) 2002 2001 2000
Trade accounts raceivable, gross 1,854 2.188 2,328
Provision far doubtful receivables (252) {328) (324)
Trade accounts receivable, net 1,802 1.860 2,004
Qther receivables - third party 242 238 279
- Nevartis - . 15
- associates 1 4 8
Total 1,845 2,402 2,304
Mavements on provisions far doubtful receivables were as follows:
{US$ milllon) 2002 2001 000
January 1 (328) (324) (268)
Additions charged to income (33) 2N (31)
Amounts written off 73 42 60
Other movemants (1) (29) 81
Transiation effecls 52 10 (8)
December 31 (252) (328) {324)
11, Other current assots
{UE3 mitlion) 208 2001 2000
Prepaid expenses - third party 108 135 56
« 8880Ciates . - 2
Derivative assets - hedging financing exposures 288 50 -
- hedging trading expesures 108 25 -
Marketable securities 13 4 .
Assets held for divestmant 3 - 105
Total 516 214 163
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12. Inventories
(U3 mittion) 2002 2001 2000
Raw materials and consumables 356 301 507
Fimished products 1,348 1,415 1.324
Total 1,704 1,716 1,921
Al December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 inventory provisions of US3163 million, US$138 milllgn and US$140 milkion
respectively wara deducted in arriving at the above amounts.
Finished products at December 31, 2002 and 2001 include LJSESR77 millian and US$658 milllon of work in progroaa
regpectively.
Movemenls on provisions for inventories were as follows:
(US$ millten) 2002 200 2000
January 1 (138) (140) {118)
Additions charged to income (43) (24) (13)
Reversals ¢redited to income 1 20 12
Amcunts utilized on disposa! of related inventories 17 30 -
Other movements 4) 27 {17)
Translation effacts (6) 3 4)
December 31 {163) (138) (140)

At December 31, 2002 the value of the inventories against which these pravisions have been made was US$402 million,

before deducting the provisions.
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13. Property, plant and equipment
Plant and
ocher
Machinery oquigment
nd under
{USS miiilen) Land Bulldinga oguipmant  conatructon Jatal 2002 Tota) 2001 Total 2000
Cost
January 1 117 1,329 2,868 101 4,415 4,541 3,316
Additions 1 14 75 75 185 253 185
Disposals (8) (34) (172) 2 (212) (111) (140}
Acquisition of Zeneca
agrochemicale busincsa
(Note 3) - . - - - (112) 1,182
Transfers between categories 4) 29 81 (e6) - -
Changes | scope of
consalidation - - - - - - 1
Translation effects § 183 336 8 516 (158) (13}
December 31 115 1,501 3,168 100 4,884 4,415 4,541
Accumulated depreciation
January 1 (3 (552) (1,512) . {2,087) (1,892) {1,7586)
Depreciation charge . {52) (214) - (268) (260) {186)
Impairmant {6) {(32) (70} - (108) (84) (22)
Depreciation on digposals - 21 159 - 180 80 92
Transfer between categories 2 (27) 25 - - . -
Changes in s¢ope of
consolidation . R . . . . (1)
Translatign effects - (81 (222) - _{313) 79 {19)
December 31 (7) (733) (1.834) - {2,574) (2,067)  (1,892)
Net book value -
December 34 108 788 4,334 100 2,310 2,348 2,649
Net book vaiua — December
31,2001 114 777 1,358 101 2,348
Insured value — December
31, 2002 - 2,287 4,738 134 7.139 6,952 7,002

Asset impairments were ¢aiculatsd as described in Note 2. The impairments arose principally from the restructuring and

site closures described in Note 22.

Land and buildings of US$18 millien net boak vaiue included sbove and hetd by the Crop Protection segment are held for

rasale.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolldated Financial Statements

14, Intangible assets

Produst Other
{Us$ millon) Gooawill rights  Trsdemarks Softwars _Irtanglbles Total 2002 Tetel 2001 Totl 2000
Cost
Janyary 1 998 2,332 7 72 123 3,532 3,280 1,110
Additions - 1 - 21 . 22 128 59
Disposals - - . M (2) (3) {1) (2)
Acquisition of Zenec¢a
agrochemicals business
(Note 3) - - . - - - 130 2147
Transters between categones (2) (34) . - -] - - -
Changes in scope of
congolidation - 3 - - - 3 18 -
Translation effects 12 94 2 4 19 123 (23) (34)
December 31 1,008 2,396 3 96 168 3,677 3,632 3,280
Accumulated amortization
January 1 ~ (106) (374) (2) (30) (16) {528) (302) {200)
Amortization charge (53) (157) n (24) (18) (250) (230) (90)
Impairment (23) . - - (9) (32) (2) (15)
Amertization on disposals - - . - 1 1 1 .
Transfers between categories 17 17 - - - - - -
Reclassification from other
cumrent liabilities - - - . (8) 8 - -
Changes in scope of
consolidation - . - - - . . -
Translation effects (3) (40) - (1) (3) (47) 5 k|
December 31 (202) {554) (3) (55) {50) (864) (528) (302)
Net book value,
December 31 806 1,842 [ 41 118 2,813 3,004 2,978
Net book vaiue,
December 31, 2001 892 1,958 5 42 107. 3.004

Asgel impairments were calculated ag described in Nate 2. These impact two cash-generating units in the Seeds
segment and are the result of deteriorating trading sonditions and forecasts.

Amontization is included within both cost of goods sold and general and administrative expenses,
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Notas to the Syngenta Group Consolldated Financial Statements

18. Investments In assoclates and joint ventures

Syngenta has the following significant invastments in associates and joint ventures, which are accounted for using the

equity mathod:

% B3lance shool value Income staterment ¢ffect
(US$ millien) Ownearahip 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
CIMO Compagnie industrialle de Monthey SA,
Switzerland 50 66 57 61 (2) (2) -
Saclété Etablissamant Claunde Camille Ranntet
SA, France " . . 11 . . .
Maisadour Semences SA, France 40 10 8 7 1 1 (M
North American Nutrition and Agribusiness Fund,
USA 34 13 25 21 4) (3 -
Others ) 6 13 12 (2) (1) -
Total 95 103 112 {7) (5) (1)

U prier 10 Qctober 12, 2001 - thereatter the company became a subsidiary of Syngenta.
16. Deferred taxes

The deferred tax assets and liabiilties are analyzed as follows:

{WE$ miltion) 2002 2001 2000
Assets assoclated with:

- inventones 163 154 168
- accounts receivable 38 26 38
- tangible fixad assets - . 9
~ pension and employee costs 86 82 75
- provisions 153 239 173
- net operating 105566 58 53 21
- other 157 102 185
Dafarred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 666 668 839
Llabilitias agsociated with:

- property, ptant and equipment deprsciation 254 243 375
- intangible assets 534 554 533
- other provisions and accruals 310 362 362
Deferred tax llabilities 1,098 1,169 1,270
Net dofarred tax asset/(liability) (432) (493) {(631)
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The gross value of net operating loss camy forwards which have not been recognized as deferred tax assats, with their

expiry dates, i3 ag follows:

(USS miillen) 202 2001 2000
one year 5 1 4
two years 42 2 4
three years 36 43 8
four years 149 149 25
five years 131 110 50
more than five years 110 185 310
ng exgiry 107 17 -
Total 580 477 402
The movaments in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows;
{US$ miilon) January 1 Recognized In  Recognizea In Tramslation Other Decomber 31
fnetincoms squity offacts movementy
Assels assaciated with
- Inventories 184 9 - 1 (1) 163
- accounts receivable 26 14 - (6) 4 38
- pensions and employee costs 92 (5) 4 5 . 96
- provisions 239 41) 2 47 1583
- net operating o¢sas 53 16 - (11) A 59
- other’ 102 81 18 - (24) 157
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation 666 54 22 {9) (67) 866
allowance
Liabilities associated with:
- property, plant and equipment 243 (18) . 28 1 254
- intangible assets 554 (3n . 10 1 534
- other provisions and accruals 362 42 {12} 14 (86) 310
Deferred tax Mlabilities 1,159 (7) (12) 52 (94) 1.093
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) (493) 61 34 (64) 27 (432)
Defarred tax assets, other than net aperating losses, are not subject ta expiry.
A deferred tax asset or liability has not bean recognized on the following items:
(USS miillan) 2002 2001 2000
Temporary differences for which deferred tax assets have not been recognized 190 148 137
Tamporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which
deferrad tax liabilities have not been recognized 453 443 457
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

17. Other financial assets

{U3S miltion) 2002 2001 2000
Longsterm laana to associates 7 ] 12
Equity securities available-for-gale and non.current receivables 1588 197 01
Prepaid pension (Note 26) 178 65 80
Total 345 268 293

jn 2002 and 2001, the line “Equity securities available-for-sale and non-current receivables® includes available-for-sale
secunities of US370 milllon and US$82 million regpectively. Nen-current racelvables are not interest bearing and therr fair
values approximate their carrying amounts.

18. Current financial debts

{USS mililen) 2002 2001 2000
Interest-bearing Novartis liabilities - . 144
Receivables factored with recourse 54 202 320
Euro floating rate notes 367 . .
Commercial paper 221 79 -
Bank and other financial debt 564 1,137 2613
Current portion of non-current financial debts (Nate 20) 1 2 a
Total 1,207 1,420 3,085

The above balance sheet values of current financial debt approximate the estimated fair value due to the short.term
nature of these instruments.

The weighted average Interest rate on the current bank and other financial debts was 6.9% per annum, 7.8% per annum
and 7.0% per annum in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,

Syngenta has a ¢ommitted, revolving, mutti-currency, syndicated credit facility of US$2,500 million (the “Credit Facility")
which matures in 2005. As of December 31. 2002 Syngenta had utllized US$48 million under the Credit Fagcility, leaving
US$2,452 miilion availabie for future requiraments. The Credit Facility provides that the interest rate is based on either
LIBOR or EURIBOR, depending upon the currency of the underlying borrowing, plus a margin and mandatory costs. In
addition to interest payments, Syngenta is obligated to pay centain variable commitment fees based upon the long-tem
credit rating assigned to Syngenta by Moody's Investars’ Services, In¢. and Standard and Poor's Corporation ranging
from 0.2% to 0.3% of the unused amount throughout the term of the facilitias,

As at December 31 2002, Syngenta has €350 million of Floating Rate Notes in isgua that mature in July 2003, At issue,
thega liabiiities had a value of US$296 million. As at December 31, 2002, they are shown at a value of US$3IB7 million,
Crass-currency swaps were implemented at the time of issue to hedge this exchange movement and the fair value of the
swaps is included in the derivative agsets and liabilities shown in Notes 11 and 18.

Syngenta also has US3221 million of Commercial Paper in issue under its Global Commerciat Paper program.
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

Collaterailzed non-current financisl debts and pledged agsets

{U§$ minion) 002 2001 2000
Total amount of collateralized nan-current financial debts 2 1 18
Total net book value of property, piant and equipment pladged as collateral for
non-curtent financial debts

- 2 3

Financial dabts, including current financial debts, contain only general and finangial default covenants (i.e. ratios such as
EBITDA to net interest charges / Net debt to EBITDA) with which Syngenta is In compliance.

19, Other current liabilities

(USS militon) ) 2002 2001 2000
Accrued expensas 442 428 3
Social security and pension contriputions 27 27 22
Derivative liabilitias - hedging financing exposuras s7 22 -

- hedging trading exposures 37 65 -
Qther payables 231 338 810
Total 794 882 1,043

20. Non-current financial dabts

{USE millien) 2092 200¢ 2009
Unsecured bond issues 842 1,012 -
Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions 82 103 105
Finance lsase obligations 2 3 3
Total (including current portlon of non-current flnancial debt) 926 1,118 108
Less: current portion of non-current financial @ebt (Note 18) (1) (2) (8)
Total 925 1,116 100

The weighted average interast rate on the non-curent bank and ether finangial debts was 5.0% per annym, 5.5% per
annum and 6.9% per annum in 2002, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

The waighted average interest rate on the combined current and non-current bank and other financiat debts was 8.0%
per annum, 7,1% per annum and 7.0% per annum in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,

The above belance sheet values of non-current financial debts approximate the estimated fair values of these
instruments.

On July 10, 2001, Syngenta issueq €800 million S-year Eurobands with a coupon rate of §.5%. Atissue, these liabilities
had a value of US$677 million. As at December 31, 2002, they are shown at a value of US$842 million. Crogs-currency
swaps were implementad at the time of issue to hedge this exchange movemant and lhe fair vaive of the swaps is
in¢luded in the derivative assets and liabilities shown in Notes 11 and 19,
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Terms and debt repayment schedule
1 year or More than §

(USS millign) Total _leas 1-2 yeara 25 years yoars
Euro 5.5% bond repayable 2006 842 . . 842 -
Eure floating rate notes repayable 2003 (at 3
month Euribor plus 0,.35%) 387 387 - - -
Commercial paper at various rates 221 221 . - -
Borrowings al various rates, under syndicated
bank facility which expires in 2005 48 48 - - -
US$ Industrial Revenue bonds, mainly at floating
rates 44 - 44 - -
Amaunts owing to banks under various loan and
overdraft facilities, in various currencigs and at
various interest rates 556 517 13 16 10
Receivables factored with recourse 54 54 - - -
Total 2,132 1,207 57 858 10

F &6



17. 4R, 2003 12:46 SYNGENTA #4161 3235481 LLORFUPR
Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements
21, Provisions
{USS mililon) 2002 200 2000
Restructuring previsions (Note 22) 273 257 350
Employeea benefits
- acecruad pension costs of single employer dafined benefit pians (Note 26) 101 119 133
- other fong-term employee benefits 54 53 -
QOther posteretirement benefits {Note 26) 112 108 103
Environmental provisions (Note 28) 381 355 275
Provisions for legal And pradisct liability settiements 51 75 53
Other provisions 16856 a9 27
Total 1,137 1,066 979
Current portion of:
- restructuring provisions 128 132 224
- employee benefits . 25 38
- anvironmental provisions 18 29 41
- provisions for legal and product liability settlements 12 - 14
- other provisions 39 34 10
Total current provisions 222 231 288
Total non-currant provisions 915 835 £83
Total 1,137 1,068 979
The foilewing table analyzes the movement in provisions during 2002:
Ralsasw of
Balance at provisions Balance at
January 4, Charged ts tredlicd o Recisass  Translatan Decernber 31,
{U8S$ militan) 2002 Acqulsitions incoma Incoms Paymentia Ifications affects 002
Rastructuring pravisions
(Note 22) 257 . 278 (14 (248) (22) 22 273
Empioyee benefits
- accrued pension costs of
single employer dafined
benefit plans (Note 26) 119 . €6, (3) 209) 112 16 101
- other long-term
employee banefits 53 . 7 - (4) 3) 1 54
Other post-retirement
venelits (Note 26) 108 - 10 - (8) 1 1 112
Environmental provisions
(Nota 29) 485 . 33 1) (14) (9) 27 381
Provisions for legal and
produst liability
settlements 75 . 9 (17 (8 (4) (@) 31
Other provisions 99 - 85 (9) (15) (1) 6 185
Total 1,068 - 486 {54) {504) 74 1] 1,137

Other provisions mainly comprise provisions for insurance risks cavered by the Group's insurance captive (all of which
relate to the Group's own business) and for long-term contractual obligations.

Fer7
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

22. Restructuring provisions

Employos
torminadon Qiher third

(UGS mitlion) coata party costs Total
December 31, 1999 3 20 53
Cash payments (13) (183) (208)
Acquisition of Zeneca agrochamicals business 45 188 213
Additions charged to income 128 201 329
Nen-income property, plant and aquipmens write-off - (23) (23)
Releases credited to income (12) - (12)
Trans|ation (gains)losses net (3) &) 4
December 31, 2000 178 172 350
Cash payments o {111) (241) (352)
Addilions charged to income ) N 178 269
Releases credited to income ) 1 (6)
Other movemants {2) 5 3
Translation (gains)iesses net {2} (3) N
December 31, 2001 147 110 257
Cash payments (84) (162) (248)
Additions charged to income 119 157 278
Releases credited to income . (14) - (14)
Reclassifications 11) (11) (22)
Transiation (gagins)losses net 13 g 22
December 31, 2002 170 103 273

Restructuring costs relate mainly to Syngenta's business integration restructuring plans, embarked upon following the
formation of Syngenta in November 2000. Such plans invelve termination of employees, integration of systems and the
closure of duplicate head office, Research and development and manufacturing facilities.

Approximately 3,000 jobs that existed at the formation of Syngenta will be eliminatad in respect of plans announced by
December 31, 2002, and 2,602 employass had aiready left the group by that date.

The charge to income of US$329 miltion in 2000 and US$289 million in 2001 arising from the integration of the combined
Syngenta businesses represent principaily the creation of new organizational structures to replace the prévious separate
legacy organizations and the plans announced in August 2001 to close certain manufacturing sites and refocus other
continuing manufacturing sites, The restructuring plans are due to complete by the end of 2008,

The charge to income of USS$27€ million in 2002 largely represents costs reisted to further progress in the synergy plans,
including plans to close a further four manufacturing sites, and the announced pian to refocus the activities of each of
Syngenta's main Research and Development sites on spacific astivities and out license cartain agtivities linked to the
alliance with Diversa Corpgration announced in Quartar 4. Of the total charge to income in 2002, US$48 million of
employee termination costs and US$21 million of other third party costs relate to the manufacturing integralion plans, and
U853 million of employee termination costs and US$35 million of other third party costs rslate 1o the Research and
deveicpment integration plans. The charge also included employee terminatian costs of US34 million ralating 1o
restructuring the Seeds business in South Korea,

Pravisions for other third party costs principally include payments for aarty termination of contracts with third parties
related to redundant activities,
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23, Share capital

The number of ordinary shares of par vaiue CHF 10 in issue, and movemente during the peried, were as foilows:

2002 2001 2000

Shares In Tregouly Shares in Teaasury Shares in Tressury
(Milligny of shares) 5 lysue _ wheres heid isaus _ shares held Issve __shares hetd
As at January 1 112.8 (11.2) 112.6 (14.3) - -
Contribution to capital of Novartis ngt . .
investment at separation - . 68.7 -
tssue of ordinary shares in consideration for - .
Zenecs agrochemicale buzinsee - - 42.9 -
Purchase of Treasuty shares - - - . . (11.3)
(ssue of ordinary shares under Employee Share
Furchase Plan . 0.2 - 0.1 - -
As at December 31 1126 (31.0) 1128 {11.2) 112.6 (11.3)

24. Cash flows arising from change in net current assets and other operating cash flows

{USS millien) 2002 2001 2000
Change in inventories 08 101 255
Change in trade and other accounts receivable and othar net current assets 360 41 28
Change in trade and other accounts payablg (50) (4) (129)
Total © 408 138 158

25. Cash flows arising from major business acquisitions and divestments

The following is a summary of the cash flow impact of the major business acquisitions and divestments:

TUBS muiion) 2003 7001 268 3600 7000
Divostments _ Acquisluons _ Divestments  Acquisillons  Divestments
Cash and cash eguivalents - (21) - 417 .
Trade and other accounts racaivable . (2) 105 (1.057) -
Other current assets 10 . . - .
Inventories - (1) - (518) 36
Property, plant and equipment - &) - (1,192) 12
Intangible assets (excluding geodwill) - (10} 15 {1,548) {35)
Qther nan-current assets - (1) - (345) T
Current and nonscurrent financial dabts - . - 1,871 -
Other liabilitias - 1 - 1,789 -
Provitigns - - - 451 -
Nat assets (acquired)/divested 10 (38) 120 (1,166) 40
Acquired/(divested) cash and cash equivalents - 21 . 417 -
Decrease in investments in associatas - 11 - - -
Sub-total ' 10 (3) 120 (749) 40
Goodwill . 8) - (599) -
Fair value of shares issued - . - 1,945 -
Capital contribution from AstraZeneca - - - (210) .
Reduction of equity and minority interests - (20) - - -
Divestment gains - - 75 - 785
Net Cash Flow - 11 {31) 195 187 825
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statemaents

26. Employee beneflts

Byngenta has, apan from the legally required soclal security schemes, numerous independent pension plans. At
December 31, Z000, many of these were pension plans sponsored by Novartis in conjunction with Novartis' other
gubgidiaries. Synpenta's paricipation in these plans prior to completing the Transactions ie accounted for as a multi-
employer plan for the purcoses of the 2000 income stalement. As at December 31, 2000, however, Syngenta’s shares of
the assets and liabililies of the plans formerly sponsored by Novarntis are in¢luded in the funded assets and liabilities.

Defined benefit pension plans cover the majority of Syngenta's employees. The defined benefit obligations and related
assets of all major plans are re-appraised yearly by independent actuaries. Plan assets are recorded at fair values,

Synhyela's main cefiney benett pension plans are In the UK, Switzerland and the USA. With efiect from January 1,
2002, the defined benefit section of Syngenta's main UK pension plan was clesed to employees joining Syngenta after
nat date. Al Decemnber 34, 2001, certain employees who were members of this plan had the option to conven their
pensions from defined contribution o defined benefit terms if they silained age 45 while &till in service, and the bangfit
obligation refated to them is in¢luded in the benefit obligation figure as at Decernber 31, 2001 and January 1, 2002 in the
teble below. As part of the January 1, 2002 ¢hanges in UK pension arrangements, these members were asked to make
an irrgvocable choice to conven their pension rights definitively either to defined contribution or to defined benafit terms.
Certain members opled for defined contribution terms snd consequently US$7 million of benefit obligation and plan
assets have been excluded from the December 31, 2002 totels in the table below. Alse, centain elements of the

" remuneration of Swiss employees are pensionable under a savings arrangemeant. Employer and employea contributions
are paid inte a notional savings account within the pension fund. The value of these netional employee accounts is
included in the benefit obligation and plan asset figures at December 31, 2001 and January 1, 2002 in the table below.
With effect from 2002, this component of the pension plan has been reported as a defined contribution plan.
Consequently, US$27 million of benefit obligation and plan assets have been excluded from the Decamber 31, 2002
totals in the table below. Both the reporting changes described above have been included in the "other movements” line
in the benefit obligation and plan asset roliforward tables below. Neither change had any effect on the reported funged
status of the plans, os on net income for 2002,

A summary of the status of the main independent defined benefit plans at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 using
acluarial assumptions determined in accordance with IAS 19 {revised) is given below.
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The following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations. plan assets and funded stalus of the defined benefil pension
plans, and of the benefit obligation for the other post-retirement benefits, which are unfunded,

Penslon Other postretiremsni senefits
(US$ mittion) 2002 2001 2000 2002 200 2000
Benefit obligation
At beginning of year 2313 2,300 229 113 103 48
Service cost 99 98 17 2 2 1
Interest cost 138 121 21 8 § 3
Net ligbitity seeumed from apin-aff from Novartis benefit plans - L} 943 - - -
Acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business - - 1,210 - - 56
Curtaliments and settiements () (28) . - 2 .
Plan amendments - 4 3 . (28) -
Attuarial (gain)ioss 142 (59) (130) 21 30 2
Translation effects 300 (58) 18 1 - .
Benefit payments (101) {82) (12) 7 (&) )
Other movements (32) 12 . - . .
Benefit obligation at end of year 2849 2,313 2,300 138 113 103

Pension ) Other post-retirement benafi
{UBS milllen) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2004 2000
Plan assets at fair value
Al beginning of year 2,132 2,353 225 - . -
Actual return on plan assete (216) (178) 1% - - .
Net gssets sssumed from spin-off from Novartis benefit plans . 8 900 - . -
Acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business - (14) 1,186 - -
Cunailments and Settlements (12) - . - -
Translation effects 275 (59) 20 - - .
Employer contributions 253 87 17 7 8 8
Employee contributions 18 15 2 - - -
Benefit payments (101) (82) (12) 7 8 6)
Qther movements (62) - - - - -
Plan assets at fair value al end of year 2287 2132 2,353 - - -

Penslon Other posteetirement bensfits
(US5 miilion) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Funded status (562) (181) 53 (138) {113) (103)
Unrecognized actuatial (gain)/loss 608 124 {(87) 49 3 -
Unrecognized past service costs - . - (23) (28) -
Limitation on recognition of surplus due to uncertainty of
obtaimng future benefits (5) 2) (& - - .
Prepaid/(accrued) benefit cost 38 (59)  (53) (112) (108} (103}
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Prepaid benefit costs {Note 17) 178 65 80 - - -
Accrued benefit liabifity (141 (124)  (133)  (112)  (10B)  (103)
Neot amount recognized 38 (59) (53) (112)  (108)  (103)

Of the accrued benefit liability for pensions of US$141 million at December 31, 2002, US$101 million is included in Note
21 as pension provision and US340 milfion &s restructuring provisions (2001: US$119 million ag pansion and US$5

million as regteucturing).



17. MAR. 2003 12:4¢ SYNGENTA 441 61 3235461 NR.1505 5 14

Notes to the Syngenta Group Consclidated Financial $tatements

Pension Other postretirament benatita
(83 millien) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Benefit cost
Cutrent service cost 99 98 17 2 2 1
Interest cost 135 121 21 8 ] 3
Expected return on plan assets (142} (144) (28) . -
Employee contributions (18) (19) (2) - - - -
Amortization of actuarial loss § 2 1 3 - -
Effect of limitation on recognition of surplus 1 - - - - -
80 62 12 13 10 4
Past service cost 4 4 - (3) (2)
Curtailments and settiements 33 6 - - 2 -
Net periodic benefit cost 117 72 12 10 10 4

All the past service costin 2001, and all the curtailment and settlement expense in 2002 and 2001, erose as a direct

resull of merger and restructuring activities and are included in the consolidated income statement in merger and
restructuring costs, net of divestment gains.

In each year, the expected retum on plan assets is the egtimated long-term average rate of return which would be

expected to arise on & portfolio of assets similar to the actual portfolio of pension plan assets held at January 1 of that
year,

' Pension Other poatrelirement bensfits
Weighted-average assumptions for 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
tho year ended December 31 % Y% % % % %
Discount rate 5.2 56 56 8.7 7.2 71
Rate of compensation ingrease 3.4 35 2.6 - -
Expecied return on plan sssets 6.3 8.2 5.8 - - -

The assumed heakhcare cost irend rate at December 31, 2002 was 10%, decreasing in each successive year from 2003
onwards, to reach an ultimate rate of 5% in 2010,

The assumed healthcare cost trend rate at December 31, 2001 was 9%, decteasing in each successive year from 2002

onwards, 1o regch an ultimate rate of 4.25% in 2010 and thereafter. The assumed healthcare cost trend at December 31,
2000 was 5.6%, reducing to 4.75% in 2003 and later years.

A one-percentage-point change in the assumed healtheare cost trend rates compared to those uged for 2002 would have
the following effects:

{UBS mitlion) 1% POMt IncroRss 1% poim tecreass
Effects on total of service and interest cost components 1 (1)
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligations 14 (11)

The contribution and expense related to the former muilti-employer pension plans sponsored by Novartis wera US$nil
million, USSnit million, and USE11 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respedtively.

In some Syngenta operations, employees are coverad by defined contribution ptans for pensions and other long term

employee benefits. In 2002, contributions and related expense charged o the consolidatad income statement for these
plans were US$12 mittion (2001: US$20 million; 2000: US§12 million),
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Notes to the S$yngents Group Consolidated Financlal Statements

27. Employee share particlpation plans

Employee and management share participation plans exist as follows:
Syngenta Executive Stock Option Plan

[n 2000, the Syngents Executive Steck Option Plan was introduced 1o provide selected members of the Board of
Directors, executives and key empioyeeg of Syngenta with an opportunity to obtain the right to purchase shares of
Syngenta. The grant of options regarding Syngenla shares is at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, whose
members are appointed by the Board of Directors of Syngenta. The following tabie sete out share option aclivity during
2002, 2001 and 2000, including the equivalent ANS shares that are offered to Syngenta employoecs in thc USA, and
summarizes information about share options outstanding at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Excrelse price  Outslanding Outetanding al Remalning
CHF _atJanusry 1 Granted _Lapsed Decomber3l Exerciscable  LMe (years)
Yegr to December 31, 2000 76.5 - 511,600 - 511,500 - 10
Year to December 31, 2001 76.5 511,500 - (20,000) 481,500 - 9
£3.7 - 423,600  (5,100) 418,500 - 9.25

Total for year to Decermber 31, 2001 511,500 423,600 (25,100}  ©10.000 -
Year to December 31, 2002 76.5 491,500 - (36,000) 455,500 - 8
£3.7 418,500 - (41.900) 376,800 - 8.25
98.0 . 703,818 (41,187) 662,631 - 9.25
98.0 - 340,181 - 341,181 - 10.25

Total for yeer to December 31, 2002 810,000 1,043.899 {119,067) 1.834,912 -

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was CHF 30 per option (2001:CHF 25; 2000:CKF 28).

The exercise prices are equal to the weighted average share price on the Swigs stock exchange (SWX) for the five
business daye preceding the grant date a3 determined by the Compensation Committee and ali options were granted at
an exercise price which was greater than the market price of the Syngenta shares at the grant date. All of the options
vest in full, are exercisable after three years, and terminate after 10 or 11 years from the grant date.

Synpenta Deferred Share Plan

In 2002. the Syngenta Deferred Share Plan was introduced to provide selected senior executives with an opportunity to
obtain shares of Syngenta. The plan entities panticipants to deter part of their annual shoft-term incentive awards in faver
of Syngenta shares and to receive matching shares according to the rules of the plen. The value of & Deferred Share at
the time of the grant corresponds to the Syngenta share price at the time of the grant. Shares are deferred for & period of
three years starting on the grant date. At the eénd of the deferral period, Syngenta matches the deferred shares on a one-
for-one basis. For the incentive year 2002 patticipants may voluntarily defer & part of the 2002 shori-term incentive.
Approximately 130 genior executives are invited to participale, For the incentive year 2003 the Syngenta Deferred Share
Plan will become fully effective and a mandatory pan of the 2003 short-term incentive will be allocated as Deferred
Shares, Additional voluntary deferrals within the limits of the plan can be matle &t the digcretion of the participants.
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Employee Share Purchase Plan

In November 2001, the Swiss Employee Share Purchase Plan was introduced for all employees of certain Swiss
subsidiaries, This plan entitles employees to subscribe for shares at a discount of 50% from the closing share price on
the grant date. The maximum subscriplion amount per empioyee, based on fair market valus, is CHF 5,000, A totat of
108,18¢ shares (2001: 123,336 shares) were eubseribed for, met through a release of treasury shares, at a market value
of approximately CHF BE.70 per share (2001: CHF 84.80 per share),

Employee Share Option Savings Plan

In Navember 2002, 8 Share Option Savings Plan wae introducad for all UK employecs, at an cxcreiae price of British
pounds sterling 32.21 per share, representing a 15% discount to the market price on the Swiss stack exchange (SWX)
before the offer. Options over 257,712 ordinary Syngenta AG shares were granted under this scheme on December 20,
2002, and are exercisable over a six month period following either the third or the fifth anniversary of the grant date,
depending on the choice made by the employee on applying o join the scheme. Vesting of options is conditional on
empioyees remaining in service for at least three years end making monthly payments into the savings plan.

28, Transactions and agreements with related parties

Subseguent to the Separation Date, neither Novartls nor AstraZeneca has had a related party relationship with Syngenta.
The Separation Agreements described below, which were made before the Separation Date, continue In force. See
Notes 26 and 27 for disclosure of other related party transactions and balances.

Prior to the merger of Novartis agribusiness with Zeneca agrochemicals business to forrm Syngenta, Novartis

agribusiness was wholly owned by Novartis. It had related pany relationships with the non-Syngenrta operations of
Novartis.

Prior to the Seperation Dste, Novartis agribusiness sold products to Novartis, at a price that management believed

spproximated the price an unrelated third party would have paid, For the year ended Dacember 31. 2000, Syngenta had
US315 million of revenues from Novartis,

Prior to the formation of Syngenta, Novartis provided Novartis agribusiness with certain general and administrative
services, including insurance, legal, treasury, financlal and other corporate functions, Although certain assets, liabilities
and expenses related to these services were allocated to Novartis agribusiness. up to the Separalion Date the regults of
operations and cash fiowe presented in thege consolidated financial statements may not have been the same as those
that would have occurred had the businesses been an independent entity, Subsequent to the Separation Date, Syngenta
now operates ite own arrangements independent of Novartis, for these services.

The income statements include the following related party transactions that Syngenta had with the rest of Novartis:

(US$ mitllan} 2000

Charges to operating expenses of segments (30)
Charges to operating expenses included in Corporate and other activities ™ (35)
Charges to financial expense ¥ (89)
Total (158)

¥ Allocaled by Novartie based on sales, Certain of these services between Novarls and Syngenta are continuing sfier the demerger pursuant
ta transition sgreements.

@ s gescnbed 1n Note 1, Novartis sgribusiness received imerest bearing financing from Novartis.
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Amounts dus from / (due to) Novartis at December 31 are included within the balance sheet captions as follows:

{US$ mliton) Notae
Trade and other accounts raceivabie 1
Curtent financial debts 18

Net amount payable to Novartis

(129)

Syngenta has entered into agreements with Novartis and AstraZeneca to govern gertain of the angoing relstionships
between Syngenta, Novartis and AstraZeneca at and after the Separation Date and to provide for an orderly transition.
Based upon the accounting for the Transactions as an acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business by Novartie

agribusiness, the agreements with Novartis are considered to be related party agreements  Rrlef daseriptions of
eignificant related parly ugreements toliow.

The Separation Agreements outlined below have provided for the provision of various services between Syngenta and
Novartis on a transitional basis and ensure that both parties have access to necessary information in the future. Certain

Separation Agreérments also allocate and separate amongst the parties the historic, current and possibie future llabilities
of the Novartis agribusiness and Zeneca agrochemicals business from the fiabilities of the remaining activities of Novartis

and AstraZeneca.

indemnity Matters Agreement

The Indemnity Matiers Agreement between Novartis and Syngenta specifies the losses that each party has reciprocally

covenanted to pay arising from any damages that may arise retating to both existing and former operations and divested

divisions of the respective businesses. The parties are not obligated to reimburse each other for amounts which are

covered under an insurance policy or otherwise from a third party.

Environmeantat Matters Agreements
The Environmental Matters Agreements between Syngenta, Novartis and AstraZenaca outiing tha covenants to

indemnify each other in respect of liabilities relating to envitonmentel and heaith and safety matters (other than product
fiability claims) against respective group companies and affiliates which arise through the historic, current and future
operations of Syngenta, The purpose of the Environmental Matters Agreements is to address, in general terms, the

rights and obligations of Novartis, AstraZeneca and Syngenta for environmental claims that have been or will be incurred
and te identify special arrangements for environmental matters 7efated 1o specific affitiates of each party. The pariies are
not obligated {o reimburse each other far amounts which are covered under an insurance policy of otherwise from & third

party.

Tax Deed

The Tax Deed sliocates Novartis' and Syngenta’s responsibilities for certain tax matters, Novarlis retained all tax
liabilties areing out of or connected to the remaining Novartis businesses (excluding Novartis agribusiness) and the
reorganization of the Novartis group for the purpose of separating Novartis agribusiness, except for certain events as

described in the Tax Deed. Syngenta has assumed and will be reésponsible for all tax lisbilities arising out of or

connected to the Novartis agribusiness or a Syngenta-related event ag described in the Tax Deed. The Deed algo

provides for the management of tax &ffairs and dispule regolution,

Intellectual Property Agreements

Under the Intellectual Froperty Agreements, Syngenta acquired title to all relevant inteliectual property that is exclusive to
or predominantly relates to its business. Syngenta wlll license or will be licensed relevant Intellactual property pertaining

to the buginess of Syngenta that it shares with Novartis.

Licenses (other than the license of the Zeneca or Novartis house mark angd domain nemes) are warldwide, exclusive in
the fieid, royalty free and perpetual. The licenses of the Novartis house mark and domain names are exclusive in the

2gribusiness field, royalty-free and expire three years after the date of the completion of the transactions. The licenses of

the Zeneca house mark and domain names are exclusive in the agrochemicals figld, royalty free and expire on January

4, 2005,

75
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Pension Agreements

Pension Agreements cutline how the liabilities and assets relating to benefits accrued by smployees transfeming to
Syngenta were to be transferred to Syngenta by AstraZeneca and Novartis, as applicable, in the case of employees in
the Novartis Swiss pension fund trensferring to Syngenta, the form and structure of the transfer was determined in

accordance with Swiss law. Except as otherwise required by law or the terms of the applicable benefit program, liabilities

for penefits acerued by retirees or other former employees were not transferred to Syngenta. For g transitional penod
after the creation of Syngents, centain Syngents employees continued to participaté in the respective Novartis and/or
AslraZenecs arrangements under which they were previously covered. Mowever, Syngenta now operates 21l its

significant employee benefit arrangements independently from Novartis and AstraZeneca.

29, Cummitments ahd contingencies

{USS milnon) 2002 2001 2000

Leasing commitments:

Cornmitments arising from fixed-term operating

leages in effect at Dacember 31 are gs follows:
2001 - - 20
2002 . 30 18
2003 13 18 8
2004 12 18 3
2005 & 1 2
2006 3 9 -
2007 2 - -

Thereafter 4 43 3]

Total 42 130 5§

Operating lease expense of current year 30 31 26

Commitments for the purchase of property, plant and

equipment 32 7 47

As of December 31, 2002, Syngenta had entered into the following long-term commitmants to purchase minimum

quantities of certain raw materials. The approximale payments committed are as follows:

(USS mililon) 2002
2003 . 133
2004 96
2005 84
2008 57
2007 54
Thereafter 38
Total 442

F76
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Syngenta has entered into long-term research agreements with various institutions to fund varioug research projects ang
other commitrments. The approximate payments commitied te these institutions are as foliows:

(W83 miilion} 2002 2001 2000
2001 . - - 44
2002 - §2 33
2003 11 a2 30
2004 11 21 26
2005 5 £ -
2006 3 2 .
2007 1 . -
Theisalier - 1 -
Total 31 113 133

Contingencles

Group companies have to obgerve the laws, government orders end regulations of the country in which they operate. A
aumber of them are curtently involved in sdministrative proceedings arising out of the narmal conduct of their business.

A number of Group companies are also the subject of litigation arising out of the normal conduet of their business, as a
result of which clams could be made against them which, in whole or in pant, might not be covered by insurance, in the
opinicn of Syngenta’s management, however, the ultimate outcome of the actions referred 1o will not materially affect
Syngenta’s financial condition, but could be material te Syngenta's results of pperation in a given pariod.

Environmental matters

Syngenta has environmente! liabilities al scme ¢urrently or formerly owned, leased and third party sites throughout the
world,

in the USA, Syngerte, or its indemnnities, has been named under federal iegislation (the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended) as a potentislly responsible party (“PRP") in respect of
several sites. Syngents expecte o be indemnified against a propeortion of the liabilities associated with & number of these
sites by the seller of the businesses associated with such sites end, where appropriate, actively participates in or
monitors the clean-up activities at the sites in respect of which it is a PRP.

Syngenta has provisions in respect of environmental remediation costs in accordance with the accounting policy
described in Note 2 and as shown in Note 21, Provisions. The environmental provision Ig principally related to potential
liabilities at various locations. The estimated provision takes into consideration the number of other PRPs at each site
and the identity and financial positions of such panties in light of the joint and several nature of the liability.

The requirement in the future for Syngents ultimalely to take action to correct the effects on the environment of prier
disposal or release of chemical substances by Syngenta ¢r other parties, and ite costs, pursuant to environment laws and
regulations, ig inherently difficult 1o estimate. The material componente of the environmental provisions consist of a risk
essessment based on investigation of the various sites. Syngenta's future remediation expenses sre affocted by a
number of uncertainties which include, but are not limited 1o, the method and extent of remediation, the percentage of
material attributable to Syngenta at the remedigtion sites relative to that attributable to other parties, and the financial
capebilities of the other potentially respensible parties.

Syngenta believes that itz provisions are adequate based upon currently available information. However, given the
inherent difficulties in estimating liabilities in this area, it cannot be guaranteed that additional costs will not be incurred
beyond the amounts accrued. The effect of resoiution of environmental matiers on results of operations cannot be
predicted due to uncertainty concerning both the amount and the timing of future expenditures and the resulte of future
operations, Management believes that such additional amounts, if any, would not be material to Syngenta's financiat
condition but could be material to Syngenta’s results of operations in a given peried.
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30, Principal currency translation rates

2002 2001 2000
uss (113 Uss
Year end rates used for the ¢consolidated balan¢e sheets,
to translate the following currenciss inte USS. are:
Swiss tranc 1.3¢ 1.88 1.63
British pound sterling 0.62 0.8¢ 0.87
Japanese yan 116.72 131.31 114,86
Euro 0.85 1.43 1.07
Brazilian rea) 3.54 2.33 1.95
Average rates of the year used for the consolidated
income and cash flow statements, to translate the
following currencies into USS, are:
Swiss franc 157 1.69 1.68
British pound sterling 0.87 0.6¢ 0.66
Japanese yen 125.55 120.63 107 6%
Eurc 1.07 112 1.08
Brazllian real 2.89 2.32 1.80

31. Flnancial instruments

Merket Risk

Syngenta is exposed to market risk, primarily due 10 changes in foreign exchange and interest rates and to market prica
volatility on inventory purchase contracts. Management actively monitors these exposures. To manage the volatility
relating to these exposures, Syngenta enters into derivative financial Instruments. Syngenta’s objective is to reduce
fluctuations in cash flows and earnings associated with changes in interest ratgs and foreign currency rates. Syngenta
does not enter into any financial transactions unrelated to the operating business.

Foreign Exchange Rates

Syngenta uses US doliars as its reporting currency and is therefore exposed (o foreign exchange movements in a wide
range of currencies. Consequently, it enters into varicus contracts, which change in value as foreign exchange rates
change, 1o preserve the value of assets, commitments and anticipated transactions, To cover existing balance sheet
exposures, and 1o hedge committed foreign currency transactions Syngenta uses forward contracts. To hedge

anticipated foreign currency ¢ash flows Syngents uses currency options and forward ¢ontracts. Syngenta has only
optiong, or combinations of options, where a net premium was paid.

Interest Retes
Syngenta monitors its interest rate exposures and analyzes the potential impact of interest rate movements on net

interest expense. In order to manage the volatility of net interest expense, Syngenta may entar into derivative
transactions to achieve a desired fixed to floating rate ratio on net deit,

Credit Risk

Syngenta has policies and operating guidelines in place to ensure that treasury and derivative transactions are limited to
trangactions with high credit quality banks and financial institutions,

Syngenta reguiarly monitors its exposure to loss from both country and customer risk. Syngenta has policies and
operating guidelines in place to reduce the risk of loss by limiting the amount of exposure to individual countries and

customers, or requiring edditional security against exposures related to thern, besed on Syngenta's assessment of the
rigks involved.



i

7. MAR. 2003 12:4¢4 SYNGENTA  +41 61 3235461 NR. 150

bal

: g

A
<
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Liguidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficienl cast and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities, Syngenta's liquidity situation is monitored in a pre-active manner in order (o ensure
that Syngenta has sufficient liquidity reserves at all imes.

Fair Valug Hedges

During 2002, the Group held interest rale swaps involving the exchange of fixed for floating rate interest payments that
qualified for hedge accounling as designated fair value hedges relating to bond liabilities, The fair value mevements of
these inlerest rate swaps that hedge inerest rate risk are included in the consclidated incame statement. There is an
immaterial amount of hedge ineffectiveness on these swaps.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Group mainteins interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps that qualify for hedge accounting as designated cash
flow hedges relating to future interest payments on bond liabilities. The revaiuation of these swaps is included in the
cash flow hedge reserve and is recycled to the income statement as the interast charges ralating 10 the bond are
recorded. There is an immaterial amount of hedge ineffectiveness related to these hedges.

Syngenta uses forward contracts and purchased currency options to hedge anticipated foreign currency cash fiows,

These all quality for hedge accounting and are designated as foreign currency cash flow hedges. Gains and losses are
held in the cash flow hedge reserve and are recycled to the income statement Iin order to match the revenue recognition
of the underlying hedged transaclion. There is an immaterial amount of hedge ineffectiveness related to these hedges.

Syngenta uses forward commodity contracts snd purchased options to hedge anticipated and committed future
purchases. These contracts qualify for hedge accounting and are designated as cash flow hedges. Gains and losses
are held in the cash flow hedge reserve gnd are recycled to the income ststement when the related purchases are
racorded and recognized in the income etatement. There is an immatarial amount of hedge ineffectiveness related to
these hedges.

Gains and losses on cash fiow hedges are ultimately recorded in the income statemeant consistently with the underlying
hedged item.

Undesignated Hedges

The Group also maintaine cross currency swaps that convert its floating euro denominated debt inlo fioating US doliar
denominated debt. They are not designated as hedges. These cross currency swaps are recorded at fair velue and the
fair value movements recorded in financial expense [n the income statement largely offset the ravalyalion on the debt
liability from euro to US doliar. Additionally, the Group enters into certain foreign currency transactions that are not

designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The fair value movements from these ransactions are recorded in the
income statement,

I
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The contract values of financial instruments held st December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:
(VBS million) 2002 2001 2000
Interest Rate Swaps
Less than one year - - -
One to five years 1,516 1,108 -
Five 1o six years - - 250
Crosg Currency Swaps
Less thah one year 296 - -
One to five years 677 §73 -
Five 10 sIx years - - -
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts
Swiss frane §34 450 842
British pound sterling 1,002 . 756 7688
Other Evropean currencies 308 246 14
US dollar 1,313 911 112
Others é1 35 15
Total 3,218 2,398 1,852
Maturities on foreign exchange forward contracts range from 3 to 338 days,
Currency Option Contracts
Swiss franc 570 350 -
British pound sterling . 446 334 .
US dollar 232 3% -
Total 1,248 720 -
Maturilies on currency option contracts range from B to 372 days.
The curreney shown in the above tables reflects the bought currency, which is in most cases the functional currency of
lhe entity involvad, There are many sold currencies reflecting the broad range of Syngenta's exposures,
The notional amounts and fair values of the above instruments at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:
Nellenal Amount Feeltive Falr Vaiue Nogative Falr Valug
{US$ million) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Inierest Rate Swaps 1516 1,108 250 38 - - CIATN -7 -
Cross Cumency Swaps 573 973 - 247 50 - - - .
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts 3,218 2398 1852 82 13 32 (37) (83} (18)
Currency Option Contracts 1,248 720 - 42 12 - - - -
Commedity Ferward Contracts
(designaled as cash flow hedges) 32 38 - 2 - - - (2) -
Of the above:
inmerest Rate Swaps designated as cash
flow hedges 1,516 817 250 31 - - 47y (13) -
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts
and Cumrency Optien Contracts
designaled as cash flow hedges 1.316 749 1,168 28 - 18 - 2) {13)

F 8C
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Gains and loesee on interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are as follows:

{US$ million) 2002 2001 2000
Gains/(losses) recognized in equity (16) (13) -
Gains/(losses) recognized in net income (8) &) -
Gains/(losses) adjusted against carrying amount of non-

current financial debts Z (4) -

The forecested future interest payments dasignated as the hedged item for the above interest rate swaps are expected te
occur and be reported in net income as follows:

1USS milllon) 2002 2004 2000
Less than one year - - -
One to five years (18) (13) -
Five to six yeare - - -

Gains and losses on foreign exchange forward contracts and options designated as ¢ash flow hedges are as follows:

{US$ minilon) 2002 2001 2000
Gains/(losses) recognized in equity 25 2) -
Gains/(losses) recognized in net income 43 (8) -

The forecasted foreign currency transactions designated as the hedged items for the above foreign currency forward

contracts and options are expected to occur and to be reported within net income within one yaar from the baiance sheet
date.

Gains and losses on commodity forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges are as follows:

{USY million) 2002 001 2000
Gains/(losses) recognized in equity 1 . 2) -
Gains/(losses) recognized in net income 1) (1) -

The forecasted transactions designated as lhe hedged items for the shove commodity forward contracts are expected to
oceur and bs reported within net income within one year from the balance sheet date.

No gaing or losses were reclassified ino earmings as a result of cash fiow hedges being discontinued on the grounds that
it hag become unlikely that the hedged forecasted transaction would oceur,

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Unrealized loesas of US$40 mifllon on re-measuring available-for-sale financial assets to fair value were recognized in
equity in 2002 (2001 US$11 million). No amounts were reported in net income for the period. Quoted market prices are
used to determine fair value for quoted investments.

Embedded derivatives

Syngenta has procedures which will ensure that existing and new contracts are reviewed for erbedded derivatives and
their vaiustion on an ongoing basis. The resutlts of the procedures for embedded derivatives show that Syngenta was not
parly to any significant contracts that contain embedded derivatives at December 31, 2002, Those embedded derivatives

that potentiaily had to be separately accounted for were found to have an immateriat value as of December 31, 2001 and
2000,
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Off-batance sheet finance

At December 31, 2002, non-recourse factering emounted to US$14 million {2001: US$35 million; 2000: US$7S million).
Under these arrangements, Syngenta has no liability under the factored princinal, bust pays interest at s commercial rate
until the underlylng debtor has either settled or has been declared insolvent.

Syngenta has no other ofi-balance sheet financing transactions or arrangements.

F 82
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32. Syngenta's gperations, associates and joint ventures as at December 31, 2002

NR. 1507 S,

The foliowing are the significant legal entities in the Syngenta group. Flease refer to Note 2 "Accounting Policies® for the

appropriate accounting method applied to each type of entity.

L

Porcontage
Owned Share Capital

Ceuntry Domiclle By Synganw Local Curreney " Funcuon Of Company

Argentina

Syngenta Seeds S.A. Buenos Aires 100% ARS 980,000 Sales/Production/
Research

Syngenta Agre S.A. Buenos Aires 100% ARS 1,898,205 Sales/Hroguction

Australla

Syngenta Grop Protection Pty Ltg. Pendie Hill 100% AUD 13,942,908 Sales/Production

Syngenta Seeds Pty Lid. Keysborough 100% AUD 1,000,000 Sales

Banpladesh

Syngents Bangladesh Limited Dhaka 60% BDY 102,844,000 Sales/Production

Belgium

Synoenta Crop Protection N.V. Ruisbroek 100% EUR 3,609,521 Sales

Bermuda

Syngenta invesiment Ltd. Hamilton 100% BMD 12,000 Finance

Syngenta Reinsurance Ltd. Hamilton 100% BMD 120.000 Reinsurance

Brazii

Syngenta Seeds Lida. S0 Paulo 100% BRL 34,678,381 Sales/Production/
Research

Syngenta Protecdo de Cultivos Lida. Sac Paulo 100% BRL 833,186,731 Sszles/Production

Canada

Syngerts Seeds Canada, Inc. Arva, Ont 100% CAD 1,000,000 Sales/Production/
Research

Synaenta Crop Protection Canaaa. Inc. Guelph, Ont 100% CAD 1,700,000 Sales/Research

Chile

Syngenta Agribusiness S.A. Santiago de 100% CLP 2,190,898,905 Sales/Production

Chile

China

Syngenta {Suzhou) Crop Protection Company Kunshan 85% CNY 203,747,322 Production

Limited

Syngenta Seeds Co., Ltd. Beljing 100% CNY 1,400,000 Sales/Production/
Research

Syngenta (China) Investment Company Beijing 100% CNY 293,564,523 Holding/Sales

Limited

Syngenta Nanlong Crop Protection Company Jiangsu 84% CNY 264,900,508 Production

Limited Province

Syngenta Crop Protection Limited Hong Kong 100% HKD 500,000 Sales

Syngenta Asia Pacific Limilegd Hong Kong 100% HKD 5,025,000 Sales

Colombia

Syngenta S.A. Bogotd 100% COP  5B,134,293,300 Sales/Production

Costa Rica

Syngenta Costa Rica S.A. San Jogé 100% CRC 105,000,000 Sales

Czech Republic

Syngenta Czech s.1.0. Prague 100% CZK 21,100,000 - Sales

F &3
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pumg)r\::g: Ghare Caplial
Country Domiclie By Syngenta Lecal Currency ™ Funcilon Of Company
Denmark .
Syngenta Seeds A/S Slagelse 100% DKK 2,000,000 Sales
Syngenta Crop Protection A/S Copenhagen 100% DKK 9,500,000 Sales
Egypt
Syngenta Aaro S.AE. Giza 100% EGF 3,000,000 Sales
France
Syngenta France S A. Saint Cyr 'Ecole 100% EUR 74,017,500 Helding
Syngenta Seeds S.A.S. Saint-Sauveur 100% EUR 53,716,412 Sales/Production/
' Research
Ets. Claude Camille Benoist S.A. Orgerus 100% EUR 1,061,168 Sales/Production/
Research
Syngenta Europe Marketing Services S.A.R.L. Saint Cyr I'Ecole 100% EUR 10,000 Services
Syngenta Production France S.A.S, Saint Pierre La 100% EUR 37,000 Sales/Production
Garenne
Syngenta Agre, S.A.8. Saint Cyr 'Ecole 100% EUR 44,494,545 Sales/Production/
Research
Agrosem S.A. Sacy-Le-Petit g0% EUR 290,000 Sales/Production/
Research
Germany
Syngenta Seeds GmbH Kleve 100% EUR 1,330,000 Sales/Research/
Production
Synganta Germany GmbH Maintal 100% EUR 6,129,000 Holding
Syngente Agro GmbM Maintal 100% EUR 2,100.000 Sales
Greece
Syngenta Hellas S.A Athens 100% EUR 3,622,000 Sates/Production
Guatemala
Syngenta LAN, S.A. Guatemala City 100% GTQ 1,841,000 Sales/Research
Hungary
Syngenta Seeds Kft. Budapest 100%  HUF 47,450.000 Sales/Production/
Research
Syngenta Kft. Budapes! 100% HUF £0,490.000 Sales
India
Syngenta India Limited Mumbai 51% INR 159,308,320 Sales/Production/
Research
Syngenta Crep Protection Private Limited Mumbai 100% INR 275,000,000 Sales/Production
Indonesia
P.T. Syngenta indonesia Jakarta 100% IDR  58,122,874,000 Sales/Production
Ireland
Syngenta Iretand Limited Dublin 100% EUR 50,789 Sales
ltaly
Syngenta Crop Frotection S.p.A. Milan 100% EUR 5,200,000 Sales/Production
Syngenta Seeds S.p.A. Madignano 100% EUR 5,772,000 Sales/Production/
Research
Agra Societa del Seme S.r.. Massa 100% EUR 3.400,000 SalesiProduction/
Lombarda Research
Synaenta S.p.A, Milan 100% EUR 1,676.000 Holding
Ivory Coast
Syngenta Cdte d'ivoire S.A . Abidjan 100% XOF 3.328.640,000 Sales/Production
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Fercentage
Qwnod Share Capital
Country Dormlclie By Syngents Loca! Gurrsney ' Funotion Of Company
Japan
Syngenta Seeds K.K. Chiba-ken 100% JPY 10.000,000 Sales
Syngenta Japanh K.K. Tokyo 100%  JPY 475,000,000 Sales/Production/
Research
Luxembourg
Syngenta Participations AG & Co. SNC Luxembourg 100% USD 100,000 Holding
Syngents Luxembourg Finance (#2) Sarl Luxembourg 100% USD 12,500 Finance
Syngenta Luxembourg Finance (#2) S.c.A, Luxembourg 100% EUR 100,000 Finance
Syngenta Luxembourg Hinance (#1) $.A. L uxembourg 100% USD 100.000 Finance
Malaysia
Syngenta Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Selangor Darul 100% MYR 10,000,002 Holding
Ehsan
Syngenta Crop Frotection Sdn, Bhd. Selangor Dary) 85% MYR 6,000,000 Sales
Ehsan
Mexico
Syngenta Agro, S.A. de C.V, Mexico City 100% MXN 157,630,000 Sales/Production/
Rasearch
Morocco
Syngenta Maroc S.A. Cesablanca 100% MAD 55,000,000 Sales
Netherlands
Syngenta International Participations B.V., Enkhuizen 100% EUR 907,580 Holding
Syngenta Seeds international B.V. Enkhuizen 100% EUR 68,070 Sales
Syngenta Seeds B.V. Enkhuizen 100% EUR 488,721 Holding/Sales/
‘ Production/
Research
Syngenta Manufacturing B.V. Roosendaal 100% EUR 2,258.900 Seles/Production/
Research
Syngenta Mogen B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 9,343,785 Holding
Stauffer Chemical B.V, Rotterdam 100% EUR 31,583,103 Sales/Production
Syngenta Crop Protection B.V. Rottertam 100% EUR 19,059 Sales
Syngenta Alpha B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 18,180 Holding
Syngenta Beta B.V, Ridderkerk 100% EUR 18,154 Holding
Syngenta Delta B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 20,002 Holding
Syngenta Kappa B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 20,001 Holding
Syngenta Theta B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 18,626 Holding
Syngenta Holding B.V. Ridderkerk 100% EUR 20,001 Holding
Pakistan
Syngenta Pakistan Limited Karaechi £0.7% PKR 75,837,500 Sales/Production
Panama
Syngents S.A. Panama 100% USD 10,000 Sales
Philippings
Syngenta Philippines, Inc. Manlla 100% PHP 59,850,000 Sales
Poland
Syngenta Crop Protection Sp.2.0.0. Warsaw 100% PLN 15,000,000 Sales
Syngenta Seeds Sp.z.0.0. Piaseczno 100% PLN 50,000 Sales
Portugal
Syngenia Crop Protection — Solucdes Para A Lisbon 100% EUR 30,000 Sales
Agricultura, Lda.
Zeneca Agro-Frodutos para B Agricullura Lda. Lisbon 100% EUR 112,788 Sales
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Owasd Sharg Copltal

Countey Daomiclie By Syngenta Local Gureancy " Function ©f Company

Russlan Federation

000 Syngents Moscow 100% RUR 675,000 Sales

Singapore :

Syngenta Singapore Pte Ltd, Singapére 100% SGD 500,000 Sales

South Africa

Syngenta South Africa (Pty) Ltg. Jahannesburg 100% ZAR 100 Sales/Production/
Research

South Korea

Syngenta Geeds Ca., Ltd. Seoul 100% KR 8,050,000,000° Sales/Froduction/
Research

Syngenta Korea Ltd. Seoul 100% KRW  54,950,000.000 Sales/Production

Spain

Syngenta Agro §.A. Madrid 100% EUR 7,544,827 Salgs/Production

Syngenta Seeds S.A. Barcolong 100% EUR 2,404,000 Ssles/Production

Syngenta Spain S.L. Madrid 100% EUR 3,006 Holding

Koipeso! Semillas S.A. Seville E8% EUR 3,966,600 Sales/Production/
Research

Sweden .

Syngenta Seeds AB L.andskrons 100% SEK 210,000,000 Salas/Production/
Research

Switzerland

Syngenta Supply AG Basel 100% CHF 250,000 Sales

Syngenta Crop Protection AG Basel 100% CHF 257,000 Holding/Sales/
Produclion/
Research

Synganta Seeds AG Basel 100% CHF 100,000 Holding

Syngenta Agro AG Dielsdorf 100% CHF 2,100,000 Sales/Production’
Research

Syngenta Crop Protection Schweizerhalle AG Schweizerhalle 100%  CHF 103,000 Production

Syngenta Crop Pratection Minchwilen AG MOnchwilen 100% CHF 5,010,000 Productiory
Research

Syngenta Crop Protection Monthey SA Monthey 100% CHF 70,000,000 Praduction

CIMO Compagnle Industrielle de Monthey SA Monthey 50% CHF 10,000,000 Production

SF-Chem AG Schweizerhalle 75% CHF 7.200,000 $Sales/Production

Syngenta International AG Basel 100% CHF 100,000 Management
Services

Syngenta Participstions AG Basel 100% CHF 25,000,000 Holding

Syngenta South Asis AG Basel 100% CHF 9,000,000 Helding

Taiwan

Syngenta Taiwan Ltd. Taipei 100% TWD 30,000,000 Sales

Thailand

Syngenta Crop Protection Limited Bangkok 100% THE 72.230,400 Sales

Turkey

Syngenta Tarim Sanayi ve Ticarel A.S. Zmir 100% TRL 2,035,000,000,000 Sales/Production
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Percentage
Qwned Share Capltal
Counlry Domiclie By Syngents Local Currency 'V Function Of Company
United Kingdom
Syngenta Seeds Limited Guildford 100% GBP 1,760,935 Sales/Production/
Research
Syngenta Bioline Production Limited Little Clacton 100% GBP 10,000 Sales/Production
Syngenta Crog Protection UK Limited Guildford 100% GBP 500 Sales/Research
Syngenta Grimsby Limited Guildford 100% GBP 10,000,000 Production
Syngenta Holdings Limited Guildiord 100% GBP 135 Holding
Syngenta Treasury Services Limited Guildford 100% GBP 100 Management
Servicee
Syngenta Europe Limitad Guildford 100% GBP 1 Management
Services
Syngenta Limited Guildtord 100% GBP 464,566,841 Holding/Production/
Research
USA
Syngenta Crop Protection, Inc. Greensboro, NC 100% USD 1.001 Sales/Production/
Regearch
Syngenta Seeds, Inc. Golden Vailey 100% USD - Sales/Productiony
MN Research
8Syngenta Biotechnology, Inc. Research 100% USD - Research
Triangle Park,
NC
Syngenta Corporation Wilmington. DE 100% USD 100 Holding
Syngenta Finance Corporation Wilimington, DE 100% USD 10 Finance
Syngenta Investment Corporation Wilimington, DE 100% USD 1,000 Intellectual Property
GB Biosciences Corporation Houston, TX 100% ULSD - Production
Torrey Mesa Research Institute 8San Diego, CA 100% USD 1,000 Research
Zeneca Ag Products Holdings. Inc. Wilrington, DE 100% USD 1.000 Helding
Ukraine
TOV Syngenta Kiev 100% USD 15,000 Ssles
Vietham
Syngenta Vietnam Limited Bien Hoa City 100% UND  65.083.000,000 Sales/Production

In sddltion, Synaenta is represented by oparations, associates or joint ventures in the following countries: Ausiria, Congo
Democratic Republic, Cuba, Czéch Republic. Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Guadeloupe, Iran, Kenyz, New Zealand,
Nigeria, Paraguay, Peru, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, Sri Lanka, Swaziland, Ukraine, Uruguay, Venezuela, Yugoslavie

and Zimbabwe.

Note 1 Currency code used is according to 1SO 4217,

Listed Companies

Syngenta India Limited is listed on the Calcutla Stock Exchange and the Mumbai Stock Exchange, On December 31,
2002 it had a markel capitalization of INR 4,046,431,328, and is subject to a public share purchase offer which opened
on December 30". 2002, International Securities Identification Number; INE. 402,80.1016.
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33. Slgnlficant differences between IFRS and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Princlples

Syngenta's consolidaled financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, which a5 applied by
Syngenta, differe in certain significant respects from US GAAP, The effects of the application of US GAAP 10 net income
and equity are set out in the tables below:

(US$ million, excepl eernings par share amounts) Notea 2002 2001 2000

Net income/(loss) reported under IFRS (27) 34 564

US GAAF adjustments:

Purchase accounting: Zeneca agiuclicniicals business 2 46 (208) @71)
Purchace accounting: other acquisitions b (187) (141) (92)
Restructuring charges c (3) - -
Pension provisions (including post-retirement benefits) d 1 2 -
Stock-based compensation e (3) (3) 21)
Deferred taxes on unrealized prefit in inventory f (4) 5 4
Capitalized costs, less disposals and depreciation o) 2) 8 4]
Impairment losses h (30) - -
Deferred tax effect on US GAAP adjustments 24 136 )]
Not Income/{loss) reported under US GAAP (165) (247) - 180
Basic and diluted eamings/{loss) per share under US GAAP (1.82) (2.44) 2.43
(US$ million) Notea 2002 2001 2000
Equity reported under [FRS 4,350 4,086 4,210
US GAAP adjustments:
Purchase accounting: Zeneca agrochemicals businass & (483) - (468) (240}
Purchase accounting: othar acquisitions b 831 1,088 1,239
Restructuring charges ¢ {7) . -
Pension provisions (including post-retirement benefits) d (87) (3 {5)
Stock-based compensation ¢ - - -
Deferred taxes on unrealized profit in inventory f 37N (33) (37)
Capnalized costs, less disposals and depreciation 9 27 28 20
impairment losses h 23 - -
Deferrad tax eftect on US GAAF agjustments (174) (287}  (367)
Equity reported under US GAAP 4,533 4,417 4,820
(USS millien} 2002 2001 2000
Components of equity in accordance with US GAAP:
Share capital 657 667 687
Additional paid-in capital 5,174 5174 5,174
Treasury shares, at cost {612) (518) (524)
Retained gsficit (518) (305) (58)
Accumuiated other comprehensive income:
- Currency translation adjustment (263) (573) (439)
- Unreslized holding gains/(losses) on available-for-gale financial

assets 2 (11) -
- Derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow

hedges 13 17) -
« Additional minimum pension fiability adjustment (64) - -
- Deferred taxes 64 - -
Total 4.533 4,417 4,820

I
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Adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (8FAS) No. 142
Syngenta has complied with SFAS 142 "Goodwill and Intangible Assets” with effect from 1 January 2002

As 2 consequence of the adoption of SFAS 142 az from 1 January 2002, goodwill amortization under US GAAP cesved
from that date. SFAS 142 changes the accounting measurement for goodwill from an amortization method to an
impairment only method, Under IFRS, gooawill is still required to be amortized,

SFAS 142 does not require prior periods to be restated, Therefore, in all tabies presented in this nots, 2002 emounts are
presented in compliance with SFAS 142 whereas 2001 and 2000 amounts are not, The foilowing teble sets forthon a
post-tax basis wha! Syngente's consolidated US GAAP net income/(loss) and earnings/(loss) per share would have heen

in 2001 and 2000 if adjusted to exclude ameortization expense related to goodwill and other intangible assets that are no
longer amortized.

(USS mitiony 2002 2004 2090
Reported net income/(logs) under US GAAP {185) {247) 180
Amortization expense for goodwill and assembled workforce - 42 26
Adjusted net income/(loss) under US GAAP (165) (208) 206
Reported earnings/(loss) per share under US GAAP (basic and diluted) (1.62) (2.44) 2.43
Amortization expense for goodwill and agsembled workforce . (0.42 Q.38
Adjusted earnings/(loss) per share under US GAAP

{bssic and diluted) (1.62) (2.02) 2.78
Changes in shareholders' equity in accordance with US GAAP are as follows:

(USE milflon) .

January 1, 2000 (US GAAP) 3,491

Net income for the year under US GAAP 180

Net transfers te Nevartis ‘ (164)
issusnce of shares in consideration for Zeneca agrochemicals business 1.84E

Acquisilion of treasury shares ' (524)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (108)
December 31, 2000 (US GAAP) 4,820

Net loss tor the year undger US GAAP (247)
Issuance of shares under employ&e thare purchase plan B

Unrealized holding gains/{losses) on available-for-sale financial assets (11)
Net gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments designated as ¢ash fiow

hedges 17
Foreign currency transiation adjustment (134)
December 31, 2004 (US GAAP) 4,417

Net loss for the year under US GAAP (185)
lssuance of shares under employee share purchase plan 6

Dividends paid to group sharehoiders (48)
Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 13

Net gains/{icsses) on derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow

hedges 30
Additional minimum pension ligbility (94)
Income taxes {charged)/credited to shareholders’ equity €4
Foreign currency translation adjustment ' 310
December 31, 2002 (US GAAP) 4.5%3

" Nel transfers (@ Novartis includes transfers of US3183 million on an IFRS basis net of teansfors of pension and stock-hesed compensation

amounig upon spin-¢ff,
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a: Purchase accounting: Zeneca agrochemicals business

As discussed in Note 3, the merger of Novartis agribusiness and Zeneca agrochemicals business resulted in the
formation of Syngente. For accounting purposes this transaction is prezented in the consolidzated financial statements as
a purchage business combination with Novartis agribusiness being the acquirer of Zeneca agrochemicals business.

In sccordance with IAS 22 (revised), the difference between the purchase price and the aggregate fair value of tangible
snd intangible essets and lisbilities acquired in a business combination is capltalized as goodwill and amortized over its
useful fife, There is a rebuttable presumption in IAS 22 (revised) that the useful life of goodwill does not exceed 20 years.
Under US GAAP, the difference between the purchase price paid and the fair value of net asszets acquired as partof a
business combination i capitalized as goodwill but gince the adoption of SFAS 142 this is no longer amortized. The
allocation of purchase price also differs and is shown below.

The purchase price allocation was es follows under US GAAP:

US GAAP purchasa accounting 2002
2001 purcheas 2002  purghass price
{US$ million) price aliocathon chenges aliocation
Intangible assets related to marketed products 1,491 - 1.491
Property, piant and equipment 1,200 - 1,200
Assembled workforce 142 - 142
Other identifiable intangible assets 149 . 149
In-process R&D 365 - 385
Current agsets 2,013 - 2,013
Current liabilities (2,168) - (2.166)
Other net liabilities (1,624) 23 {1,601)
Goodwill 195 (23) 172
Jotal 1,766 - 1,765

The components of the equity and income adjustment related to the US GAAP purchase accounting adjustments are as
follows:

2002 . 2001 2000
Components to reconcile Components to reconcile Companents to reconclie

(US$ mlilion) Net Incoms Equity Net Income Equlty Nelincome Equity
Assembled workforce - - (14) 126 (2) 140
In-process R&D - - - - (365) .
Restructuring - - 81 (3) 93 -
Property, plant and
equipment 6 (48) (175) {54) - -
Intangible assets —
marketed products 2 (44) (108) (47) - -
Other changes - (23) (81) - - -
Gosdwill 38 (368) g (490) 3 (380)
Total adjustment 46 (483) (288) (468) (271) (240)
Assembled Workforce

Under IFRS, the value assigned to Zeneca agrochemicals business' aseembled workforce acquired by Syngenta is
treated as goodwill and smortized aver 20 years. Under US GAAP, through December 31, 2001, the amortization charge
was taken over an estimated average employee service Iife of 10 years, With effect from January 1, 2002. in accordance
with SFAS 142, sssembled workforce, net of related deferred taxes of US$42 million, has been retlassified ag goodwill.
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In-Process Research and Development

Under IFRS, in-precess research and development costs ere not identified as an acquired asset in connection with the
allocetion of the purchase price but rather capitalized as goodwill and amorlized over their expacted vseful lives. US
GAAP requires the igentification of in-process research end development as a component of the purchase price
allocation. Such amounlts in which technological feasibility has not been ettablished and that have ne alternative future
use must be charged ag an expense at the time of acauisition. In accordance with US GAAP, Syngenta has expensed
in-process research and development of US3385 mittion in connection with the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals
business in 200C.

Restructunng

Restructuring costs of USE83 million charged to net income under IFRS were included in 2000 as non-income fair value
adjustments within purchase accounting for Zenaca agrochemicals business under US GAAP,

In 2001, restructuring costs of USHE1 million charged 10 net income under IFRS were inclugded g6 non-income fair value
adjustments within purchase accounling for Zenesa agrochemicals business under US GAAP. Also, relocation expenses
of US$3 million associated with one restructuring plan, which were not recognized under IFRS, as the employees had not
relocated as 8t December 31, 2001 in accordance with 1AS 37, were recognized a5 a liability and as pan of the purchase
price allocation under EITF §5-3. In 2002, this item is presented in the line “Restructuring charges” - see item ¢ below,

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets related to marketed products

Under IFRS, an intangible agset was recognized during 2001 for two products which achieved registration for sale during
the purchage price sllocation period but were recognized as in-process research ang gevelopment in the 2000 financial
statements for US GAAP. For US GAAP purposes, in-process research and development has not been adjusted to
reflect this capitalization under IFRS.

In 2001, Syngenta reviewed the recoverability of propetty, plant and equipment and intangible assets related to marketed
products associated with certain products reported within the Crop Pratection segment, in view af the impact of pre-
acquisition changes in selling prices and competilive pressure. While the evaluation of information obtained subsequent
to the acquisition date pertaining to events and conditions existing at that date permitted an adjustmept 1o the purchase
price allocation pursuant to IAS 22 (Note 3), under US GAAP the post-acquisition evaluation triggered the recognition of
an impaimment loss pursuant to SFAS 121, Impairment losses of US5282 million were therefore recognized pursuant to
SFAS 121 in US GAAP net ioss for 2001 in reepect of certain products assumed in tha Zeneca agrochemicals business
combinstion. The impairment losses were calculated based on discounted net cash flows expected to be generated over
the respective estimated product lives. In 2002, the charge for depreciation and amortization of these gssets under US
GAAP was US$8 million less than under IFRS as a result of the fact that the recoverable amounts of the assets were
determined al different dates and were consequently different,

Other changes

SOP 96-1 sets forth the US GAAP accounting and disclosure reguirements for environmental remediation liabilities and
refers to the guidance in SAB 22 with raspect to environmental liabilities assumed In & business. In 2001 Syngenta
recorded USS$83 million as & purchase accounting allocation adjustment under IFRS (Nole 3), but &8 & change in
estimate within the 2001 net loss under US GAAP, Syngenta giso recorded in 2001 US$15 million related to receivables
recorded at acquisition date. which were subsequently determined to be uncollectible. Of the US$15 million, USE11
million related to value added tax now considered unlikely to be recovered from the respective government authorities,
Under US GAAF (SAB 61), the information obtained subsequent to acquisition date, permitting a purchase price
allocation adjustment under IAS 22, was accounted for as a change in estimate within the 2001 net loss, Syngenta also
recorded in 2001 US$3 million related to an inventory provision. Under IFRS, the documentation supporting the provision
provides additional evidence of circumstances at the date of the acquisition balance sheet, and was aceounted for as a
purchase sccounting adjustment, but, as the documentation is post-acquisition, under US GAAP, it was accounted for as
& change in estirnate within the 2001 net loss.

Fe1
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In 2002, to refiect new developments in income tex matters which were uncertain at the date of acquisition, Synganta
recorded & USS23 million reduction in inceme tax liebilities. 1AS 22 requires ¢changes in estimates of pre-acquisition
income tax liabilities to be recorded in netincome if they are made after the end of the first full accounting period
following the acquisition - in this case, after December 31, 2001, Under US GAAP (EITF 83-7 and SFAS 109), changes
in estimates relating to taxes of the acquired entity and to periods prior to the acquisition date are adjusted against
goodwili in whichever subsequent period they are made.

b: Purchase accounting: othar acquisitions N
The components of the equity and income adjustments related to the US GAAP purchase accounting adjustments for
2002, 2001 and 2000 related to other acquisillons are as foliows:
2002 2001 200

Componants to reconciln Componanta to reconclie Compansnts to reconclie
(UB3 million) Not income Equity Net income Equity Net Income Equity _
Ciba-Geigy (174) 864 (134) 1.038 (89) 1,172
Pre-1995 goodwill (8) g1 (10) B9 (10 98
Merck goodwill € (23) 3 (29) 3 (32)
Other goodwill 9 $ - - - -
Total (187) 931 (141) 1,098 (92) 1,239

Ciba-Geigy

Novantis, the farmer parent company of Novartis agribusiness, was formed in 1996 by the merger of Sandoz and Ciba-
Geigy. The accounting treatment for the 1988 merger of Sandez and Ciba-Geigy under IFRS is different from the
accounting treatment under US GAAP, For IFRS purpozes, the merger was accounted for as a uniting of interests,
however, for US GAAP the merger did not meet all of the required conditions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
16 for a pooling in interests and therefore has been accounted for a¢ g purchase under US GAAP. The merger was
consummated before the effective date of Interpretation 9 of the SIC on accounting for business ¢combinations. Under US
GAAP, Sandoz is deemed to be the acquirer with the 2ssets and llabilities of Ciba-Geigy being recorded at their
eslimated fair values and the results of Ciba-Geigy being included from December 20, 1996. Syngenta has gpecifically
identified the fair value adjustments of the Ciba-Geigy US GAAF purchase price allocation that pertain to Syngenta.

The fair value of net assets acquired exceeded the purchase price resutting in negative goodwili of US$1,163 million
which was allocated to the acguired non-current, nan-monetary assets. The recording of deferred tax assets and liabllives
related to the temporary differences between the assigned fair values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases resulted in the allocation of a deferred tax adjustment to the net assets purchased.

The fair value of the non-current, non-monetary assets on the date of acquisition has been reduced proportionately by
negative goodwill. The final velues assignad were as follows:

(US4 million)

Intangible assets related to marketed products 1,787
Propenty, plant and equipment 1,095
Other identlfiable intangible assets 257
In-process R&D 866
Qther net assets 14714
Total 5,476

The main component of the equity and income adjustments relaled to the Ciba-Geigy US GAAP purchase accounting
adjustment relates to the net book value and amorlization of intangible assets over their useful lives,

F o2
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Also, a product was divested in 2004 in compliance with requiremaents of the competition authorities on formation of
Syngenta. The retirement of the US GAAP carrying amount of the related intangible asset of US$21 million is inciuded in
the adjustment for 2001,

The US GAAP fair values of centain former Ciba-Geigy products have been reviewed to consider the effects of the
Zeneca agrochemicals business acquisition and other changes in market conditions. An impairment loss of US383 million
has been recorged agains! the US GAAF carrying amount of certain product rights and this loss is included in the
adjustment for 2002, An impairment loss of US$16 million was recorded in the adjustmeant for 2001.

Pre-1995 Gooowill

In accardance with IAS 22 (revised), the ditterence between e purchase price and the aggregate fair value of tanyible
and intangible assets and liabiliies acquired in & business combination iz capitelized as goodwill and amontized over its
useful life, There is a rebultable presumption under 1AS 22 (revised) that the useful life of goodwill dees not exceed 20
years. Under US GAAP, the difference between the purchase price and fair value of net assets acquired as pan of a
business combination is capitallzed as goodwill, but since the adoption of SFAS 142 this is no longer amortized.

Prior to January 1, 19¢5, Syngenta wrote-off ell goodwll directly to equity in accordance with IFRS existing at that time.
The adoption of IAS 22 {revised) did not require prior period restatement.  Accordingly, 8 US GAAP difference exists with
respect to pre-January 1, 1995 goodwill, and, in respect of 2001 and prior years, amodization of that goodwill. In
accordance with SFAS 142, the goodwill ceased to be amortized with effect from January 1, 2002,

Merck & Co, Inc.

Under IFRS, in-process research and development costs are not identified as an acgulred asset in connection with the
allocation of the purchase price but rather capitalized as goodwill and amonized over their expected usefu! lives. US
GAAP requires the identification of in-process research and development as a component of the purchase price
allocation. Such amounts in which technological feasibility has not been established and that have no alternative future
use, must be charged as an expense at the time of acquisition. In accordance with US GAAP, Syngenta expensed in-
process research and developrnent of US$38 million in 1897 in connection with the acquisition of product rights and
related net assete from Merck & Co., Inc, Ag a result, the goodwill emeunt recognized under IFRS was higher than undet

US GAAP. In accordance with SFAS 142, the goodwill ceased to be amortized for US GAAPR with effect from January 1,
200z, but continued to be amertized for IFRS,

c: Restructuring charges

Under IFRS, restructuring charges are accrued againgt operating income in the period in which Syngenta develops a
detailed formal plan in respect of the restructuring, & valid expeclation has been raised in those affected by the
restructuring that termination benefits will be paid, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. However, relocation
cosls cennol be recognizea as liabilities until an empioyee actually refocates. Under US GAAF relecation costs of USE3
million were recognized in 2007 in respect of an announced plan to relocate former Zeneca agrochemicals business
employees where relocations have not yet taken place, This adjustment is shown in the line “Furchase Accounting,
Zenecd agrochemicals™ in the net income and equity US GAAP reconciliation for 2001, In 2002, relocation costs of USS$3
million were recognized for US GAAP in line with EITF 94-3, in respect of the announced restructuring of Ressarch and
development, The employees concerned had not yet relocated as of December 31, 2002, Both the 2001 Zeneca related
and the 2002 reiocation cost adjustments are shown in the line “Restructuring charges” in the 2002 US GAAP
shareholders' equlity reconciliation.

The foltowing schedule reconciles restructuring provisions under IFRS to amounts datermined under US GAAP:

(UBS miilion) 2002 2001 2000
Restructuring provisions in accordance with [FRS 273 . 257 350
Reclassification of restructuring provisions to property. plant and squipment - - .
Adjugtments in restructuring provisions 1o accord with US GAAP 7 3 -
Restructuring provisions In accordance with US GAAP 280 260 350

AY
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Adjustments to restructuring provisions to accord with US GAAP are comprised of the following:
{USS millien) 2002 2001 2000
Employee termination costs 7 3 -
Other third party costs - - -
Adjustments to restructuring provisions to accord with US GAAP 7 3 -
Restrusturing provisions in accordance with US GAAP are comprised of the following:
(US§ milllon} 2002 2001 2000
Employee termination costs 177 150 84
Cther third party costs 103 110 256
Restructuring provisions in accordance with US GAAP 280 260 350
Restructuring charges in accordance with US GAAP ere comprised of the following:
(USS milllon) 2002 2001 2000
Total chargas in accordance with IFRS 262 263 16
Adjustments in restructuring charges to accord with US GAAP 3 (81) (83
Restructuring charges In accordance with US GAAP 265 182 223
Adjustments to restructuring charges to accord with US GAAP are comprised of the following:
{US$ million) 2002 2001 2000
Restructuring provision recognition 3 . -
Fair value adjustments (Note 33a) - (81) (93)
Adjustments to restructuring charges 10 accord with US GAAP 3 (81) (93)

d: Pension provisions (including post-retirement benefits)

Under IFRS, pension costs and simllar obligations are accounted for in accordance with IAS 19 (revised), “Employee
Benetits”. For purposeg of US GAAP, pension ¢osts for defined benefit plans are accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 87 "Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” other post-employment benefits are recorded in accordance with SFAS No.
108 “Employers’ Accounting for Post-retirement Benefits other than Pensions” and the disclosure is presented in
accordance with SFAS No. 132 *Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Pest-retirement Benefits, Syngenta
adopted SFAS No. 87 as of January 1, 1998, whereas it adopted IAS 19 (revised) as of January 1, 1988, the difference in
adopticn dates resulls in a change in unrecognized actuarial amounts and the timing of any related amortization for both

pensiop and poset-retirament be‘nefit plans.

Centain defined benefit pension plan amendments resulted in US$2 million (2001: USSS million) of past service ¢osts,
which were recognized in net income under |AS 19 (revised) but will be amortized over the average future working lives

of employees for US GAAP as required by SFAS 87,

14
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Cunailment and seltlement gains were recognized in 2002 and 2001 for IFRS as a result of restructuring actions under
which Syngenta has materially reduced, or is committed to meke material reductions In. the number of employees who
are members of certain pension pians. Under IAS 19 (revised), 8 proportion of unrecognized actuarial gains or losses is
recognized in net income when a curiaiiment or seltlement occurs, in addition to the change in benefit obligation and, if
applicable, plan assets. Under SFAS 88, there iz no such proportionate recognitien of unrecognized gains and losses
when a curtailment occurs, Consequently, certain losses (2001: cerlain gains) recagnized for IFRS in net logs (2001: net
income) have not been recognized for US GAAP. Also, under 1AS 18 (revised), the net curtaiiment result is recognized in
net income whether it is a gain or loss, Under SFAS 88, curtailment gains are only recognized to the extent that they
exceed cumulative unrecognized ectuarial losses at the curtailment date.  Consequently, certain gains recognized for
IFRS in net loss (2001: net income) have not been recognized for US GAAP, The timing of recognition of curtailments
and settlements under US GAAP and IFRS aiso differs. Under IFRS, curtailments and settlements are recognized at the
same fime ag the relateo restructunng provisiens, Under SFAS B8, curtailment losses are recognized when their
oceurrence becomes probable, while curtailment gains and settiements are not recognized until the event or transaction
which causes the curtailment or settiement has occumed. Conseguently, certain gains recognized for IFRS in net loss
(2001: net income) have not baen recognized for US GAAP.

The following is & reconcitiation of the balance sheet and income statement amounts recognized for IFRS and US GAAP
for both pension and post-retirement benefit plans:

Ponsion benefits

(US$ million) 2002 2001 2000

Asset/(liability) recognized for IFRS 28 (59) (53)
Difference in unrecognized past service costs 6 5 -

Additional minimum pengion liability for US GAAP (84) - -

Effect of curtailment recognition timing on reported funded status ¢) (1) -

Difference in unrecognized actuarial gains and losses 14 2) 1

Prepaid asset/(liabllity) recognized for US GAAP (45} (57) {52)
Net periodic benefit cost recognized for IFRS 117 72 12

Pasl service cost not recognized for US GAAP 2) (5) -

Curtailment and settlement gains/(losses) net recognized for US GAAP : (10} 2 -
Amortization of actuarial amounts 3 -

Net periadic benhefit cost recognized for US GAAP 108 70 12

Qther post-retirement benefils

{US$ million) 2002 2001 2000
Liability recognized for IFRS (112) {108) (109)
Difference in unrecognized amounts (13) (5) (5)
Liability recognized for US GAAP {125) {113) {108)
Net periodic benefit cost recognized for IFRS 10 10 4
Amortization of actuarial ameunts . - - -
Net periodic benefit cost recognized for US GAAP 18 10 4

e: Stock-based compensation

Syngenta does not account for stock-hased compensation expense In the income statement under IFRS, as it is not
required. Under US GAAP, Syngenta has applled the intringic method, in agcordanse with Accounting Princlples Board
Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related interpretations (*APB No. 25°%), in acceunting for
all stock-besed compensation plans for all periods presentad in these financial statements.

The Syngenta Executive Stock Option Plan is considered to be fixed under APB No. 25, as tha number of shares tc be

issued and exercise price were both known at the date of grant. No compensation expense was recorded as the
axercise price exceeded the market price on the date of grant.
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In 2001, Syngenta introduced an Employee Share Purchase Flan for smploysees in certain Swiss subsidiaries. This plan
was considered to be compensatory based on the amount of the discount allowed for employee share purchases. For
US GAAP, compensation expense of US33 million (2001; US$3 million) was recorded at the grant date, calculated as the
spread between the share price on the date of purchase and the purchase price. Under IFRS, thie amount was recorded
as @ movement in shareholders' equity. 108,198 shares were so0id to Syngenta employees during 2002 (2001 123,338
sharas). The discount to the Syngenta share price was 50% (2001 50%).

Prior to the Separation Date, cenain Syngenta employees participated in three Novertis-sponsorad plans that were
subject to measurement under APB No, 25, These included the Novartis Stock Option Plan, the Management ADS
Appreciation Cash Plan and the Employee Share Ownership Plan, At the Separation Date, Syngenta discontinued

participation in the Novartis Stock Option Plan and the Management ADS Appreciation Cash Plan, The Employee Share
Ownership Plan was discontinued at December 31, 2000. ’

SFAS No, 123 *Accounting for Stock-Eased Compensation” and SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” require entities which have applied the intrinsic value method to provide
additiona! disclosures ghowing emounts which would have been reported in the financial statements if the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based compensation had been applied:

(LSS miltlon) 2002 2001 2000

Net incoma/(loss) under US GAAP, as reported (1865) (247) 180
Stock-based employee compensation cost under US GAAP, as reported 3 3 21

Stock-based employee compensalion ¢ost whith would have been reported for

US GAAP under the falr value based methad. ) (12) ) (17)
Froforma net income/(loss) under US GAAP, as if the fair value based

method had been applied {174) (251) 184
Basic and diluted eamings/(loss) per share under US GAAP, a3 reported (1.62) (2,44) 243

Protorma basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share under US GAAP as If
the fair value based method had been applied .71 {2.47) 249

The weighted average assumptions used in determining fair value of option grants were as follows:

{USE milllon) 2002 2001 2000
Dividend yielg 1.4% 1.4% 1.3%
Expected volatility 22.8% 22.8% 23.0%
Risk-frea interest rate 3.4% 4.5% 3.7%
Expected life 10 years 10 years 10 years

Actual dividend yield may vary from the assumptions used above.
f:  Deferred taxes on unrealized profit In Inventory

Under IAS 12 (revised 2000), unrealized profits resulting from intercompany transactions are eliminated from the camying
smount of assets, such as inventory. The tax effect thereon is calculated with reference to the local tax rate of the
company that holds the inventory (the buyer) at the period-end. However, US GAAP pronibits the recognition of a
deferred tax asset for the difference between the tax basis of the assets in the buyer's lax jurisdiction and their cost as
reported in the historical consolideted financial statements and requires the deferral of the seller's tex expense incurred
upon the intercompany sale.
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g: Capltalized costs, less disposals and depreciation

(1) Capitalized intorest

Syngenta does not capitalize interest on construcled assets, as it i3 not required by IFRS. In accordance with US GAAP,
interest costs Incurred during the construction perlod (i.e, the period of time necessary to bring a constructed fixed asset
to the condition and location necessary for its intended use) must be capitzlized and amontized over the useful life of the
assel, Under US GAAP, Syngenta would have capilalized US$1 miltion, US$11 million and US$2 million, of intarast
costs that were expensed for IFRS reporting purposas for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
respectively. This amount is net of amontization expense of US$4 million, USS1 million and US$1 million respectively.

(2) Capitalized software

Syngenta has capitalized software costs in accordance with 1AS 3B as from January 1, 2000. For US GAAP pumoses.
coete incurred in the deveiopment of software for internal use have been capitalized from January 1, 1899, the date on
which Syngenta adepied the provisions of Statement of Position 98-1 “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Scfiware
Develeped or Obtained for internal Use™. These costs are being amonized over a three-year period, Under US GAAP, for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 related amortization would have exceeded the relevant capitalized
software costs by US$3 million, USS$2 million and US$2 million respectively. )

h: Impairment losses

(1) Goodwill

In accardance with 1AS 38, goodwill has been reviewed for impairment at the lowss!t level of cash-generating unit where
cash flows are separately identifiable. This has led to impairments of US$23 million being racognized. Since the
adoption of SFAS 142, under US GAAP, goodwill is required to be tested for impairment st the level of reporting unit. On
review of published guidance, Syngenta has determined that the operating segments are the most appropriate
interpretation of the definition of reporting unit. Under SFAS 131, Syngenta's operating segments are the same as its
reportable segments.

Hence under US GAAP, goodwill was testad for impairment at the segment level, For each segment, there was ne
indication of impairment to goodwill from the first step of the test set out in SFAS 142 for either the transitional tesl
performed with data as al January 1, 2002 or the annual test performed with data as at September 30, 2002, As a rasult,
impairment has baen recognized under IFRS, but net under US GAAP, due to the differences between the prescribed
testing repimes. There have been no significant events or changas in circumstances between September 30, 2002 and
tha balance sheet date that indicate goodwill needs to be re-tested for impairment.

{2) Available-for-sale financial assets

Under 1AS 38, where an entity has chosen to repon changes in fair value of availsble-for-sale financial assets in
shareholders’ equity, it continues to do 5o even if the market value of an asset falis below cost, uniess impairment is
objectively evidenced by events such as defaull, bankruptcy or significant financial difficulty of the investee occurring or
becoming probable, These events have not occurred or become probable in respect of any available-for-gale assets held
by Syngenta and, accordingly, no impairment has been recorded for IFRS, However, under SFAS 115 ag interpreted by
SAB 59, impairment is recorded when there is & decling, which is other than temporary, in the value of an avaitable-for-
sale security with a readily determinable fair value, unless there is objective evidence that the asset ¢an be realized in the
near term &t a value in excess of its current market price. Therefore, due to the decline in the market price of certain
quoted available-for-sale assels to a level below their original cost, Syngenta has recorded an impairment loss of US$53
million within the 2002 US GAAP ret loss in relation to these assets,
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Additional US GAAP disclosures

Amortizatlon of intangible assets

Amortization expense under US GAAP for intangible assets. excluding goodwill was US$296 million, US$280 million and
US8177 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively,

The estimated amortization expense for intangible assets under US GAAP for each of the five years following the balance
sheet date is as follows!

(US$ milllent

2003 283
2004 245
2008 240
2008 235
2007 213

Carrying amount of goodwill

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as

follows:

{US$ million) 2002 201 200C
January 1 458 521 353

Additions due to purchase business combinations (23) (10} 222

Amortization expense - (33) (24)
Impairment losses - (19) (1)
Gther movements 62 5 -

Tranglation effects 9 (6) (15)
December 31 508 458 521

The above figures are analyzed by reportable segment as follows. No goodwill is atiributable to the Plant Science
segment,

Crop Protection

(USS$ million) 2002 2001 2000
January 1 331 388 183

Additions due to purchase business combinations (23) (11) 222

Amortization expense - (23) (13)
Impairment losses - 17 -

Other movements 70 (1) 3

Translation effects 9 (8) (17)
December 31 387 331 388

Seeds

{US million) : 2002 2004 2000
January 1 127 133 160

Additions due to purchase business combinations - 1 -

Amortization expense - (10) (11)
Impairment losses - 2) (15)
Other movements (8 § 3
Translstion effects - {1) 2

December 31 118 127 133
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Notes to the Syngenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements
Shipping and handling costs

Syngenta classifies shipping and handling costs associated with purchasing and mavarents of products between
Syngents locations within Cost of goods sold. Shipping and handling costs directly related to delivery of products to third

pary customers are classified within Marketing and distribution. The amount included in Marketing and distribution in
2002 was US$121 million.

Taxes

income tax expense in aocorgance with US GAAP consists of the following:

{US§ million) . 2002 2001 2000
Current (153) (144) (339)
Deferred 104 209 .
Total income tax (expense)/benefit  (48) 85 (339)

Deferred income texes in accordance with US GAAP consist of the following:

(USS million) 2002

2901 2900
Assets gssociated with:

- inventories 133 128 131
- accounts receivable 57 38 58
- property, ptant and equipment - - 40
- pension and empioyee COsts 136 93 75
- other pravisions 167 240 179
- nel operating losses 211 231 111
- othar 168 113 185
Total assete 872 843 749
Less valuation allowance (203} (209) (117)
Total assets, net 669 634 632
Liabilities associated with:

- property, plant and equipment depreciation 219 203 377
- intangible assets 785 688 928
~ other provisions and accruals 310 362 362
Y otal liabilities 1,314 1,453 1,667
Net deferred tax asset/(liability} __(645) (819) (1,035)

A reversal of the valuation allowance could occur when circumstances result in the realization of deferred tax asseéts
becoming more likely than not. This would result in a decrease in Syngenta's effective tax rate.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets az of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was US5203 million, US$209
million, and US5117 million respectively. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the periods ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was a decrease of USS6E million, an increase of US$92 million, and a decrease of
US328 million respectively.
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The movemnent on the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during the year was as follows:
(US§ mililon) 2002 2001
January 1 (209) (117}
Net operating losses and deductible temporary differences:
- arising during the period but not recognized (87 - (73)
- which aroge in previous periods and were recognized in the period 23 (25)
- which expired during the period - 2
Translation effec!s 40 4
December 31 (203) - {209)

In saasaging the realizability of deferred tax assely, inanayeinenl cunsiders whether It is mora iiKely than not that some
pertion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, The uttimale reslization of deferred tax assels i depsndent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differsnces become deductible
or in which tax losses can be utilized, In making this assagsment, management considars the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabifities, projected future taxable income and tax planning stratagies, Based upon the level of historical

taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,

management believes that it is more likely than not that Syngenta will realize the benefits of these deductible differences,
net of the existing valuation allowances, at December 31, 2002, The amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizable could however be reduced in subsequent years if estimates of future taxable income during the ¢arry forward
perio¢ are reduced.

The valugtion allowances principally relate to deferred tax assets arising from taxable losses and deductible temporary
ditferences in jurisdictions where there wasg insufficient evidence to suppon the likelihood of their utilization against
taxable profits in futura periods. The principal jurisdictions where valuation allowances against tax losses have been
established are Ching, Switzerland, Brazil, Argentina and the USA,

Cenain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 deterred tax assets and valuation allowances in order to present
them in a manner consistent with 2002, The analysis of the tax rate that follows has been adjusted accordingly,

Analysis of tax rate

The main elements contributing to the differonce between Syngenta's overall expected tax rate and the effective tax
rate for US GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are given below,

2002 2001 2000
% % %
Statutory tax rate 28 25 25
Overseas income taxed at different rates (1) 15 4
Eifect of disaliowed expenditures (22) (8) 10
Effect of utilization of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets 21 2 (2)
Effect of non-recognition of tax losses in current year (18) (23) 17
Write off of purchased in-process researech and development - - 23
Effect of change in tax rates on opening deferred tax balances (@) - -
Increase in valuation allowance against previously recognized
deferred tax assets {33) - -
Prior year and other Items (11} 8 _(13)
Effective tax rate (45) 29 64
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Subsequently recognized tax benefits relating to the valuation of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000 would be allocated as follows:

(U8 million) 2002 2001 2000
Income tax benefit that would be reported in the conzoligated statement of net

income 165 161 6%
Goodwill 48 48 48
Total 203 209 117

Foreign currency translation

Syngenta has accounted for oparstions in highly-inflationary economies in accordance with 1AS 21 (revised) and IAS 289,
The accounting required under IAS 21 {revised) and IAS 29 complies with the rules as promuigated by the US Securities
and Exchange Commission but is different from that required by US GAAP. As such, no reconclling adjustment has been

included for thie difference betwean 1AS and US GAAP,

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130 "Reporting Comprehensive income" estabiished standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive
ingome and its components. Ceomprehensive income inciudes net incame and all changes in equity during a peried that
arise from non-owner sources, such as foreign currengy items and unrealized gains and losses on securities available-

for-sale. The additional disclosures required under US GAAP are as follows:

(US$ mitllon) 2002 2000 2000
Net income/(loss) under US GAARP (165) (247) 180
Other comprehensive income: )

Unrealized holding gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financlal assats 13 (11) -
Net gains/(losses) on denvative financial instruments degignated as cash flow

nadges ‘ 30 (17) -
Foreign currency transiation adjustment 310 {134) (108)
Additional mimmum pension liability adjustment (94) - -
Delerred tax charged to other comprehensive income 64 - -
Comprehensive income/(loss) under US GAAP 158 (409) 72
The income tax (charged)/credited to equity on these items was as follows:

(US$ mimon) 2002 2001 2000
On unreslized holding gains/iosses on available-for-sale financial assets 3 - -
On unrealized gainsfiosses on derivative financial instrumenls designaled as

cash flow hedges (1) . -
On additional minimum pension fiability 38 - -
On equity movements associated with spin-off from Nevartis AG - -
On items included in foreign currency translation adjustment 16 - -
Total tax (charge)icredit on comprehensive income/(loss) 84 - .
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Employee benefit plans

Presented below are the disclosures required by US GAAP that are different than those provided under IFRS. The
following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligatiens, plan assets and funded status of the plans:

sy

5

Pgngion Other postratirement benefits

{USE miilion) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Benefit obligation
Al beginning of year 2,325 2,300 228 113 . 105 48
Current service cost 09 28 17 2 2 2
Interest cost 135 121 21 ] 7 3
Curtailments and settlements 12 (18) - 1 2 .
Net tizbility azsurned from spin-off from Novarlis benefit plan - E 943 - - -
Acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business - - 1,210 - 2 86
Plan amendments - 4 3 - (27) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 142 59) {130} 20 30 2
Foreign currency transiation 304 (58) 17 1 . -
Employes contributions - - 2 - - -
Benefit payments (101) (82) (12) 7 (8) (6)
Other movements (32) 12 - - - -
Benefit obligation st end of year 2,864 2325 2,300 138 113 105
Plan assets at fair value ]
Al beginning of year 2,143 2,353 225 . - -
Actual return on plan assets {216) {152) 15 - -
Curtailments and settlements - (13) - - - -
Net assets assumed from spin-off from Novartis benefils
plang - & 900 - - -
Acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals buginess - {(14) 1,188 - - -
Foreign currency translation 278 (59) 20 - - -
Employer canttibutions 253 a7 17 7 8 6
Employee contributions 18 15 2 - -
Benefit payments (101} (82) (12) N (8) 8)
Other movements (62) - - - - -
Plan assels at fair value 8t end of year 2,313 2,143 2,353 - - -
Funded status (571) (182 53 (138)  (113)  (105)
Unrecognized past service cost 6 5} - (20) - -
Unrecegnized actuarial {gain)/loss 614 120 (105) 33 - (4)
Additional minimum liability adjustment (94) - - - - -
Prepald/(accrued) benefit cost (45) (57) (52) (125) (113) (108)
Amounts recognized Iin the balance sheet
Prepaid benefit costs 168 67 B1 . - -
Accrued benefit liability (213) {124) (133) (128)  (113) (109)
Net amount recoghized (45) {57) 52 (128  (113) _ (1089)
Benefit cost
Current service cost 99 93 47 2 2 1
Past sarvice ¢ost 2 - - (3) (M -
Interest cost 135 121 21 8 8 3
Expected return on plan assets (142) (144) (25) - (1) -
Employee contributions (18) (15) (2) - - -
Amortization of actuarial (gain)iose 9 - 1 12 - -

85 60 12 19 .8 4
Curtailments and sattlements 23 10 - (1) 2 -
Net periodic bensflt cost 108 70 12 18 10 4

Principal actuarial assumptiong are given in Note 26.
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Certaln pension plans had an accumuiated benefit obligatiea In excess of the falr value of plan assets. The benefit
obligation and plan assets for these plans were as follows:

(USS millian ' 7002 7501 7000
Projected benefit obligation as at December 31 491 - -
Accumulated benefit abligation as at Degember 34 401 - -
Fair value of plan assets as at December 31 315 - -

Proforma Impact of acquisitions/disposals

As noted in Note 3, the merger of Novartis agribusiness and Zeneca agrochemicals business resulted in tha fermation of
Syngenta. Foraccounting purposes, this transaction is presented in the ¢conselidated financial statements as a purchase
business combination with Novartis agribusiness being the acquirer of Zeneca agrochemicals business. Accordingly, the
2enece agrochemicals busingss is a significant agquisition. ‘
The consolidated financial statements present the results of operations of Novartis agribuginess on a stand alone basis
up to the Separation Date, and results of operations of Syngenta, Including the resulls of operations of Zaneca
agrachemicals business, from the Separstion Date te December 31, 2000. in order to present comparable financial data,
unaudited proforma combined financial data has been presented balow for the year ended Dacember 31, 2000. This
unadited proforma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations which would have been reported
had the acquisition actyally been completed as of January 1, 2000, nor of Syngenta's future results of operations.

The unaudited proforma data summarizes the results of aperations for the periods indicated as if the acquisition had been
completed as of January 1, 2000, giving effect to actual operating results of the combined businesses prior to the
atquisition, prepared on & stand alone basis, and adjusted to include the proforma effect of:

¢ interest expanse on the debts incurred by Syngenta,

o depreciation of fixed assats,

¢ amortization of intangibles and goodwill, based on the allocated purchase price,
v divestments of product lines t obtain regulatory appfoval, and

s income taxes,

No adjustment has been included in the proforma combined financial data for any anticipated operating cost savings, nor
for any one-time merger and consolidation costs expected te be incurred upon consummation of the fransaction.

Uraudited proforma per share amounts for the combined company are based on the total shares issued and outstanding
after the Trareactions,
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Unaudited selected proforma combined financial data

The unaudited selected proforma cambined financial date, in accordance with US GAAP, are astimated as follows:

{U$$ million) J_rnfnz:?\S
Proforma Combined Statement of income Data (USS million)

Sales 6,848
Net logs (12)

Loss per share (US3)
Besic and diluted

0.12)
Per share information;

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(in millions of shares) 101.3

34. Effect of new accounting pronouncements
International Financial Reporting Standard's

IAS 18, Emplayee Benefits (revised 2002) introduces additional requirements for immediate recognition of actuanial gains
and losses in the income statement in situations where the maximum limit on pension asset balance recognition under
paragraph 5B of IAS 19 applies. Restatement of prior year amounts ia not required by this change. Syngenta has
cornplied with IAS 15 (revised 2002) with effect from 1 January 2002,

€IC-28, “Business Combinations - Date of Exchange and Fair Value of Equity Instruments”, clarifies aspects of 1AS 22,
"Business Combinations”, in respect of determining the cost of an acquisition where an emerprise issues its own equity
instryments as purchase consideration in a business combination. Syngenta issued 44 million shares in connection with
the acquisition of Zeneca agrochemicals business in November 2000, and the acquisition purchase price was detetmined
as the numbar of Syngenta shares issued te AstraZeneca shareholders multiplied by the average trading price of thase
thares over the firet five days of trading, This treatment is consistent with the reguirements of SIC-28. SIC-28 became
effective for acquisitions given initial accounting recognition on or after December 31, 2001 and Syngenta has complied
with it from Ihat date. Adoption of S1C-28 had no impact on Syngenta's ¢onsclidated financial statements for 2002 since
o equity shares were issued by Syngenta in connection with any business combination during 2002.

81C-30, "Reporting Curcency - Translation from Measurement Currency lo Presentation Currency” addresses how items
in linancial statements should be translated from a measurement currency 1o 8 presentation turrency when the financial
statements ere presented in a currency other than the measurement currency determined under SIC-19, "Reporting
Currency - Measurement end Presentation of Financial Statements”, and under IAS 21, "The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rales" and IAS 28, "Financial Reporting in Hyperinfiationary Economies”. SIC-30 bacame effective
for annual finangial periods beginning on ot after January 1, 2002. and Syngenta has complied with it from that date.
Adoption of SIC-30 had no impact on Syngenia's consolidated financial staterments for 2002.

8IC-32 "Intangible Assets - Web Site costs” establishes the accounting treatment for expenditure [ncurred on the
cevelopment and operation of an entity's own web sites, SIC-32 became effective on 25 March 2002 and Syngenta has

complied with it from 1 January 2002, Adoption of 81C-22 had no impact on Syngenta's consolidated finangial
statements for 2002.
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SIC-33. "Consolidation and Equity Method - Potential Voting Rights and Allocation of Ownership Interasts”. considers
issues of owrership and ceontrol arising under |AS 27 "Consolidated Financial Statements - Accounting for Investments in
Subsidiaries”, and IAS 28, "Accounting for Investments in Associates”, when an enterprise owns share warrants, share
call options, debt or aquity instruments thal are convertible into ordinary shares, or other similar Instruments that have the
potential, if exercised or converted, o give the enterprise voting pawer or reduce another party's voting power over the
financial and operating policies of another enterprise. SIC-33 became effective far annual financial periods beginning on

or after January 1, 2002. The adoption of SIC-33 did not have a material effect oh the consolidated financial statements
for 2002,

US GAAP

EFAS No. 141, "Business Combinalions” was issued in June 2001. This standard establishes standards for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, or any purchase business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. This
standard prohibils the use of the pocling of interest method of business combinstion, and provides guidance regarding
the recognition of intangible assets acquired in a purchase method of business combination. in agcordance with the
transition provicions of SFAS No, 141, assembled workforce intangible assets of US$126 million, related to purchase
business combinations completed before June 30, 2001, less related deferred tax lighilities of US$42 million, were
reclassified as goodwill as of January 1, 2002, No material business combinations were completed during 2002,

SFAS No. 142, "Goodwili and Other Intangible Assets", was issued in June 2001, This standard prohibits the amertization
of goodwill, regardless of its acquisition date, and requires impairment testing of goocwill annually or if any events eccur
which would indicate an impairment of goodwill. It also prescribes that goodwill should be tested for impairment under a
fair value method different than that previously required under SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-

Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assels 10 be Disposed of." The standard became effective for Syngenta from January 1,
200z

The accounting and impairment review process for goodwill are described above in Note 33. As a result of the
implementation of SFAS No. 142, no recognized intangible assets have been determined s having an indefinite life, and
no thanges have been made to the estimated expected useful lives of any recognized amortized intangible asset.

SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment ¢r Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, was issued in August 2001, SFAS Ne.
144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and addresses financial accounting and reporting for
the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Aszets and for Long-Lived Assels to be Disposed Of " and the accounting provisians of APB
Opinion Neo. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations - Reponting the Effects of Disposal of a Segrent of 8 Business, and
Extracrdinary, Unusual and Infrequentty Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a
business. Syngenta has complied with SFAS No. 144 “Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets” with effect from 1
January 2002. Adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No, 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Cbligations" was isgued in June 2001, and requires that obligations
associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset be recorded as a liabilily when those obligations are incurred,
with the amount of the liability initially measured at fair value. The standard will become effective for Syngente from
January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 143 applies te legal obligations for demolition, restoration and abandonment costs, As part
of the restructuring plans described in Note 22, Syngenta has announced plang te abandon certain manufacturing sites
and has established provisions accordingly. Syngenta does not anticipate that adoption of SFAS No, 143 will have a
meterial effect on the consclidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Costs Assoclated with Exit or Disposal Activities®, was issued In June 2002, and
addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting of costs nssociated with exit and disposal activities, including
restructuring activities. This statement supersedes the guidance in EITF 94-3, The standard will become effective for
exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. Retroactive application of SFAS No. 146 is prohibited, and it
will therefore have no impact on the opening halance of consolidated retainpd earnings at January 1, 2003. Syngenta wili
apply SFAS No.148 with effect from January 1, 2003.
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EITF 85-23, "The Treatment of Cerain Site Restoration/Environmenta! Exit Costs when testing a Long-Lived Asset for
impairment”, was revised by the Emerging Issues Task Force in June 2002 to take account of SFAS Nos. 143 and 144,
The revised EITF addresses how environmental axit costs which have not been recognized ag a liability should be dealt
with when testing for impairment under SFAS No, 144, The adoption of the revised EITF had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements,

EITF 00-21, “‘Revenue Arrangemants with Multiple Deliverables”, was issued in November 2002. and addresses how a
vendor aflocates revenue between multiple products and services covered by the same revenue arrangement. The EITF
consensus will apply to Syngenta with effect from January 1, 2004. The effect of the EITF will depend upon the nature of
agraements Syngenta enters into with cusiomers during 2004. Therefore, &t this time Syngents is unable to determine
whether adoption of the consensus will impact its financial statementz. There will, however, be no effect on transactions
rceognized in the consolidoled financial statements for 2002 and prior years.

EITF Q2-8, "Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of Payments Made to Settle an Assat Retiremant Obligation
within the scope of FASB Statement No, 143" was issued in Mareh 2002, and requires that cash paid to settle an asset
retirement obligation should be classified within cash flows from operating activities, EITF 02-08 will become effective for
Syngenta on January 1, 2003 together with SFAS No, 143. EITF 02-06 will have no impact on the consolidated financial
statements because Syngenta already ciassifies these payments in cash flows from operating activities.

EITF 01-8, *Accounting for Considerstion Given by 8 Vender to a Customer (including s Reseller of the Vendor's
Products)", was issued in November 2001 and addresses the timing of recognition and presentation in the income
stalement of szles incentives offered to customers. EITF 01-8 became effectiva for Syngenta on January 1, 2002 and
has not had a material impact on the ¢onsolidated financial statements.

EITF 02-16, “*Accounting by a Customer {Intluding a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor”, was
issued in November 2002, and requires that rebates and refunds received from vendors which are payable if a specified
cumulative level of purchases is reached are recognized systematically as 8 reduction of cost of goods sold related to the
purchases if the amount ¢an be estimated reasonakly, If the amount cannot be estimatad, the rebates or refunds are
recognized when the target is achieved. The EITF consensus applied lo errangements entered into with vendars after
November 21, 2002 and did Aot have a material impact on Syngenta's 2002 financial statements.

35, Subsequent events

On December 4, 2002, Syngenta announced the signing of a research agreement with Diversa Corporation ('Diversa®)
which is listed on NASDAQ. Under this agreement, Diversa will acquire an exclusive, royaity-free perpetual license from
Syngenta for technology and intellectual property for use in the pharmaceutical field, as well as relaled assets owned by
Syngenta, in exchange for stock and warrants representing 14% and 3% respectively of Diversa's outstanding stock
proforma for the equity issuances. The transaclion is expected to be completed in February 2003, subject to the approval
of Diversa shareholders. If approved. Syngenta will own 18,8% of Divarsa’s outstanding stock, excluding the warrants
which are exarcisable for ten years starting in 2008, at an exercise price of US$22 per Diversa share, and will commit to
funding of US520.6 million for joint projects with Diversa for @ach of the following five years. Torrey Mesa Researgh
Institute, Syngente's facitity in La Jolla, California, will close on completion of the transaction.

On November 5, 2002, Syngenta announced a public offer for the 48.01% of shares in Syngenta India Ltd, which were
not currently owned by Synpgenta, The shares of Syngenta India Ltd. are listed on the Mumbai (Bombay) and Kolkata
(Caloutta) Stock Exchanges, The offer price is 130 [ndian rupees per Syngenta India equity share of 5 rupees par valye,
and is payable in cash. The offer is not subject to & minimum level of acceptance by shareholders, but is subject to
approval of the Indisn Foreign Investment Promotion Board and the Reserve Bank of India. If all sharaholders of
Syngentla India Ltd. were to accept the offer, Syngents would be required to pay approximately US$42 million to acquire
their shares. The offer closed on January 28, 2003, af which time acceptances had been received to give Syngenta
control over approximately 84% of the shares.

F 108



17 MAR, 2003 13:07 SYNGENTA  +41 61 3135461 NR. 1509 S

Notes to the Synpenta Group Consolidated Financial Statements

Other than the sbove, no events occurred between the balance sheet date and the date on which these consolidated
financial statlements were approved by the Board of Directors that would require adjustment to or disclesure in the
consolidated financial statemants,

¢

Approval of the Financial Statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on Fabruary 19, 2003.
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

To the genera! meeting of
Syngenta AG, Basel

Basel, 19. February 2003

Report of the group auditors

As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements (balance sheet, income
statement, statemeny of cash flows, statement of changes in cquity and notes) as presented on pages 36 0
107 of Syngenta AG for the year ended December 31, 2002. The prior year corresponding figures were
audited by other group auditors.

These consolidated financial siatements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsibility
15 to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that
we meet the legal requirements conceming professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the Swiss profession,
with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA), and the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States. Those standards require that an audit be planned and performed tc oblain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. We
have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made

and the overall consolidated financial statement presemtation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinjon,

In our opinion, the 2002 consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position, the results of operations, the cash flows and the statement of changes in equity in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with Swiss law.

International Financial Reporting Standards vary in certain significant respects from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The application of the latter would have
affected the determination of the consolidated net income of Syngenta AG for of the year ended

December 31, 2002, and of the consolidated shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2002, o the extent
summarized in note 33 of the consolidated financial statements.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young ud
L}ext, i
Conrad Loffel Jurg Zitrcher
Swigs Cenmilied Accountam Swiss Certified Accouniant
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PRICEWATERHOUSE( COPERS G

Repor of the Joint Group Auditors
Ta the General Meeting of the Sharahelders of

Syngenta AG, Basel

As Joint Group Auditors, we have audited the censolidated financial statements {consolidated income statements,
balance gheels, cash flow statements. statements of changes in equity and notes) as presented on pages 36 to 107 of
Syngenta AG for eacn of the twe years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. The consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 1999 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers AG whose report dated August
14, 2000 expressed an unqualified opinion.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinjon on these consclidated financial stalements based on our audits. We confirm that we meat the legal
requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audits were conducted in accordance with auditing stardards promulgated by the Swiss profession, with the
international Standards on Auditing issued by the international Federation of Accountants (IFAC), and the auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. We have éxamined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts ard disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. We have aiso assessed the sccounling principles used, significent estimates made and the overall
congolidated financiat staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the 2001 and 20800 consolidated financisl statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Syngenta AG as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of operations and the

cash flows for each of the two years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 in accordance with International Accounting
Standards and comply with Swigs law, :

International Accounting Standards vary in certain significant respects from accounting principles generally accapted in
the United States of America. The appiication of the latter would have affected the determination of the consolidsted nat

income of Syngenta AG for each of the twa years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and of the consofidated

sharebolders' equity as of Decemper 31, 2001 and 2000 to the extent summarized in note 33 {o the consclidated
financial statements.

Wa recommend that the conselidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG KPMG Fides Peat
W Qﬂﬂv g, Podde

Clive Betlingham Gerd Tritschler Christopher Stirling Erik F. J. Willems

Basel, February 27, 2002 Zurich, February 27, 2002
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tncome Statement

{for the period from January 1, 2002, to December 31, 2002 and for the period from November 12, 2000, to December 31

2001)

Nows Poriod enadad Docemper D1, 2002  Period anded Dacember 39, 2001

CHF miiliens CHF milllons

ncome
Dividend income 140 181
ingome from financial assets 5 4
Gain from divestmants 3 - 18
Total income 145 203
Expenses
Financial expenses {20) (23)
Administrative expenses (23) (30)
Taxes (2) (2)
Total expanses {45) (55)
Net income 100 148
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Balance Sheets (prior to profit appropriation)
{8t December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001)

NR. 150

O
(@)
—

Notes 2002 2001
CHF millisns CHF milikona

ASSETS
Financial assets — Investments 4 4,057 4,048
Total non-current assets 4,057 4,046
Current assels
Receivables from subsidiaries 1 3
Accrued income and other current assets - 4
Marketable securities (including treasury shares) 5 866 875
Total current asssts 867 BB2
TOTAL ASSETS 4,924 4,928
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Total share capital ¢ (1.126) {1,126)
Reserves
Legal reserves
- General reserve, including share premium ? (263) (263)
- Raserye for treasury shares 7 (866) (875)
Free reserves 7 (1.982) (1,973)
Total reserves @111 {3,111}
Profit/logs brought forward b4 (67) -
Net income of the period (100} {148)
Total available earnings (167) {148)
Total equity _(4,304) {4,385)
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
- subsidiaries (518) (537)
- others (2) &
Total liabilities (520) _(543)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES {4,924) (4,928)

Fi11



17. MAR. 2003 13:0¢ SYNGENTA  +41 61 3235461

Financial Statements of Syngenta AG

Proposal for the Appropriation of Avallable Earnings

Pered andgd Porloo ended
Dacember 31, 2002 December 31, 200t
CHF millions CHF milliona
Available earnings
Profit/loss brought forward 58 -
Plus dividend not paid for treasury shares 9 -
Net income of the year 100 148
Total avallable earnings 167 148
Proposed appropriation
Payment of dividend of CHF 0.85 (2001:CHF 0.80) gross per share on (05) (80)
112,564,584 registered shares with » nomina) value of CHF 10 each
Balance to be carried forward 72 58

The Board of Directors proposes a dividend in respect of 2002 of CHF 0,85 per share totaling CHF 95 million on all
shares in issue at December 31, 2002. The dividend attributabie to the treasury shares under the control of the Company
al the date of the dividend peyment will be waived, and therefore reduce the total dividend payment made, bul not the
amount of dividend per share, As at December 31, 2002, the humber of treasury shares ynder the control of Syngenta
was 11,023,465 and as et December 31, 2001, the number of treasury shares under the control of Syngenta was

11,131,664,
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Notes to the Financial Statements of Syngenta AG

1. introduction

Tne financial statements of Syngenta AG comply with the requirements of the Swiss law for companies, the Code of
Obligations (CO),

Syngenta AG was incorporated on November 12, 1998 and is registered with the commercial register in the canton of
Basel Stadt. The comparative accounting period includes the results from November 12, 2000 to December 31, 2001
and the current accounting period includes the results from January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002.

2. Ag¢counting policies

Exchange rate diffsrences

Current assets denaminated in foreigh currancies are converted at year end exchange rates, Exchange differences
arigzing from these as well as those from business Iransactions are recorded in the in¢orne statement. Net unrealized
gains, however, are deferred under the Swiss law for companies.

Financial assets
These are valued at scguisition cost less adjustments for impairment of value,

Marketable securities
These are valued at the lower of cost and market value.

Provisions
Provisions are made to cover general business risks of the Group.

3. Gain from divestment

The gain from divestment in 2001 represents Syngenta AG's share of the sale proceeds arising on the sale of the
worldwide Flint fungiclde business to Bayer AG which was required by reguiators as a condition of their approval of the
merger of Novartis agribusiness with Zeneca agrochemicals businegs to form Syngenta.

4, Financia) assets

The major direct and indirect investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other holdings of Syngenta AG are shown in
Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements. During the year 200z, Syngenta AG founded Syngenta South Asia AG

with a fully pald-in capital of CHF $ milion. The legal form of Syngenta SARL has been changed into Syngenta
Panticipations AG & Co. SNC, Luxembourg and the capital has been increased by the equivalent of CHF 2 million.
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5. Treasury shares
The share repurchase program was funded by Syngenta's legacy parent companies AstraZeneca and Novartis Group.
The number of treasury shares held by the Company and subsidiaries quallfying under Art. §59b CC and their
movemeants in 2002 were as follows:

Dacembear 31, Decambper 31,

2002 2004

Tetal treasury registered sharee hetd by Syngenta AG 11,131,664 11,265,000
Sold in the period (108 188) (123,336)
Average sale price per share, CHF 86.70 84.60
Tota! treasury registered shares held by Syngenta AG 11,023 485 11.131,664
Average purchase price per share, CHF 76.56 78.56

The sales in the period ended December 31, 2002 represent shares sold to employees under the Swigs Employee Share

Purchase Plan.

€. Share ¢apital

(all ghares have a nominal valuc of CHF 10)

Numbor of shares

Dacember 3, Movement in Decembar Y1,
2002 parlcd 2001
Tetal Syngenta AG registered shares 112.564.584 - 112,564,584
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7. Reserves

General reserve, inciuding share premium

December 31, 2002

Doecember 31, 2001

CHE militons CHE miflions
Opening balance (263) 2.561)
Reserves arising on the merger with Novartis Agribusiness - (175)
Conversion of share premium Into free reserves - 2473
Closing balance _.1263) 263)
Reserva for tresaury shares Decanles :;IIT::: Uscember i‘m
QOpening balance (875) -
Net transter from free reservas - (B75)
Net transfer to free resarves ) -
Clesing balance {866) 875

Profitrioss brought torward

Dacamber 3, 2002

Deacembeor 31, 2004

CHF millons CHF milllgns
Opening balan¢e (148) -
Dividend payment of CHF 0.80 gross per share on 101,432,920 shares® 81 -
Ciosing balance {67) _

* The difference 1o the total shares of 112,564 584 are the treasury shares held by Syngenta AG on the date of payment,

Free reserves

Decembnor 31, 2002

Décember 31. 2001

CHF miilions CHF milligna
Operning balance {1,973) -
Transfer from general reserve - (2.473)
Capital ¢ontribution from AstraZeneca Pic - (375)
Nat transfer to reserve for treasury shares - B75
Net transfer from reserve for treasury shares (9) .
Closing balance {1,982) (3,973)

The capital contribution from AstraZenreca Ple principally represents their contribUtion towards the share buyback
program undenaken after Syngenta was formed, Novartis AG contributed an amount of CHF 539 million, which was

received by another legal entity wholly owned by Syngenta AG.
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8. Contingent liabilities

Amount {n effect at Amounl [n effect at
Dacember 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
CHF milliens CHF mililons
Guarantees to cover capital and interest of bonds, commer¢ial paper
and the eurc medium-term ncte program — tetal amount limited to
CHF 5,136 million. 1,877 1,837
Guarantees in favor of other group companies, assotiated companies
and agents — tolal amount limited to CHF 3,592 miillion. 171 950
Total 2,140 2,787

In a lelter dated September 7, 2001, Syngenta AG confirmed that it will, for s¢ long as Syngenta Limited (registered in the
UK} Is & wholly owned subsidiary of Syngenta AG, ensure that Syngenta Limited will honor its obligatien to guarantee the
solvency and due payment of benefits of its pension plan.

Syngenta AG has & partnership interest in Syngenta Participations AG & Co. SNC, a "société en nom collectif under
Luxembourg law and is jeintly and severally liable for the liabilities to third parties of Syngenta Participations AG & Co.
SNC. This partnership is wholly owned by the group and is fully cansolidated. The contingent liabilities related to the
investment are shown in the table above under guarantees to cover capital and interest ef bonds, commercial paper and
the euro medium-term note program.

Syngente AG is pan of the Syngenta Swiss VAT Group and is therefare jointly and severslly liable for the whole amount
due to the Swiss VAT Tax authorities by the Group,

9, Financial instruments
Syngenta AG entered into different contracts regarding financial instruments. Datails of all the transactions are disclosed

under Note 31 of the Syngenta Group ¢onsclidated financial statements. All transactions are for Syngenta Group
companies which carry the economic risk of these transactions. The numbers relating to Syngenta AG are outlined in the

table below.
Posliiva
Notional Amount Fair Valug Nogative Fair Vaiue
CHF million 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Financial Instruments : 8,225 7.998 521 123 (126) (47)
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

To the peneral meeting of
Syngenta AG, Basel

Basel, February 19, 2003

Report of the statutory auditors

As statntory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements (balance sheet,
income statement and notes) as prescnted on pages 110 to 116 of Syngenta AG for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The prior year corresponding figurcs were audited by other statutory auditors.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on ow audit. We confirm that we mcet the legal
requirements concerning professional gualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing stendards promulgated by the Swiss profession,
which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements ar¢ free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting
principles used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed eppropriation of
available earnings comply with Swiss law and the company’s by-laws,

We recommend that the financial sratements submitted to you be approved.

Emst & Young Ltd.

Conrad Loffel Jirg Zilrcher

Swigs Centified Accounant Swiss Cenlificd Atcouniant
Enclosures:

- Financial statements (balance sheet, income statcment and notes)
- Proposed appropriation of available earnings
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Repert of the Joint Statutory Auditors to the General Meeting of the Shareholders of

Syngenta AG, Basel

As Joint Statutery Auditors, we have audited the accounting récords and the financial slatementr (innnme statement,

balance sheet and notes) gs presented on pages 110 to 116, of Syngenta AG for the period from November 12, 2000 to
December 31, 2001.

These financial stalements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors, Qur responsibility is 10 express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements
concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the Swiss profession, which require that
an audit be planned and perermed lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finantial statements are fres from
material misstatement. We have examined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed appropriation of available earnings
comply with Swiss law and the Company's articles of incorporation,

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved,

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG KPMG Fides Peat
Clive Bellingham Gerd Tritschler Christopher Stirling Erik F. J. Willems
Basel, February 27, 2002 Zurich, February 27, 2002
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Anticipated key reporting dates in 2003

Annual General Meeting for the financial ysar 2002
Firgt Quarter 2002 trading statement

First Half 2003 resuits

Third Quarer 2003 trading statement

Investor Relations
T +41 61 3235059
F +41 61 3236598

US investors
T +1 817 3222569
F 41017 3222570

Share Register
T +41 61 3232095
F +41 61 3235461

April 28, 2003
April 29, 2003

July 30, 2003

Media Relations
T +41 613232323
F +41 813232424

To order publications
T +41 61 3237579
F +41 81 3232966

8Syngenta switchboard

T +41 €1 3231111
F +41 613231212
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Syngenta on the Internet
WWW . syngenta, com

Syngenta International AG
Communications and

Public Affairs

P.Q. Box

CH-4002 Basel

Switzeriand
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Cautionary statement regarding
forward-looking statements

This Annual Review contalns forward-looking statements, which can be identified by termindlogy such az “expect’,
“would”, "will", “potential”, "ptans’, “prospects”, “estimated”. “aiming’, “on track®, and similar exprassions. Such slatements
may be subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from these statements.

We refer you ta Syngenta’s publicly available filings with the US Securitles and Exchange Commission for information
about these and other risks and uncertainties. Synpenta assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements te
reflect actual results, changed assumptions or other factors. This document does not constitute, or form pan of, any offer
of invilalion to sell or issue, or any solicitation of any offer, to purchase or subscribe for any Ordinary Sharss in Syngenta
AG, ur Syngenta ADSS, nor shall it form the basis of, or be relied on in connection with, any contract therefore.

For the business year 2002, Syngenta has published two reports:
The Annual Report and the Financial Repon.

These publicalicng are also available on the Internat
www.syngenta.com

Both documents were originaily published in English.
The Annual Report for 2002 is also available in German.

All rights reserved. Editorial completion; February 2003.
SynintCommes (18486
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